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DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Deputy Chief Executive and Group Chief Financial

and Operating Officer
Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive
Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Alternate Chief Executive
Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Alternate Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Lon Dounn
Seng-Lee Chan
Yuen-Tin Ng

Blair Chilton Pickerell

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Seng-Lee Chan

Yuen-Tin Ng

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Seng-Lee Chan
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze

David Shou-Yeh Wong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Doris Wai-Nar Wong FCIS, FCS
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Tsang-Sum Yien (Jason Yien)
General Manager and Group Head of Operations
Siu-Li Che (Yvonne Che)
General Manager and Group Head of Information Technology
Clement Poon
General Manager and Group Financial Controller
Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources
Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)
General Manager and Group Head of Compliance
Frederick Ka-Wai Lau
General Manager and Head of Risk Management and Control
Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A.
Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

36th Floor, Everbright Centre

108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.I.F.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 77, was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in
1983. He is currently the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”),
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited and various
other companies. He serves as a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG. Mr. Wong is
the Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors
and a Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology and has over 50 years of
experience in banking and finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong, the Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief
Executive of the Bank.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 65, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in
1989, promoted to Managing Director in 2000 and then appointed as
a Vice Chairman in April 2011. He is the Vice Chairman, Managing
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, the
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and a director of
various major subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a Director of Great
Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and a Non-Executive Director
and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongqging Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong
Kong) in which the Group has a 14.66% equity interest. Mr. Wong is
an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder Member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International Retail
Banking Council of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and has over 40 years of
experience in banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 48, is currently a Vice Chairman and the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank. He joined the Bank in
2000, and was appointed as an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice
Chairman in March 2010. He was further appointed as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He is also
a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Macau
Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Wong is currently a member of
The EFAC Financial Infrastructure Sub-Committee, a sub-committee
under the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee (“EFAC”) of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Harvard University, U.S.A. and a Bachelor
of Laws (Honours) degree from King’s College, London, and is a
qualified solicitor in England and Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong
is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of
the Bank, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive and Group Chief Financial and Operating Officer

Mr. Wang, aged 57, joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for
the overall financial management and control, operations and IT
functions of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted as the
Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011 and
was re-designated as the Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate Chief
Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He is also an Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”) and the Group Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the
Bank, DSFH and DSBG as well as a Director of Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Mr. Wang is
a qualified accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of
Social Science degree from The University of Hong Kong and has over
30 years of experience in financial management and banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 50, joined the Bank in 1998, and was appointed
as an Executive Director in 2007 and as a Deputy Chief Executive in
August 2011. He was also appointed as an Executive Director and
the Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited on
1 June 2017. Mr. Mayhew is currently a Director of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited, Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and
Macau Insurance Company Limited. He was an Executive Director of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent company of the Bank)
during the period from 6 August 2004 to 31 May 2017. He also serves
as Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible
for its treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese and Economics) from the
University of London. He has over 25 years of experience in financial
services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau

Alternate Chief Executive

Mr. Lau, aged 55, joined the Bank in 1992, and was appointed as an
Executive Director in May 2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in
May 2014. He is currently the Head of Commercial Banking Division,
responsible for overseeing and supervising commercial banking
business. Besides, he is a committee member of SME Standing
Committee of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
in 2017-2018 and an Executive Committee member of the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries Group 18. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree from The University of Texas at Austin, U.S.A.
Mr. Lau has over 25 years of experience in commercial banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong

Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 51, joined the Bank as the Head of Retail Banking
business in February 2012, responsible for the development
and management of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail
brokerage, wealth management businesses, private banking and
vehicle financing. She was appointed as an Executive Director in
May 2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. She holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from Brunel University
(UK) via Henley Management College and a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong has over 25 years of
experience in retail and personal banking business with other banks
operating in Hong Kong, including Standard Chartered Bank and
CITIC Bank International.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 77, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in 1996. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
and Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited. He serves as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG, a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
of the Bank and DSBG and the Chairman of the NRC of DSFH. He
was the Chairman of the NRC of the DSBG from August 2005 to
August 2017. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of
China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited, Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings
Limited and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. Mr. Sze is
a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was a former partner of an international firm of accountants with
which he practised for over 20 years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lon Dounn (Lonnie Dounn)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Dounn, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Bank in May 2012. He is also the Chairman
of Risk Management and Compliance Committee of the Bank, and
an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited. He also served as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited between December 2010 and March 2012. Mr. Dounn holds
a Bachelor of Science degree from Carnegie-Mellon University, a
Master of Business Administration degree from Carnegie-Mellon
University, Graduate School of Industrial Administration and Juris
Doctor from Fordham University School of Law. He has over 40 years
of extensive experience in the banking industry and had assumed
various senior executive positions in credit and risk management in a
number of banks, including HSBC and Bank of China.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in May 2012 and Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”), the immediate holding company of the Bank, in
August 2008 after his retirement in June 2008 as the Chief Executive
Officer of Heidelberg China Limited. He was appointed as a member
of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank in December 2017. He has
served as a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of DSBG since May 2011. He was further
appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of DSBG on 22 August 2017. Mr. Chan has over 40 years
of experience primarily in the print media industry and has a sound
knowledge of the Asian markets, particularly in China.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ng, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in October 2012, and an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited in April 2012. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”)
(a key operating subsidiary of the Bank), appointed in February 2013.
He has served as a member of the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee of the Bank since May 2013 and was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee of the Bank in December 2017. He
was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee, Connected
Transactions Control Committee and Risk Management Committee
of DSB China in February 2013. He was further appointed as the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of DSB China in September
2015. Mr. Ng is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Chinney Alliance Group Limited, a public company listed in Hong
Kong. Mr. Ng is an Associate of The Chartered Institute of Bankers
(UK) and a Fellow and an honorary advisor of The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers. Mr. Ng has 40 years of extensive experience in banking
and financial industry with a focus on the corporate and institutional
banking business management for the last 12 years prior to his
retirement from Hang Seng Bank Limited in 2011.

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank on 19 December 2017. He
was also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Bank, on 20 December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of the Finance
Committee, Nominating and Governance Committee, and Strategic
Issues Committee of the Principal Financial Group, Inc. (which is
listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.) and an INED and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of Link
Real Estate Investment Trust (which is listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)). He is also a member
of the Supervisory Committee of The Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (a
Hong Kong unit trust authorized under section 104(1) of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance whose units are listed on the Stock Exchange)
and the International Advisory Board of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India. He is a vice patron of The Community Chest of Hong
Kong, the Chairman of Harvard Business School Association of Hong
Kong Limited, a strategic advisor of CreditEast Wealth Management
(HK) Ltd. and an executive committee member of the International
Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business and Economics of The
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong Kong from
December 2008 to November 2014 and a member of the Main Board
and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock Exchange from July 2015
to July 2016. He was an INED and a member of the Audit Committee
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent company of the
Bank) from 1 June 2013 to 19 December 2017.

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the Head of
Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and served as the
Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management Company till July 2015.
He joined Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held various
positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003, he joined
HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as HSBC Global
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as the Chief Executive
Officer, Asia Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served as managing
director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of Morgan Stanley
Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business School,
U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and a BA degree (in
Political Science) from Stanford University, U.S.A.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsang-Sum Yien (Jason Yien)
General Manager and Group Head of Operations

Mr. Yien, aged 50, joined the Bank in 1998 and was appointed as
a General Manager and Group Head of Operations of the Bank in
October 2016. Mr. Yien attained a Degree of Doctor of Philosophy
in Industrial Engineering and Engineering Management from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, and both a Master
Degree and a Bachelor Degree of Applied Science in Industrial
Engineering from The University of Windsor, Canada. He is a senior
member of the Institute of Industrial and Systems Engineers. Mr.
Yien has over 20 years of experience in consulting, operations
management, operational risk and project management mainly in the
banking industry.

Ms. Siu-Li Che (Yvonne Che)
General Manager and Group Head of Information Technology

Ms. Che, aged 53, joined the Bank in 2011 as General Manager,
Group Head of Information Technology Division. Ms. Che has over
30 years of experience in information technology industry, of which
27 years are in banking and finance sector. Prior to joining the Bank,
Ms. Che held various IT positions in multinational and regional
financial institutions. Since 2002, Ms. Che traveled around Asian
Pacific countries very often to work on standardization, integration
and globalization initiatives. Ms. Che holds a BSc degree in Computer
Science and an MBA degree.

Mr. Clement Poon
General Manager and Group Financial Controller

Mr. Poon, aged 48, joined the Bank in January 2003 as the Head of
Financial Accounting Department and was appointed as a General
Manager and the Group Financial Controller of the Bank in December
2014. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
attained a Degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. He is a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and an
Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Poon has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management in the banking industry.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

11



12

SEEkEREEEAB™N

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EEEEAE @®

BRESELL
HBETEREFA B RELE

BRZzz+ - 465 ° 1 20184F 1 A A RIRTT A4
KEREBANBREEE - R TEB®E24F
ANERBRES  EF 20 FRENIBITRSE
¥ WEENRABBFNTAREASEEL
REBTHBANEREEXR - MZ T ARERE
ANBEREBREEREE -

EEEREAE
BEEREEBEELE

F|OEA 5258 0 M2014FMARRITRERSR
REE mitBAEENEEARMERAR
RENERESR  SFRESRBRBERERE
BOIE - ERERRBERAFERBEFRE(E
AR BB RMNFHERSE SRR LB
REBEMBHEEEBRASEBERRATERERE
SRR T -

BIREEE
ABACTE R B S B R VA F E

Bk 4T BERBAETXABETIHER
B8 MRNEAMRABRTIHERRLS
i ° {7 2010 F IMARIRITREE L LI RS A
RERNZTE  HRESAREARITEERR
ERRETZARERREZEB2EE - 2IEE
HAEBAFTREE  T2RERTERRER
REMBE  TEREEETF-

RFERITAR AT 20174 455

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Chan, aged 46, joined the Bank in January 2018 as General
Manager, Group Head of Human Resources Division. Ms. Chan has
over 24 years of experience in the human resources field, of which
20 years are in the banking and financial industry. She graduated
from the University of Strathclyde, U.K., with a Bachelor of Arts
degree followed by a Postgraduate Diploma in Human Resources
Management. Ms. Chan is a Fellow of The Chartered Institute of
Personnel and Development of the U.K.

Mr. Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)
General Manager and Group Head of Compliance

Mr. Wong, aged 52, joined the Bank in 2014 as General Manager,
Group Head of Compliance. Mr. Wong has solid experience in
managing regulatory compliance and providing compliance service,
with many years of experience in the financial services sector and
regulatory supervision. Mr. Wong attained a Bachelor Degree of
Commerce (Accounting) from The University of Birmingham, UK,
a Master Degree of Finance from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia and a Master of Laws Degree in International Corporate and
Financial Law from University of Wolverhampton, UK.

Mr. Frederick Ka-Wai Lau
General Manager and Head of Risk Management and Control

Mr. Lau, aged 47, graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a degree in business administration, and from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a master degree in
business administration. He joined the Bank in 2010 as the General
Manager and Head of Market Risk, and progressed to become the
Head of Risk Management and Control Department within the Group
Risk Division of the Bank. Mr. Lau has over 24 years of working
experience covering mainly risk management and other roles in the
banking sector, and also in regulatory supervision capacity.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Kong, aged 55, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(incorporated in Macau) in July 2012. Mr. Kong has over 29 years
of experience in banking and finance business with other banks in
Hong Kong including Daiwa Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, and had
focused on corporate and institutional banking business management
for the last 12 years in DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited before joining
the Bank.

Mr. Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Yau, aged 55, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Alternate
Chief Executive Officer and Head of Business Development of Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Bank, in September 2012. He was appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB China in December 2014 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in February 2015. Mr. Yau has 30 years of
experience in the banking industry in China and Hong Kong, and had
assumed various senior executive positions in Standard Chartered
Bank before joining the Bank.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are
the provision of banking, financial and other related services. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 22.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$2.60 per share,
totalling HK$161,200,000, which was paid on 20 September 2017.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$7.00
per share, totalling HK$434,000,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW
No business review for 2017 is prepared as the Bank is exempted
under section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance since

it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited for
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown
in Note 38 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,253,000.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS '

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*
Lon Dounn*
Seng-Lee Chan*
Yuen-Tin Ng*
Blair Chilton Pickerell* (appointed with effect from 19 December 2017)
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive and Group Chief

Financial and Operating Officer

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung* (resigned with effect from 19 December
2017)

*Independent Non-Executive Directors

There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for
retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the
date of this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of
Subsidiaries” section which follows this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”) as approved
by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate
and immediate holding companies respectively, eligible participants
may be granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option to
subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise price per option
share is varied by tranches of grant, which is concluded on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares traded
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on the
date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of the relevant shares
traded on the SEHK for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the date of grant. For options granted before the commencement of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the nominal
value of the shares in the capital of DSFH and DSBG had been taken
into account in determining the exercise price per option share. The
options granted can be exercised in varying amounts between the first
and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant in general.

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year which enabled the Directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in its
holding companies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

Directors’ interests in the Schemes during the year are described

below:

(@)  Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option Schemes (the
“Old DSFH Scheme” and the “New DSFH Scheme”)

(i)

(i)

Old DSFH Scheme

The share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), the Bank’s ultimate holding company,
adopted on 28 April 2005 (the “Old DSFH Scheme”)
had expired on 28 April 2015. No further options can be
offered under the Old DSFH Scheme after its expiration
but the provisions of the Old DSFH Scheme remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
exercise of all options granted prior to the expiration of
the Old DSFH Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of
expiration.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Director of
the Bank, had outstanding options granted under the
Old DSFH Scheme and certain options granted to Mr.
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong under the Old DSFH Scheme
were redeemed and cancelled by DSFH and cash
compensation was made to Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong for
the cancellation in accordance with the provisions of the
Old DSFH Scheme.

New DSFH Scheme

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2015, the
shareholders of DSFH approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme of DSFH (the “New DSFH Scheme”).
During the year, no options were granted to Directors of

the Bank under the New DSFH Scheme and no Directors
had outstanding options under the New DSFH Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

(b) Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Schemes (the
“Old DSBG Scheme” and the “New DSBG Scheme”)

Old DSBG Scheme

The share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s immediate holding
company, adopted on 12 June 2004 (the “Old DSBG
Scheme”) was terminated at the annual general meeting
of DSBG held on 27 May 2014. No further options can be
offered under the Old DSBG Scheme after its termination
but the provisions of the Old DSBG Scheme remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
exercise of all options granted prior to the termination of
the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of
termination.

During the year, Messrs. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Gary
Pak-Ling Wang, Nicholas John Mayhew and Eddie Shing-
Tat Lau and Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong, Directors of
the Bank, had outstanding options granted under the Old
DSBG Scheme.

During the year, certain options granted to Messrs. Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong, Gary Pak-Ling Wang and Nicholas John
Mayhew under the Old DSBG Scheme were redeemed
and cancelled by DSBG and cash compensation was
made respectively to Messrs. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong,
Gary Pak-Ling Wang and Nicholas John Mayhew for the
cancellation in accordance with the provisions of the Old
DSBG Scheme.

Messrs. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong and Eddie Shing-Tat
Lau had acquired shares in DSBG during the year by
exercising options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

(b) Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Schemes (the
“Old DSBG Scheme” and the “New DSBG Scheme”) (Continued)

(i)  New DSBG Scheme

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2014,
the shareholders of DSBG approved the adoption of a
new share option scheme of DSBG (the “New DSBG
Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of
the Bank under the New DSBG Scheme and no Directors
had outstanding options under the New DSBG Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Bank or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT
IN RELATION TO THE BANK'’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Bank’s business to which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Bank or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been set out in Note 43 to the financial
statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
The Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
Hon-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to 20 March 2018, being the date of the Report of the Directors of
the Bank for the year, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Sou-Chao (Kenneth CHAN) *
CHAN Wai-Kin Cliff

CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)
CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick

KONG Yiu-Fai (Eddie KONG)

LAU Shing-Tat Eddie

LI Hau-Tak (Gary LI)

Nicholas John MAYHEW

NG Yuen-Tin

POON Clement

POON Wing-Fai Jimmy

SZE Tsai-To Robert

WANG Pak-Ling Gary

WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)
WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

WONG Shou-Yeh David

WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

YAU Ho-Wing Vincent

YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

*

Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
subsidiary(ies) of the Bank.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

21



#HZ= 2017512 A 31 HEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
(LAB® T ILA517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BaE
Note 2017 2016
MEMA Interest income 5,655,685 5,184,080
AEXH Interest expense (1,762,976)  (1,546,323)
BB WA Net interest income 7 3,892,709 3,637,757
R E RASUA Fee and commission income 1,328,752 1,064,411
AR5 E RASZ L Fee and commission expense (276,345) (228,481)
FREERASKA Net fee and commission income 8 1,052,407 835,930
FEERA Net trading income 9 23,136 123,225
=S E PN Other operating income 10 75,245 66,611
EERA Operating income 5,043,497 4,663,523
BiEY Operating expenses 11 (2,528,162) (2,402,958)
HIBR R BB 18 Al 2 & B E T Operating profit before impairment losses 2,515,335 2,260,565
BEHREERE Loan impairment losses 13 (270,882) (563,567)
HNBRETRERBEEEZ Operating profit before gains and losses
Wk EEA 2 EE RF on certain investments and fixed assets 2,244,453 1,696,998
& E M [EE & 2= 2 F &R Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (1,006) (306)
WEYFE AT ERAR F W Net gain on fair value adjustment of
investment properties 136,643 14,365
& B 5 2 F W E Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 280,312 44,062
P N EIRE 2 BIEEE Impairment loss on the investment
in an associate 23 (815,000) -
FE(REE R 2 LA Share of results of an associate 628,449 602,793
FEAE HERIERIEEE 2 ¥ 4E Share of results of jointly controlled entities 22,485 18,593
R4 A a= A Profit before taxation 2,496,336 2,376,505
B8 Taxation 14 (412,653)  (301,098)
A ERAT IR R PR S s F Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank 2,083,683 2,075,407
F28EEF 188 B LMz I ARG A IERE< 2 — The notes on pages 28 to 188 are an integral part of these
ZB5y o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2017F 12 A 31 HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
(LA T 74157~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
FERA Profit for the year 2,083,683 2,075,407
FEHM2E KRS Other comprehensive income for the year
HegtTesmmofERe Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
IaBRMIER ¢ to the consolidated income statement:
= Premises
REEFHBETERBREMZE Reserves arising from reclassification
ZIE of premises to investment properties = 29,928
e EMO EERE Items that may be reclassified to the
WasBRmIER ¢ consolidated income statement:
BHIEE Investments in securities
RN R 2 Pl HEES Fair value gains on available-for-sale securities
NSNS recognised in equity 164,350 297,272
N EU TR T E A i Fair value gain realised and transferred to
HEEHFREHE R income statement upon disposal of
ERE WK available-for-sale securities (280,312) (44,062)
KA S FEEE 2 RIERIE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve 1,874 (49,192)
(114,088) 204,018
HE G IME B TSR Exchange differences arising on translation of
HIRE =R the financial statements of foreign entities 385,150 (363,202)
MR TR IRE < G2 H A Other comprehensive income/(loss)
2HEWE(EE) for the year, net of tax 271,062 (129,256)
NBRBEE 2 FEEERSAE Total comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 2,354,745 1,946,151
FI8EEF 188 B 2 Mz I ARG ARz 2 — The notes on pages 28 to 188 are an integral part of these
2 e consolidated financial statements.
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20174 12 A 31 H As at 31 December 2017

(LAB® T LA517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2017 2016

BE ASSETS
Be RERITHE Cash and balances with banks 17 17,343,673 15,057,913
ERT1E12EAR Placements with banks maturing between

F| HAR9 7 3K one and twelve months 11,856,241 8,430,854
FEEERSENE Trading securities 18 8,837,554 8,871,844
EEUNAFEAEEEES) Financial assets designated at fair value

AR eREE through profit or loss 18 353,347 21,137
TESRITE Derivative financial instruments 19 897,967 1,177,322
%Iﬁ‘éﬁk&ﬁmﬁﬁ B Advances and other accounts 20 126,736,970 120,086,137
AN E Available-for-sale securities 21 38,223,189 32,739,161
FFE R H Held-to-maturity securities 22 6,233,704 10,223,840
/N T&Q Investment in an associate 23 4,134,651 4,253,393
HEZEHFBIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 24 81,157 75,412
kS Goodwill 25 811,690 811,690
EREE Intangible assets 25 58,252 58,640
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 27 2,948,252 3,005,107
SR/ Investment properties 28 1,179,442 964,449
BB IR & A= Current income tax assets 137 1,605
EERTBEE Deferred income tax assets 35 81,492 68,286
EEAE Total assets 219,777,718 205,846,790
= LIABILITIES
RITF K Deposits from banks 2,277,391 2,318,203
TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 19 682,784 1,343,418
HIEEEREMAE Trading liabilities 30 8,668,508 7,748,887
BFEER Deposits from customers 31 162,726,496 154,123,321
BB ITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 32 7,183,706 6,559,976
RIBES Subordinated notes 33 5,487,366 7,146,163
HaeRE RTER Other accounts and accruals 34 6,096,111 3,003,398
BNEAfRIE & & Current income tax liabilities 451,650 159,165
EERITBEE Deferred income tax liabilities 35 86,578 89,069
8E& Total liabilities 193,660,590 182,491,600
ER EQUITY
&N Share capital 38 6,200,000 6,200,000
Hhf#E (BRERE &) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 39 19,018,541 17,155,190
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 25,218,541 23,355,190
EiMERMTER Additional equity instruments 40 898,587 =
Emast Total equity 26,117,128 23,355,190
EnkEEE Total equity and liabilities 219,777,718 205,846,790
BE20 20184 3 A 20 B/ RIRFEZ A o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20

March 2018.

HEHE FEE Hon-Hing Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Ea EELESTE Director Managing Director
F28 B EFE 188 B 2 M ARG M5 HREK 2 — The notes on pages 28 to 188 are an integral part of these
b5 o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2017F 12 A 31 HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
(LA T 74157~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RRITRRELER
Attributable to the shareholders of the Bank
B
BHEMETR
BRA HitfkeE REBAF  Additional BEAE
Share Other Retained equity Total
capital reserves earnings  instruments equity
201751 A1 BE#H Balance at 1 January 2017 6,200,000 1,097,188 16,058,002 - 23,355,190
FERA Profit for the year - - 2,083,683 = 2,083,683
FEHMEERE Other comprehensive income
for the year - 271,062 - - 271,062
VARRHE S 1~ PARR 19 1 7% Provision for equity-settled
B 2 B share-based compensation - 501 - - 501
BITRIMERIET A Issue of additional equity
instruments - - - 898,587 898,587
BIMERMTAZ Distribution payment of
IEEEIA additional equity instruments - - (2,651) - (2,651)
MEZEHNDE Reclassification of properties — = 62,556 - 62,556
2016 FRHRE 2016 final dividend - - (390,600) - (390,600)
2017 R EIIRLE 2017 interim dividend - - (161,200) - (161,200)
2017 €12 A 31 BEEg Balance at 31 December 2017 6,200,000 1,368,751 17,649,790 898,587 26,117,128
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/\‘/ N $_"_ - “: %b%%
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZE20174 12 A 31 HILFE (4) For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)
(LAB® T 74157~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ANERITAR R FE (G i 2
Attributable to the shareholders

of the Bank
AR H RE R Emas
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
20164F1 A1 H&#H Balance at 1 January 2016 6,200,000 1,203,501 14,503,395 21,906,896
FEER Profit for the year = - 2,075,407 2,075,407
FEAEMZEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year - (107,414) - (107,414)
VAR A S2 5 BARR 19 1E A Provision for equity-settled
ERR B B share-based compensation - 1,101 = 1,101
2015 FRHRE 2015 final dividend - - (378,200) (378,200)
2016 4FHh ERRL 2. 2016 interim dividend - = (142,600) (142,600)
20164F12 A 31 H&#% Balance at 31 December 2016 6,200,000 1,097,188 16,058,002 23,355,190
F28EEF 188 B 2 M AN E M HhEz 2 — The notes on pages 28 to 188 are an integral part of these
TR o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2017F 12 A 31 HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
(LA T 74157~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2017 2016
RETFH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
L EE R AR 5 Net cash from operating activities 41(a) 1,523,128 1,741,848
RETBHZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
W g — T E A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 41(b) - (30,825)
BETE  REVEK Purchase of premises, investment
HibEE & E properties and other fixed assets (129,101) (257,473)
& E A [E E B EFT S 5KIE Proceeds from disposal of
other fixed assets 122 138
wEEEFTRAIR & F 5 Net cash used in investing activities (128,979) (288,160)
METBZHERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT EERS Issue of subordinated notes = 1,929,703
1,% BIBER Repayment of subordinated notes (1,660,074) =
TREIMERIE TR Issue of additional equity instruments 897,891 -
SEHE%‘?T??:E%%&%?% Interest paid on subordinated notes
‘K%Zﬂ B and debt securities issued (332,236) (277,626)
k3 BB AR 2 Dividends paid on ordinary shares (551,800) (520,800)
BMEES (FTA) AR FE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (1,646,219) 1,131,277
Eﬁ.ﬁ&%ﬁiﬁﬁlﬁ B Net (decrease)/increase in cash
W) EaE R and cash equivalents (252,070) 2,584,965
FYHREeMERBEIER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 19,621,212 17,149,454
MEREE 7 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 176,466 (113,207)
FRESREFRESIER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 41(c) 19,545,608 19,621,212
F28EHE B WH AR E M ISHRE 2 — The notes on pages 28 to 188 are an integral part of these
o o consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. —RER
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BEBBFELTITE 1085 AR O 3642 ©
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HI/R > WER2018F3 A20 HEE T2 it %
% °

2. FEETHBREE
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BB AR - EBE M FEPTRARE B -

2.1 mEE%E

REBZ RGN BHREIEBEASTMAE ([B
BERMAE ) FMBEH 2B EREAN RS
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RAREBHBREER  BEFTER(ESE
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RIREYME  AREECEREE  KIEEER
BEREEREBRABNEENAFHENER
HEHFTARGNEREERERAR(BEN
ATR) Z2E[MEHAE - WIRAFEIE -

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Everbright Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 20 March 2018.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) designated at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have
a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 January 2017:

° Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses —
Amendments to HKAS 12; and
° Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 7.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in the current period or any prior period
and is not likely to affect future periods. The amendments to
HKAS 7 require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities.

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2017, and have not been early adopted in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. Key changes of the
new standards are summarized as follows:
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B FS R Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.1
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

(1) HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for financial
assets. The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and is expecting the following impacts from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018.

(i) Classification and measurement

The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost and at fair
value through profit or loss will continue with their
respective classifications and measurements upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’s investments in debt
securities currently held in the available-for-sale
(“AFS”) category with a total carrying value of
HK$38.1 billion as at 31 December 2017, the Group
considers that investments amounting to HK$4.6
billion thereof qualify for classification at amortised
cost on retrospective basis. Consequently, the
revaluation deficit of HK$42.6 million relating to
these investments in the investment revaluation
reserve and the associated deferred tax credit
of HK$7.0 million will have to be eliminated on
1 January 2018. In relation to the remaining
investments amounting to HK$33.5 billion, the
Group considers that they satisfy the conditions
for classification as fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and hence there
will be no change to the accounting for these assets.



2.

2.1

FTESHEERE @

mBEXE (@)
(Z2) FKERMAZ FER R 22 FE (4)

M

FARYBERELERF O H(E R
TEM#)

iy SDERFAE@

BAEBRRRAHE S
AR ELRERMELESER
136,300,000 7T 2 # &= 1 35
HRE - ERBUHIREER
B 2 1B AR AN S @ At
BERIEEMAEZERERNUA
FEGEEHEHT AL M
T Wz 2 7 B B [e] ) s 4 42 o
BB S| UG ST BR B E -
EESEAAATEFEEHE
BE AR MEE S 2 B
MR E 2 BRI E G TR
ERNBEEERE  MiEgE
ARV B EREENRRES
HREBEBRERBAF - &
2017 6 - AL SR
SRR M A A 18 25 AR R R
R 2 #% E W= 5252,000,000
VT °

HRFRERAFERERNUR
FEAEEEZHFARELZ
TRAECETRERAEE
TEZEAE  AKESRA
B2 ETRBYEEMZE -
BEREGTENEIWE

MR HERREE)Z M
RERMATE YRR -

B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)

1)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement (Continued)

With respect to the Group’s investments in equity
securities currently held in the AFS category with a
total carrying value of HK$136.3 million, the Group
plans to elect the irrevocable option to designate
all these investments as FVTOCI on transition
to HKFRS 9. This will give rise to a change in
accounting policy as gains or losses realised on
the sale of equity investments classified as FVTOCI
will no longer be transferred to profit or loss on
sale, but will instead be transferred directly from
the investment revaluation reserve to retained
earnings, after adjusting for tax impact. During 2017,
HK$252.0 million of such gains were recognised in
profit or loss in relation to the disposal of AFS equity
investments.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial liabilities
that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss and the Group does not have such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” and have not been changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FESTHBEREBEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
21 wREE%E @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(Z) RERA < FER R FE (4) (b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Continued)
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1)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (Continued)

(i)  Impairment

Under the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model
of HKFRS 9, it will no longer be necessary for a
loss event to occur before an impairment loss is
recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise
and measure either a 12-month ECL or a lifetime
ECL, depending on the credit performance of a
financial asset, changes in circumstances and
outlook. The ECL model applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVTOCI, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. The Group expects that the application of
the ECL model will result in an earlier recognition of
credit losses.

Based on the assessments undertaken to date, the
Group anticipates that if it had adopted the new
impairment requirements at 31 December 2017, the
accumulated impairment loss provision at that date
would increase by nearly 80% as compared to that
recognised under HKAS 39. As a consequence, an
adjustment of approximately HK$530 million and the
related deferred tax credit of approximately HK$90
million, or a net charge of approximately HK$440
million, will be made to the opening balances of net
assets and retained earnings of the Group as at 1
January 2018.

(i)  Hedge accounting

The new hedge accounting rules will align the
accounting for hedging instruments more closely
with the Group’s risk management practices. As
a general rule, more hedge relationships might
be eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard
introduces a more principles-based approach.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

(1) HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” (Continued)

(i) Hedge accounting (Continued)

The Group has assessed that its current hedge
relationships will qualify as continuing hedges upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9 and therefore it expects
that the accounting for its hedging relationships will
not be significantly impacted.

(iv) Disclosures

HKFRS 9 also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature and extent of the
Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in 2018, the year of the adoption of
HKFRS 9.

(2) HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which
covers contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11
which covers construction contracts. The new standard
is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when
control of a good or service transfers to a customer. The
standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

The Group has assessed the impact of this new standard
and expects that it will not have a significant effect on the
consolidated statements of the Group.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to adopt
HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach
which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption
will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

(8) HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised
on the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases. Some of the
commitments may be covered by the exception for short-
term and low value leases and some commitments may
relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under
HKFRS 16.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
Group’s operating leases. The Group has not yet
determined to what extent non-cancellable operating
lease commitments will result in the recognition of an
asset and a liability for future payments and how this will
affect the Group’s profit and classification of cash flows.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. The Group does
not intend to adopt HKFRS 16 before its effective date.
The Group also intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the
year prior to first adoption.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. |dentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an
associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment
loss) identified on acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c)  Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the

income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, except for
subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant
asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition

as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
option) if the following criteria are met:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the assets is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.1 Classification (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.

2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require
adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification (Continued)

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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2.6

2.6.3

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets
are derecognised. Upon derecognition, the gains and losses
previously recognised in equity are reclassified into the income
statement.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the income statement. Foreign currency gains and
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
under “Other operating income” when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the income statement and is reported
as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as
a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the income statement as impairment charge on

held-to-maturity investments.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or
interest;

o Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for
example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

. Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.7

(LA FTh751)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.7

2.8

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(c)  Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if
past due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due
loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial

liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

recognised initially at fair value and are derecognised when the

obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. The bases for the

determination of fair value of financial liabilities are set out in Note
3.5(a).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

@

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It
is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the

characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the statement
of financial position, and the difference between the carrying amount
of a liability and the consideration paid is accounted for as a gain or
loss in the income statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement under
“Net trading income”. For derivatives that are managed in
conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their
fair value are included under “Net trading income — Net gain/
loss arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.
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(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparty.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other
assets”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Bank and major part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding

item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or

remaining period of lease

- Furniture, fittings, Over the estimated useful lives
equipment and generally between 3 and 10 years

motor vehicles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s
share of the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that
entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s
share of the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including
goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial position.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income

within the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

57



B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FEETHBEHBE@

2.19 BHA R IRFEFEIE (#)

EEFBTIREEE M A ENHEERERTE
BRARAEZ EREZRIZA EEER - BTHR
BEANBEPRERREAS KB SIBFRN
HEREEHAEELRJELHARBFERS
BRAZHERERE °

e BT iy 2 22 F) R DA S 8 H 1R B PT RE R IR 2 JERR A
EAE - EINERCEMSHEEANR - BEHIA
EE R T% 2 B0 7% 5 B 1R AT A K 85 R 2K AT 5E
EEZERBANBEERAREE

BRIFEREZR 2 BROAAKERGRZERER
RATREN \ﬁﬂ%‘tﬂﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁé@ F AEBEERKRER
MEBAR BEARRARENEEMEE LY
R RIEHEE -

AREME ZEEHBDREBEBRRZEREY
BB S 2R O WOE AR T (B 2 B A% e T At

et
i B

EBHABAUHOEREZ A VEBBZEER
B TEREESRINR S AERSR - RN
ERREEREFRRERAER -

2.20 EERA
(FF) Bk EF

SHEH-BERHEIEE REEAEHR
FORNEE - FEIZEE—RBBILER
ZEERA - RREFHAAKEEBAF
EEE T o

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)  Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the holding company will issue new
shares to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount
from the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share
capital” account.

(c)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.22 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the

financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

61



62

B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FEETHBEHBE@

225 BEREFEREEAE

RREREEER  HehFERAHLAE BEAR
BABESMEARNIMNGLE  BFERE - R
TREMSEEELES BEERE HHSERKR
BRENERE R AP RERER
ZREHE o

2.26 BIEEREHN

MBERBOREETAERRIEEBEHAREE
RIBEE S KRR B BES R AR S K5
BAXNBEERBABEREBRZEH) - ZFE
BERDRREPETRT  eRBEREGE
BUEREEN BXREMBITEE REH
BEFPBTANEME B ALENRE  RE -
BERIMAOBRRmMRTFEMAL

B ISR ANPAE T B R AR B R R B 75 3%
= o EYMRHERR - ARBEZERABENUARES
BEFTEAFE TR LR  RABBRANEE]
B2 BERMNBRRER R HER 2T ERE
HmE BB ETE -  BUBEREHE LA
ERE T AW -

227 FREEBERIREE

SARBEEERBEEMM AT R ZASE - M
HEERGEREEEHIREAIN . —RHERN
EERREMHZHRMBER - AR BBEIATEE
ERAMBEEMHSIBZREAE  BERRARED
FEERBERME  WAESEAREAEEGS
mAB R °

FABBE TS HIER - B EIEIRKR L B
B REBRMRA A REIEE NGB E IR AT
Ak - B HER AR o

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to cash and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import
duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management
and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated
by the Board oversee and guide the management of different risks
which are more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group
Risk Division (“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk

management and the control environment.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction
of the Group, taking into account of the overall business strategy
and direction, under which a robust Risk Appetite framework is
established to guide the strategic planning process and strengthen
the risk-return management. Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite
framework sets out the types and amount of risk that the Group is
willing to take in order to achieve its business plan. The Group’s
risk appetite metrics are composed of key indicators for measuring
capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is supplemented by a
set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits of the Group. In
order to ensure that business is conducted within our established
risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk appetite
limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis. In this
connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement that
covers four key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility,
solvency and other key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for
the ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite
Statement and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the
Board. Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework and major risk appetite
limits are subject to review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual
basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rate.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the
use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of
these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and
the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates,
hedge period and purpose are determined and documented at the
inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing
basis, based on actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge
relationships that do not meet the effectiveness test requirement
of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect from the date of
ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”)
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the
committees responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio
monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These
committees are all chaired by the Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”) with certain Executive Directors and senior
business and credit officers as members. Credit risk measurement,
underwriting, approval and monitoring requirements are detailed in

credit policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis.
Credits are extended within the parameters set out in the credit
policies and are approved by different levels of management based
upon established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit
exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and
controlled by management, credit committees and GRD. The Group’s
internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits to ensure
compliance with credit policies and procedures, and regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk
of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or
counterparty; and (iii) the amount of impairment allowances.

(i) The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally
and combines general credit analysis and judgements
of credit officers, and is reviewed, where applicable, by
comparison with externally available data. The Group’s
rating scale has 13 grades which are segmented into
three broad rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.3.
Credit exposures migrate between credit grades and
rating classes as the assessment of credit quality on the
borrower and business environment changes. The rating
tool is kept under review and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals not
relating to commercial banking business are monitored
on portfolio basis primarily based on their delinquency
status.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@) Loans and advances (Continued)

(i)  Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both
outstanding exposure and undrawn commitment.

(ili)  The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.

(b)  Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee,
documentary letter of credit, standby letter of credit and
undrawn commitment on legally bound facilities. Their credit
risk is similar to loans except for documentary letters of credit
which are usually short term and self-liquidating and carry a low
level of credit risk and capital charge.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d) Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.
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3.2

3.2.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control

concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or

counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower

or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their

exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are

capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the

overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to

the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All

these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the
GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit rating of
individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are the
respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional
recourse to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements
provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not
expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.

(@ Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

° Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
and accounts receivable;

o Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

° Charges over deposits.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual
loans and advances.
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3.2

3.2.2

323

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.

(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter
into International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement
or analogous master agreement in order to follow the
standardised market practice of close-out netting arrangement
in the event of default or early termination.

Collateral arrangements with most counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these

counterparties.

Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and

derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at

the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under

HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
Deterioration in the value of collateral.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 757K (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and
the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual

account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (ii) assets that are individually assessed but
do not have individual impairment.

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)
covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three
broad internal rating classes.

2017 2016
BEEE NENIERE
B IEEREREE
BoL ERaNsd
Impairment Impairment
EXREBH  allowance EFHKEF  allowance
Aok as a % of Btk as a % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
advances balance advances balance
% % % %
451 Class
1=IER 1 - pass 98.1 0.2 97.9 0.3
2—H5RIEE 2 - special mention 0.8 6.2 0.6 6.3
3— IR IAT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.1 25.0 1.5 27.7

100.0 100.0

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements

2017 2016
FHEERGBERNEEZ Credit risk exposures relating to
EERBRENT : on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
& RIERI TR AR Cash and balances with banks 17,343,673 15,057,913
FIR1T71 212 8 A REHAR TR Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 11,856,241 8,430,854
FEEBERZRNES Trading securities 8,837,554 8,871,844
EEAAFEF=2AHES Financial assets designated at
FFABENECREE fair value through profit or loss 353,347 21,137
PTHEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 897,967 1,177,322
BEERRBR Loans and advances to customers
EAAERRBK Loans and advances to individuals
—EA — Credit cards 3,846,328 4,613,534
—ZBE R - Mortgages 32,877,055 32,224,005
—Hftb - Others 12,455,199 11,557,295
PEER KRB Loans and advances to corporate
entities
—FHER - Term loans 35,673,226 30,862,318
—RIBER - Mortgages 15,338,098 16,216,670
—E5E — Trade finance 9,242,323 8,020,721
—Hft - Others 9,832,429 10,163,322
S Trade bills 4,065,401 4,299,974
Hth &= Other assets 4,091,617 3,008,607
AHEERS Available-for-sale securities
—EE S — Debt securities 38,086,863 32,272,699
R B S Held-to-maturity securities 6,233,704 10,223,840

EREERERIINARZ
EERBRENT :

B ERREMEERBRZ
SREE

BEREREREMEERBZ
HHE

12 431 H

211,031,025 197,022,055

Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet items are as follows:

Financial guarantees and other credit

related contingent liabilities 1,474,181 1,570,209
Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 75,198,549 69,528,743

76,672,730 71,098,952

At 31 December 287,703,755 268,121,007

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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. SRR EBAMEA P OT% A EmER K @R
Jiﬁ§(20165€1 97%)

e (EARKGEREZEFERERBREER
P E S Kk #90.65% (2016 F ¢

1.05%) i &
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit
risk exposure for the Group at 31 December 2017 and 2016,
without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

° 4% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2016: 3%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 97% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2016: 97 %);

o Loans and advances to customers that are either individually
or collectively impaired constituted 0.65% (2016: 1.05%) of the
total loans and advances to customers; and

. 82% (2016: 78%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.
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BEPERRBHBAMT :

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2017 2016
fEae HA K E B R E Neither past due nor individually
impaired 116,279,239 110,340,178
180 HR (B AR E R R E Past due but not individually impaired 2,230,155 2,143,478
&R E Individually impaired 755,264 1,174,209
Pkl Gross 119,264,658 113,657,865
R EZEE Less: allowance for impairment (659,046) (855,755)
SFEE Net 118,605,612 112,802,110
B E R K2R Impaired loans and advances
— ERIRE (FE () — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 755,264 1,174,209
—REREGE(2)) — Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 19,033 21,617
774,297 1,195,826
B Impairment allowances made
— BRI (FE () — Individually assessed (Note (c)) (280,641) (435,210)
— e (E(2)) — Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (17,447) (19,637)
(298,088) (454,847)
476,209 740,979
BFEEHRRAFE" Fair value of collaterals held* 563,247 904,293
BEERRBFIEEFER Impaired loans and advances as a %
LB ERE AL of total loans and advances to
customers 0.65% 1.05%

* ERAAFEDREBERDHEREFRREERS

# 0 MERREEETE °

collateral and outstanding loan balance.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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3.2 FERR®@
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() ERRERERDZEBTAERREEREET
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(2) HFRRERRRBIIEZENGAEEERER
HEVEER RN 2R E B BHRERBBHIORZ
ERRBAR - ZER D25 2 REE TGRSR
BEEFETDERGARBEERN 5D °

(A) ALERREEREZRBEBAERN2A31BE
ZERBEE -

B R B 2 R (B % 5 42 58 /5 659,046,000
7. (2016 4F : 855,755,000 Jt. ) + B 4 ¥ {& 3
A E X 2 % {%280,641,0007% T (2016 4F :
435,210,000 7T ) R ¥zt 6 B AT EHER
2 48R 47 A JE 1% 378,405,000 75 T (2016 4F :
420,545,000/ 7T ) ° fIFE20REEZ AR FER
REHREAMR B (B 2 REEEER -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

Note:

(a) Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

(b) Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

(c) The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$659,046,000 (2016: HK$855,755,000), comprising an allowance
of HK$280,641,000 (2016: HK$435,210,000) for the individually
impaired loans and the overall collective impairment allowances
of HK$378,405,000 (2016: HK$420,545,000) provided on loans
assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the impairment
allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to customers,
and other accounts is provided in Note 20.
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3. UHEREEE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 EERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BEF KRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(FF) #mE A RAEELRES B RN (@) Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired
ERNBREAR EEEEAERIERE The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
& BB E T — AR BRI 52 8.2.3 38 A3 K were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally
EHVERE - assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note
3.2.8.
A (ZERF) %
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities
R EsHE
Credit  RBER At BHER  REER Trade At ait
017F12A31A At 31 December 2017 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
A5 Class:
1% 1- pass 3785173 31,964,692 12,248,742 35225094 14513548 8,607,347 9,172,809 115,607,405
2-KAlEE 2 - special mention - - - 162,926 280,408 129,393 44,487 617,214
3-RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 5,246 2,829 33,580 9,719 2,805 441 54,620
=H Total 3,785,173 31,969,938 12,251,571  35421,600 14,803,675 8829545 9,217,787 116,279,239
A (ZERP) i
Indiividual (retail customers) Corporate entities
fER E58E
Credt  HIEEH iy  FEER  ZREX Trade A At
2016127318 At 31 December 2016 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
i Class:
1% 1- pass 4550265 31446965 11,361,761 30205702 15842478 70204384  9,124360 109915915
-kl 2 - special mention - - - 249,137 42,208 24,642 27,549 343,534
3-RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard o below - 5,438 1,528 8,500 26979 1,148 37,136 80,729
=H Total 4550265 31452403 11,363,289 30553339 15911663 72320174 9,189,045 110,340,178
FERABRKIA TR 2 IRIBEREE B EK Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were assessed as
oz BIRHE &R E RARRE ° not impaired after taking into consideration the value and recovery of
collaterals.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017 7’
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3. HBREBRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FEERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 B REB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(2) BEEREEZ BRZH (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
EA(BEEF) ¥
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities

=ik 5%

Credit — RBEX Ht  BHER  REER Trade A it
017%12A31A At 31 December 2017 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
B ERIUT Past due up to 1 month 37,650 741,399 156,538 9,323 258,296 111,394 391,802 1,706,402
BE1EANE Past due more than 1 month

23fAA and up to 3 months 12,724 111,783 31,828 2,722 118,142 19,912 53,768 350,824
BHIEANE Past due more than 3 months

Z6{2A4 and up to 6 months 6,659 3,950 7,381 866 13,574 1,370 2,392 36,192
RE6EAN £ Past due more than 6 months 4,122 37,481 5 40,578 11,858 21,181 21,512 136,737
At Total 61,155 894,563 195,747 53,489 401,870 153,857 469474 2,230,155
BEERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals * - 893,815 11,442 41,909 400,887 130,824 414358 1,893,235

EA(ZERR) %
Indiividual (retail customers) Corporate entities

iR BoME

Credt  %EBEH i EHER  REEX Trade E At
2016%12 7318 At 31 December 2016 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total
A1 ERINUT Past due up to 1 month 40,002 611,313 145,456 20,430 120,696 7411 632,743 1,644,751
BE1EANE Past due more than 1 month

el and up to 3 months 12,238 98,931 32,328 10,140 40,680 38,420 56,306 289,043
AHIEANE Past due more than 3 months

Z6fHA and up to 6 months 6,539 7478 8,824 - 1,701 26,927 9218 60,687
BE6EANE Past due more than 6 months 4,490 15,483 b - 10,989 54,995 63,035 148,997
A Total 63,269 733,205 186,613 30,570 174,066 194,453 761,302 2,143478
ARG ATE" Fair value of collaterals * - 732,416 4,005 29,98 173,129 172,800 679470 1,791,338
* BHR@BZ AFELRERRERMERER * Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market value of

REBEH  MEPREEME ° collateral and outstanding loan balance.

78 AFRITHER AT 20175 55
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired (Continued)

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated
collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the
particular assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such
collateral is updated by reference to market price or indexes of
similar assets.

(c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
collateral held is HK$755,264,000 (2016: HK$1,174,209,000).

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

AEER-

fIA(SEEF) % {ERIHE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment

B5RE allowances -

BRBEX 2 EHEX  REER Trade At A3t individual

017%12R31A At 31 December 2017 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment

{ERIREER Individually impaired loans 12,554 7,881 198,137 132,553 258,921 145,218 755,264 280,641
FRERR ATE" Fair value of collaterals* 6,861 3,988 142,067 125175 184,241 100,915 563,247

EER-

A (ZEZR) % {ERIETAE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment

ORI allowances -

RS At BEEN  REEX Trade i A3 individual

0165124318 At 31 December 2016 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment

{ERIRE S Individually impaired loans 38,397 7393 278,409 130,941 506,094 212975 1,174,209 435210
REERR ATE" Fair value of collaterals* 38,397 5214 186,282 109,530 405,106 159,704 904,293

* ER Bz A FEDREERATERER
REEEH  MEFPREEME

Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market
value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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3. HBEBRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 B RB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) #2EI3 187 ULEZEHRBH (d)  Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
)y BHREEERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
2017 2016
BHAEER ARRESR
ExaE EnuE
Gross h4%E Gross lapk
amount of BA amount of BOt
overdue loans % of total  overdue loans % of total
AEERFER Gross advances to customers
85w which have been overdue for:
—3fEANLER - six months or less but over
618 A three months 91,458 0.08 188,025 0.17
—6EANEE1E - one year or less but over
six months 126,354 0.11 425,466 0.37
—1EHE - over one year 582,967 0.49 473,646 0.42
800,779 0.68 1,087,137 0.96
(iy BEAREEBRERRBRZREEHRR (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
Fr#s i miE against overdue loans and advances
ERR B ERR HERERE-

KEEHE R B B At g {B R
Outstanding Current  FrA®HG ReEREFH BRABEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other allowances -
loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual
2017512/ 31H At 31 December 2017 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation ~ assessment
BHKEEEPES BT Overdue loans and advances
to customers 800,779 798,711 593,375 207,404 - 258,988
ERREH Efm HEER-
AEREH B Bfm Bfm AtiEE {EI5IHE
Outstanding Current  FAESH  AeAdESn BBFHEEE  Impairment
amount of market Portion Portion not Other  allowances -
loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual
2016%F12 A31H At 31 December 2016 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
AEREEEFERREN  Overdue loans and advances
to customers 1,087,137 1,095,775 839,520 247,617 - 349,070
EEZEHARTIEABEMER - HBYE Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits, mortgages over
N AR AR E A B E B E WA o properties and charges over other fixed assets such as equipment.

80 AFRITER AT 2017 EF R
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3. HBEBRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BFRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(%) #EHEZ (EHE EIEFE L2 8 (e) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
HE) overdue advances shown above
L#8EE 1h#B%E
Batt Botk
2017 % of total 2016 % of total
EEER Advances to customers 344,868 0.29 394,408 0.35
B2 Impairment allowances 1,640 24,982
326 ESEE 3.2.6 Trade bills
2017 2016
B5E% - @ Trade bills which have been overdue for:
—6EARLEE1E - one year or less but over six months 4,397 4,644
—1FUE — over one year 10,868 6,337
15,265 10,981
R2017F 12 A31 H & 2016412 A31H « & As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no trade bills were impaired.

WEZEZRR -

3.2.7 WEIH g 3.2.7 Repossessed collateral
RERFEE 2 WEIEMRIAT Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:
2017 2016
BEMHE Nature of assets
dEEyES Repossessed properties 282,643 131,243
Hfth Others 21,343 6,842
303,986 138,085
e IR @RI ITERFRREE - BRRIER N Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
IER B2 ERARBEER proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.
& 51 7] # I8 48 {8 /565,433,000 7T (2016 £F : Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
58,933,000/ T ) ZHEF B A E T E b4 realisable value of HK$65,433,000 (2016: HK$58,933,000), which had
¥ IAREBRRERBEAMIAREMG ZES T been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
FELAYIRERE RO o ;2K A2 R F29 issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
ZIEMmEE | B INOEIEREHEZCEE - B2 Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note

BB AR LR o 29. The relevant loans had been derecognised.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 EEEE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

328 EHEEF

TRARR 2017 F %2016 F 12 A 31 HiZ
MRS E 2 TR 2 BIEES o

3.2.8 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
agency designation at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

82

BEEE EEN THEERE B2IMRE

PAEEE AYEFE  Available- Held-to-
Trading Designated for-sale maturity CE
201712831 H At 31 December 2017 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA - - 3,429,380 - 3,429,380
AA- £ AA+ AA- to AA+ 8,837,542 - 9,660,897 273,344 18,771,783
A- £ A+ A-to A+ 12 324,918 18,948,907 2,212,136 21,485,973
BIRBERA- Rated but lower than A- - 26,973 3,683,608 772,408 4,482,989
RER Unrated - 1,456 2,364,071 2,975,816 5,341,343
At Total 8,837,554 353,347 38,086,863 6,233,704 53,511,468

HEBEE R AEEERE FERIHEE

féE ATERNE  Available- Held-to-
Trading  Designated for-sale maturity G
2016124318 At 31 December 2016 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA - - 2,536,311 - 2,536,311
AA- £ AA+ AA- to AA+ 8,871,844 - 8,946,344 1,530,009 19,348,197
A- £ A+ A-to A+ - - 15,647,450 2,786,638 18,434,088
BHRBERA- Rated but lower than A- = 20,040 2,746,471 1,873,496 4,640,007
KBTS Unrated - 1,097 2,396,123 4,033,697 6,430,917
At Total 8,871,844 21,137 32,272,699 10,223,840 51,389,520

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2

3.2.9

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure

(@ Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area
which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

2017 & 2016 4F
12A31H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016

EEERMBE Gross advances to customers
—&BB - Hong Kong 95,759,022 90,514,829
=B - China 8,229,210 7,573,907
—RPFg - Macau 13,203,133 12,796,849
— EAth - Others 2,073,293 2,772,280
119,264,658 113,657,865
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(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 FERR®@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 WHEEEERBZEHEEZABRE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HEEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(z2) 7% (b)  Industry sectors
HEERMBE — RTERERARDE Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2017 2016
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEE Industrial, commercial and financial
I E Y - Property development 3,927,651 2,317,648
—EKE - Property investment 14,933,223 15,095,225
— SR - Financial concerns 3,814,050 4,259,982
—RELAL — Stockbrokers 2,141,027 1,804,854
—HBETEZ — Wholesale and retail trade 7,202,373 4,543,621
—BlEE - Manufacturing 1,900,894 2,435,207
— By BB R B - Transport and transport equipment 3,932,189 3,508,563
—R&EE) — Recreational activities 96,881 78,395
—&MBH - Information technology 68,986 74,186
—HAb — Others 4,114,396 5,180,298
42,131,670 39,297,979
fEA Individuals
—BE [EEEEEFE] - — Loans for the purchase of
[FLAZEEREFE] & flats in Home Ownership
[MHEEHEE Scheme, Private Sector
BFER Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 687,074 756,457
—BEHMEE — Loans for the purchase of
YMEER other residential properties 22,988,102 22,230,051
—f=AREXK — Credit card advances 3,613,411 4,377,622
—Hfth - Others 12,308,030 11,092,297
39,596,617 38,456,427
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 81,728,287 77,754,406
BHRE (GE(1)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,766,204 7,723,386
BB AIMERRER Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(3£ @) (Note (2)) 28,770,167 28,180,073

119,264,658 113,657,865
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(®)

Note:

0]

Industry sectors (Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
totalling HK$476,119,000 (31 December 2016: HK$297,335,000)
are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.
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(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
and within the overall market risk controls set by the Bank. The RMCD
of the Bank oversees and controls the market risk arising from the
treasury operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.
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(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

The following descriptions relate to the Bank and BCM.

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and
control market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of

extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of
the market risk factors over an observation period of one
calendar year using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology.
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(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HBREBRERE@m 3.
3.3 miFEE @
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are

reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$2,014,000 (2016: HK$2,468,000).

(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.
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(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

12 months to 31 December 2017

(b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

BZ2017F12A31 BiL12{8 A HZ2016F12 8318112184

12 months to 31 December 2016

¥ E& &IE 4 1) b3

Average High Low Average High Low

SNE R Foreign exchange risk 1,514 2,781 1,096 2,288 2,675 1,782
vilkael Interest rate risk 1,332 2,259 660 989 1,482 461
2HER Al risks 2,014 3,139 1,429 2,468 2,960 1,900
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3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions
and credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are
regularly performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the
Group’s banking book portfolios and manage it against the
established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.
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(LAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries
in Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$6 million higher (2016: HK$11 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$6 million lower (2016: HK$11 million lower).
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(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in its
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate Risk
Management. From an earnings perspective, interest rate
risk is the risk that the net income arising from future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that
may be undertaken and monitor the interest rate impacts
through scenario analysis and stress testing regularly.

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 basis points higher with other
variables held constant, the profit after tax over the next
12 months and the equity would have been HK$6 million
lower (2016: HK$25 million higher) and HK$975 million
lower (2016: HK$632 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity analysis on
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are on the same basis for
both 2016 and 2017.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s
investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed
to other price risks. Consequently, the value of such investments
could change significantly depending on a variety of factors including
liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might affect
individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. HMBEEERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 WEEE @ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 JME R R 3.3.3 Currency risk

TRBT| A EBIR SRS R ASKE[T| L 2 The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and

TREERAE URBEEABRINGEERF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit

BREEREZSHE - commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by
currency.

BT E R ARE 2t G
2017%12H31 8 At 31 December 2017 HKD usD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B e RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 5,308,099 6,948,740 478,444 4,147,710 460,680 17,343,673
ERT1Z 12 A RIS Placements with banks maturing

R between one and twelve months 3,450,072 6,399,502 - 2,006,667 - 11,856,241
RIEEERENES Trading securities 8,837,542 = = 12 - 8,837,554
EEARTEFEAAZY Financial assets designated at

FABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - 353,347 - - - 353,347
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 20,104 791,237 - 643 85,983 897,967
EHEFREAMIRE Advances and other accounts 93,515,383 17,442,918 6,369,553 7,587,738 1,821,378 126,736,970
A EES Available-for-sale securities 5,752,637 32,322,816 631 70,953 76,152 38,223,189
FEIEES Held-to-maturity securities 699,932 2,716,183 2,179,817 592,013 45,759 6,233,704
SREES Total financial assets 117,583,769 66,974,743 9,028,445 14,405,736 2,489,952 210,482,645
af Liabilities
BIER Deposits from banks 183,691 1,861,941 - 229,174 2,585 2,277,391
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 27,637 643,710 = 319 11,118 682,784
HIEBERBMAR Trading liabilities 8,668,508 - - - - 8,668,508
RERER Deposits from customers 114,067,597 20,268,439 9,140,994 13,082,034 6,167,432 162,726,496
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,558,602 625,104 = = - 17,183,706
BIERS Subordinated notes - 5,487,366 - - - 5,487,366
HihiE B kBR Other accounts and accruals 4,270,922 1,246,693 146,403 347,269 84,824 6,096,111
SRBRAH Total financial liabilities 133,776,957 30,133,253 9,287,397 13,658,796 6,265,959 193,122,362
BEEERRAFETE Net on-balance sheet positions ~ (16,193,188) 36,841,490 (258,952) 746,940  (3,776,007) 17,360,283
BEBBRIMFRERRE" Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 31,647,521  (35,477,687) - 199,668 3,740,525 110,027

REAE Credit commitments 69,049,742 4,754,368 665,648 2,056,376 146,596 76,672,730
* BEABRINIEEZR FHETZARNREAE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
INEZBRBR 2 INESRITETANERTF amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which
o are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency

movements.
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B AR R ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

BT e ks ARE Hith =
2016F 12 31 H At 31 December 2016 HKD UsD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
R RERITH Cash and balances with banks 2,991,263 8,201,101 484,011 1,786,324 1,595,214 15,057,913
ERIT1E12 Iﬂ W ik Placements with banks maturing

eE between one and twelve months 2,730,000 3,139,380 - 1,783,549 777,925 8,430,854
FIEEERENES Trading securities 8,871,502 - - 342 - 8,871,844
BEAATEFEAEEY Financial assets designated at

SABRRSREE fair value through profit or loss - 21,187 - - - 21,137
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 20,699 1,145,007 - 485 11,131 1,177,322
“Iﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ B Advances and other accounts 86,941,819 17,293,945 6,367,044 8,856,064 627,265 120,086,137
AfHER Available-for-sale securities 6,048,610 26,275,108 631 198,390 216,422 32,739,161
BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 400,000 6,595,010 2,401,808 540,012 287,010 10,223,840
SREERH Total financial assets 108,003,893 62,670,688 9,253,494 13,165,166 3,514,967 196,608,208
B Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 63,210 1,882,902 - 366,327 5764 2,318,208
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 32,359 1,276,663 - 183 34,213 1,343,418
FIEEEREMAR Trading liabilities 7,748,887 - - - - 7,748,887
BEEHR Deposits from customers 106,834,557 20,535,152 9,613,684 11,426,415 5,713,513 154,123,321
BETNRENE Certificates of deposit issued 4,816,285 1,743,601 - - - 6,559,976
REER Subordinated notes - 5941014 - - 1205149 7,146,163
Hinfk B kTR Other accounts and accruals 1,573,952 981,297 75,867 285,815 86,467 3,003,398
SRARAT Total financial liabilities 121,069,250 32,360,719 9,689,551 12,078,740 7,045,106 182,243,366
BEABRRAREEE Net on-balance sheet positions (13,065,357) 30,309,969 (436,057) 1,086,426  (3,530,139) 14,364,842
BEAERIMNTEER TR Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 25,579,010  (29,168,577) - (166,402) 3,514,048 (241,921)
EEAE Credit commitments 61,894,526 4,953,658 683,772 3,443,879 123,117 71,098,952
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 mWiEEE @ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.34 FEmE 3.34 Interest rate risk

TREFNAER 2 FEE - RABFEAERIR The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
FRHSHETEZEREEBE  WIREFTEX risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and

BekBIH R (ARFEERE) IR -

liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual

repricing or maturity dates.

3EANL 1)L
3f8A EE B5%
HHT Over Over 5ENE THE
3months 3 months to 1yearto Over  Non-interest At

017%12A31 A At 31 December 2017 or less 1 year 5years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 16,413,211 = - - 930,462 17,343,673
ERT1Z12BAREIER Placements with banks maturing

o2 between one and twelve months 5,300,108 6,556,133 - - - 11,856,241
REEERRNES Trading securities 3,162,696 5,662,478 12,380 - - 8,837,554
RENATEEAEEY Financial assets designated at fair

TABRNEREAE value through profit or loss 324918 - - - 28,429 353,347
ik A Derivative financial instruments - - - - 897,967 897,967
BB REMER Advances and other accounts 102,001,151 7,412,034 9,701,725 1,934,467 5,687,508 126,736,970
EHERS Available-for-sale securities 5,295,686 3,890,992 21,735,765 7,159,666 141,080 38,223,189
FR5EES Held-to-maturity securities 2,500,814 2,516,410 1,216,480 - - 6,233,704
SREEAT Total financial assets 134,998,584 26,038,047 32,666,350 9,094,133 7,685,531 210,482,645
=1 Liabilities
H/iTER Deposits from banks 1,679,038 - 586,035 - 12,318 2,271,391
fTheRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 682,784 682,784
HIEEBERENAE Trading liabilties 7,198,678 1,449,608 20,222 - - 8,668,508
EFER Deposits from customers 135,396,166 19,368,226 989,207 - 6,972,807 162,726,496
BEAHERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,157,875 1,486,218 1,539,613 - - 7,183,706
) Subordinated notes - - 5,487,366 - - 5,487,366
Al kAR Other accounts and accruals - - - - 6,096,111 6,096,111
SREEAT Total financial liabilties 148,431,757 22,304,052 8,622,443 - 13764110 193,122,362
NESBEESH (REHE)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (13,433,173) 3,733,995 24,043,907 9,094,133
NEfET RNz EE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,054,355 1,505,421 1,414431 (6,974,207)
NESBEESH (BRE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (9,378,818) 5,239,416 25,458,338 2,119,926
* RN EHBEBENIZREEBBRANEEM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of

BENREEET KRHEMNSBREEEFTA
BURE 2= @R i EATEV A AT A T EA KRR
Ro into to mitigate interest rate risk.

on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMBEBREE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 THiEEE @)
3.3.4 FE &k m)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EANE 1€
3fEA EE 5%
AT Over Over SENE Tt
3months  3monthsto 1yearto Over  Non-interest GH

2016612 4311 At 31 December 2016 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERHES Cash and balances with banks 14,433,181 - - - 6247382 15,057,913
ERT1Z 12/ AR Placements with banks maturing

B between one and twelve months 7,341,451 1,089,403 - - - 8,430,854
FIEEERENES Trading securities 4,931,755 3,880,021 60,068 - - 8,871,844
RENATEEARR Financial assets designated at fair

HABRNEREE value through profit or loss - - - - 21,137 21,137
ITESBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,177,322 1,177,322
FEEFREMER Advances and other accounts 97,353,190 6,756,560 9,903,125 1,798,264 4274998 120,086,137
At ERS Available-for-sale securities 5,852,865 2,797,424 13,324,477 10,293,182 471,213 32,739,161
RHEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 4,066,296 3,147,947 2,809,597 - - 10,223,840
SHEEA Total financial assets 134,178,738 17,671,355 26,097,267 12,091,446 6,569,402 196,608,208
8 Liabiliies
RITER Deposits from banks 793,232 33,358 1,395,828 - 95,785 2,318,203
(TESBTIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,343,418 1,343.418
FEEERENARE Trading liabilties 5,083,167 2,415,765 49,955 - - 7,748,887
RRER Deposits from customers 123049950 23,355,524 1,286,633 - 6,431,214 154,123,321
BEHERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,642,359 1,659,472 1,258,145 - - 6,559,976
kERH Subordinated notes 1,634,220 - 5,511,943 - - 7,146,163
EtbiRE RER Other accounts and accruals 7,650 - - - 2,995,748 3,003,398
SRAEAE Total financial liabilities 134,410,578 27,464,119 9,502,504 - 10,866,165 182,243,366
NEFEERAH (RERE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (231840)  (0792764) 16594763 12001446
MEfTETARZ F2 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 5,677,142 (61,225) 4218879 (10,022,433
M FEERRH (THE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 5,445,302 (9,853,989) 20,813,642 2,069,013
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(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @
3.4 RBESERER
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AN —IEHESRB M TEEEL [FHOE
X | EEBRFRRITBETHBENEZ KR
BMEEEXBRERRESEN AR - 12018
F1A1BEDBERER - Bt - ARITZERR
PUERERSRARE ETEMLUATERE -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standard and to ensure that there is an
adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand a prolonged period of liquidity stress of
not less than a month. The Group adopts the Liquidity Maintenance
Ratio (“LMR”) as a regulatory standard for the supervision of the
HKMA on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period, the Group
had maintained a sufficiently high LMR well above the statutory

minimum of 25%.

In addition, a new regulatory standard on funding liquidity, the Core
Funding Ratio (“CFR”), designed to ensure that banks will fund their
activities with sufficiently stable sources of funding in order to mitigate
the risk of future funding stress, have commenced to phase in since
1 January 2018. In this regard, the Bank’s liquidity management
framework has been enhanced and is well positioned to comply with
the requirements.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the requirements set
forth in the SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision of
Liquidity Risk” and the SPM module LM-2 on “Sound Systems and
Controls for Liquidity Risk Management” revised by the HKMA in July
and November 2016 respectively. The SPM LM-1 is to provide the
approach adopted by the HKMA for supervising and assessing the
liquidity risk of banks while the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement
the liquidity sound principles formulated by the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity
risk management standards of banks.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements
and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including
the LMR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate
limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid
assets are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term
funding requirements. The Treasury Division is responsible for the
day-to-day management of funding and liquidity position while the
RMCD is responsible for the measurement and monitoring of liquidity
risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis, and also conducting
liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial Control Division
(“FCD”) handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk, and
coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR,
budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding management.

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank

market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis
of the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as
well as the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based
on historical observations. The cash flow projections also take into
account the historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including
undrawn lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as
standby letters of credit and guarantees. A liquidity cushion is held to
withstand unexpected shortfall in net cash flow. Eligible securities in
the cushion are mainly in high credit quality and have sufficient market
depth that can be realised within 1 month. Debt securities held are
marked to the market on daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.
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3. WXEERERE @
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

EEER

Asset classes

AEEEL
Eligibility criteria

AR R ZRE

Internal categorisation = Cash to be recognised
F1H 1{E AR

Level 1 Within 1 month

BUT - 228 RBITRAEBMET
Z B S

Debt securities issued by government,

0% [ 20% 7 R tESE

0% and 20% risk weighted
multilateral development banks and
public sector entities

F2M% 1EAR HFERERETZEBES EERAA-ZA L
Level 2 Within 1 month Debt securities issued by non-financial Credit rating with A- or
corporate entities above
MBI AR BRI AE Size of the liquidity cushion
(B&%ET)

(in HK$ million)
NEBHHR Internal categorisation 2017 2016
F1H Level 1 15,870 14,355
F2/ Level 2 10,230 9,793

AEETFEHETENNS - BEERESEAH
B~ — RIS ROt a mE KRR T AR
ERBUEMRRERBZ THER THBEZE -
AEERY —RIARETER  BRELOR
EEHEERRS R ATEBRAEANEHHERD
Rz ABETHER - AREEHEEREZ
FTE - S EERE M B RENREZER
TEERSR TR ZEF (FIETEERHZER
SFRBERFERDGUERBEERELEE)
FETRBARIEZS BFENZZEE I
BEREDARERAR - KERARZRZRA
FRAETEMERBERT RS REBRME
WMREEME=T2RFEE - AEEZIHBA
ARERERXEERL NAEREELREE MR
ENEFRE - AEBZITET AR HRE RIME
BRRNEGH - AKRBZITETARZRHKREZR
SNER DI RAMEAL - WRAKEETET AR
SHFZERMTPER - R mc EFEEE
ZIEERT RS -
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The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help in identifying any emerging risk at early stage. The
Group has formulated a contingency plan that sets out strategies for
dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into

=P AERE A (WEA) 2 FgrER ZEER relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
BfE - end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where
applicable, the earliest callable date.
1EARE
RIEEEDA 3EANL 150
3 months 1 B5E
MEEE  1BAINT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1year Over  fERH it
20175128318 At 31 December 2017 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRERONES Cashand balances with banks 2,129,449 15,214,224 - - - - - 17,343,673
fERT1Z12[AR Placements with banks maturing
ENER between one and twelve months = = 5,300,107 6,556,134 = = - 11,856,241
RIEEERROES Trading securities - 2,594,763 554,397 5,652,032 36,362 - - 8,837,554
EENATEHEEEST Financial assets designated at
TABRNEHAE fair value through profit or loss - 207,137 117,781 - - 28,429 - 353,347
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 250,049 164,185 169,303 95,286 210,144 - 897,967
BEERREMEE Advances and otheraccounts 7,375,087 19,074,016 10835482 16524456 34266957 36,516,527 2,144,445 126,736,970
A EES Available-for-sale securities - 2,088,412 2,882,169 3,890,992 22,060,871 7,159,666 141,079 38,223,189
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,512,316 988,497 2,516,411 1,216,480 - - 6,233,704
BEnmRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4,134,651 4,134,651
AR ERRE Investments in jointly
controlled entities - - - - - - 81,157 81,157
565 Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
EVEE Intangible assets - - - 5 o - 58,252 58,252
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - 5 o - 2,048,252 2,048,252
RENE Investment properties - - - 5 o - 1,179,442 1,179,442
J8REE Current income tax assets - - - 137 - - - 137
ELiREE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 81,492 - - 81,492
BEAT Total assets 950453 40949917 20842618 35300465 57,757,448 43914766 11,498,968 219,777,718
Bf Liabiliies
OB Deposits from banks 45,977 450,519 1,202,023 - 578,872 - - 2,077,391
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 196,414 150,127 150,604 148,339 37,300 - 682,784
HEEERAMER Trading liabilities - 589,376 6,609,302 1,449,608 20,222 - - 8,668,508
BPEH Deposits from customers 67,867,396 32,877,889 41,623,966 19,368,160 989,085 - - 162,726,496
BEONERE Certificates of deposit issued - 849,938 2,262,067 1,976,889 2,004,612 - - 7,183,706
RERK Subordinated notes = = - = 5,487,366 = = 5,487,366
HtbiRR kiR Other accounts and accruals 41,592 1,932,308 716,273 693,317 39,041 - 2,673,490 6,096,111
HEfEaE Current income tax liabilities - - - 451,650 - - - 451,650
EtiRak Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 86,578 - - 86,578
BEaH Total liabilities 67,954,965 36,896,534 52,563,958 24,090,228 9444115 37,300 2,673490 193,660,590
FROMEE Net liquidity gap (58,450,429) 4,053,383 (31,721,340) 11,219,237 48313333 43,877,466 8825478 26,117,128
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3. WXEERERE @
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1EANE
{B3{ERFMAT 3@ANE 180 £
3 months E{fF E5F
HEE  1EAIUT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EGiHAE %

201645124318 At 31 December 2016 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year t0 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
Re RERTNES Cash and balances with banks 1,975,387 13,082,526 - - - - - 15057913
ERT1E12(RR Placements with banks maturing

gl between one and twelve months - - 7,463,765 967,089 - - - 8,430,854
RIEEERRVES Trading securities - 2,602,110 2,706,114 3,469,166 94454 = = 8,871,844
EENATEHEEESE Financial assets designated at

TABRHEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 21,137 - 21,187
fEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - 62,761 153,035 604,064 119,772 237,690 - 1,177,322
ERETREMERE Advances and other accounts 8,246,624 14,898,539 11,842,896 14,926,873 32,248,055 36,375,334 1,547,816 120,086,137
AR HEES Available-for-sale securities - 2,057,565 3,002,212 3,006,572 13,309,842 10,841,757 471,213 32,739,161
BEIEES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,676,029 2,908,307 3,179,324 2,460,180 - - 10,223,840
BENFRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4,253,393 4,053,393
AREHERR? Investments in jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 75,412 75,412

e Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
EVAE Intangible assets - - - - - = 58,640 58,640
MERAMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3,005,107 3,005,107
AN Investment properties - - - - - - 964,449 964,449
SEEEAE Current income tax assets - - - 1,605 - - - 1,605
ELHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 68,286 - - 68,286
BEAR Total assets 10,222,011 34,379,530 28,126,329 26,154,693 48,300,589 47,475,918 11,187,720 205,846,790
af Liabilties
i Deposits from banks 41,180 124,926 730,360 33,358 1,388,379 - - 2,318,203
fTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 90,292 327,153 646,769 189,167 90,037 - 1,343,418
RIEEERRVER Trading liabilities - 550,384 4,732,783 2,415,765 49,955 - - 7,748,887
BFEH Deposits from customers 59,583,891 29,489,959 40,407,315 23,355,524 1,286,632 - - 154,123,321
BEfRENE Certificates of deposit issied - 1,245,281 2,047,083 1,800,467 1,258,145 - - 6,559,976
iERH Subordinated notes - - 1,634,220 - 5511948 - - 7,146,163
EtoiER kR Other accounts and accruals 50,394 1,226,362 701,811 753,021 59,209 2,353 210,242 3,003,398
JEfREaR Current income tax liabilities - - - 159,165 - - - 159,165
EHEEE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 89,069 - - 89,069
BfA Total liabilities 59,675,465 32,727,204 50,780,725 29,173,075 9,832,499 92,390 210242 182,491,600
FratEE Net liquidity gap (49,453,454) 1,652,326 (22,654,396) (3,018,382) 38,468,090 47,383,528 10,977,478 23,355,190
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity, is shown as follows:

1EARE
E3EAGUT  3EAML 10k
3 months EE E5F
PHEE  1EAINT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  SERH it
on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
017F12A318 At 31 December 2017
FEaEn: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
AL ERS Available-for-sale securities - - - 1,363,762 - - - 1,363,762
HEIEES Held-to-maturity securities - 100,000 - 499,032 146,881 = = 746,813
201646124318 At 31 December 2016
ErEpan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
AL E ujj Available-for-sale securities - - - - - = - -
HEEE Held-to-maturity securities - - 100,000 100,000 200,000 - - 400,000

BERABEHRINENAEMZZENFELEYSE
EEREE+THER - ARETHNEBRIKER
7ﬁﬁﬁiﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ¢ﬁ% CHERITME ﬁ:ﬁﬁ
VBRI N E R - MEEC R BT atiR S
MEEN @m@igﬁméﬁaﬂxz g

BEEBENE JHHEI&DA/E\EEE’\JEZZK ZHREIHZ
MERENES  EFEEERDES RERF
$&E$x§bﬁﬁ7¥@f‘ﬂ BRI ERRE -

AEE— BT ERAE=HeREFHEBEEZEE
HES - FEHW%W%%P% BIE N AT e AR
RBESHEREIRAENSE BN ERZEE
AERIISSKRIEABESAES - ALANE
HEBZEERENRENEGHNBRSERANLER
HErRBESHR -

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency

interest rate swaps; and
° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1EANLE
IBATLUT  3MEAME 1€ E
3 months BE Z5%
EEEEDSN or less Over Over 5L E
Up to butover 3 months 1year Over CHI

2017128 31H At 31 December 2017 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FTETERER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 497,583 1,199,612 6,956 585,076 = 2,289,227
EPHER Deposits from customers 101,097,790  42,292518 19,670,382 1,084,506 - 164,085,196
KEEERENAR Trading liabilities 589,500 6,619,127 1,455,349 20,283 = 8,684,259
BEINENE Certificates of deposit issued 672,719 2508622  2336,735 2,160,500 - 7,678,576
(BB Subordinated notes 45,637 57,914 186,762 5,939,817 - 6,230,130
At Other liabilities 1,707,415 396,960 199,364 9,957 47,804 2,361,500
BEAE Total liabilities

(BH3IEA) (contractual maturity dates) 104,550,644 53,074,753 23,855,548 9,800,139 47,804 191,328,888
FETARER Derivative cash flow
BFREE I NE Derivative financial instruments

$BTA settled on net basis (19,658) (20,383) (26,063) (16,598) (721) (83,429)
REBEE /TESBTA Derivative financial instruments

settled on a gross basis
it 5 Total outflow 45,656,870 | | 28,890,070 | | 12,301,692 | | 2,369,387 728917 | | 89,946,936
mABE Total inflow (45,714,184)| | (28,839,295)| | (12,331,812) | (2,144,294) (596,160)| | (89,625,745)
(57,314) 50,775 (30,120) 225,093 132,757 321,191
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

104

(Continued)
1EAMER
SEAIAT  3EAMLE 1 E
3 months E1E B5E
EEDSN or less Over Over 5L E
Up to but over 3 months 1 year Over A%

2016512 A31H At 31 December 2016 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FTETARSER Non-derivative cash flow
B Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 171,310 739,161 57,281 1,388,593 - 2,356,345
EPHER Deposits from customers 89,316,042  41,035364 23,627,830 1,380,074 - 155,359,310
FIEEERGENERE Trading liabilities 550,500 4,737,200 2,423,828 50,327 - 7,761,864
BEINENE Certificates of deposit issued 1,263,992 2,264,701 1,852,694 1,318,939 - 6,700,326
{&EER Subordinated notes 45,801 1,733,232 185989 6,184,172 - 8,149,194
Afhaf Other liabilities 1,154,187 361,757 357,936 9,295 22806 1,905,981
BEAE Total liabilities

(BH3EA) (contractual maturity dates) 92,501,832 50,871,424 28,505,558 10,331,400 22,806 182,233,020
ITETARER Derivative cash flow
RFREENE Derivative financial instruments

$BTIA settled on net basis (8,962) (13,083) (5,249) (11,153) (1,370) (39,817)
REREE /TESBTA Derivative financial instruments

settled on a gross basis
it 485 Total outflow 37,504,889 | | 14,088,014 | | 26,098,609 | | 3,073,949 970,731 | 81,736,192
MABE Total inflow (37,492,892)( | (14,058,105)| | (25,951,105)| | (2,646,157) (651,300)| | (80,799,559)
11,997 29,909 147,504 427,792 319,431 936,633
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

o Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

o Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

o The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

J BBEREENRME 2 BRI - J Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1EHUR 1HUE 5F L L
No later B5F Over &&t
2017§12A31H At 31 December 2017 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
B e Loan commitments 72,796,905 2,284,903 116,741 75,198,549

PR~ A R E SRR

Guarantees, acceptances

and other financial facilities

—ERRERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 734,276 110,629 1,570 846,475
—REREEERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 627,706 - - 627,706
EETFR Forward forward deposits placed - - = =
IR TR I Operating lease commitments 183,946 461,824 233,800 879,570
BAAYE Capital commitments 55,462 - - 55,462
CE Total 74,398,295 2,857,356 352,111 77,607,762

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

105



B FS Rk P ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. UHEREEE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
344 BEEEEXKSIEE (&) 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)
P 140+ 5
No later EhH4E Over B&f
201612 A31H At 31 December 2016 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
EuRE Loan commitments 67,252,494 1,799,476 455,744 69,507,714
ER - AEREMSRARHE Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—ERRERERAZE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 827,652 148,601 - 976,253
—REREEREAE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 593,956 - - 593,956
EHFER Forward forward deposits placed 21,029 = = 21,029
SR BT A ESE Operating lease commitments 186,892 491,600 320,495 998,987
B EIE Capital commitments 62,717 = = 62,717
=xil Total 68,944,740 2,439,677 776,239 72,160,656
35 TRIEEREEZATYE 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(F) RNFEZETE (a)  Determination of fair value
ATFEXRRERESEAARREAEE Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
ﬁ‘ B2 0 hEE A KT 2 Fr 2 12 6 4E held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
cEEEREVERKEERKR %Z,\@ﬁ* control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
/i\ BMTAZHERF - AEARREL for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to
R BE 72 B AN ﬁiﬁﬁ/\ B & hE AT ( ZZIJ the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and
)BT - miGELE R EHHE where appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified
HRA zlzﬁd‘iﬂkz% M o valuers and the valuation results are periodically verified to

ensure the integrity of the fair value measurement process.

eI EZATEDERNMSIERL M The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be

B2EENRGEAETZEFRHFHE received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

BEFMKRBNSKERABEMINZEE T transaction between market participants at the measurement

MBS R EE A B RIE B GE R AWM date under current market conditions regardless of whether

=t that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximises
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example, the
fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts is generally based on current
forward rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived
using appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes
model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises
a gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process

are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the observable and
unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Descriptions

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(®)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

B FS R P ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

E18R EOR F3IR =
201712831 H At 31 December 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AA Descriptions
AATFEFEBHESH:TA  Financial assets at fair value
BaRMeREE through profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading
(B &5 Debt securities - 8,837,554 - 8,837,554
BENAFEFEEH Designated at fair value through
#EABR profit or loss
B E S Debt securities - 353,347 - 353,347
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments
BIEEERR Held for trading - 609,483 - 609,483
BEREL Held for hedging - 288,484 = 288,484
AN E s SREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(EUites Debt securities - 38,082,110 4,753 38,086,863
Bt E S Equity securities 53,387 - 82,939 136,326
BATENEZEERR Total assets measured at fair value 53,387 48,170,978 87,692 48,312,057
M EstE B HE Financial liabilities at fair value
TABRNEREE through profit or loss
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 8,668,508 = 8,668,508
TESRmIA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 503,015 = 503,015
A R{ELH Held for hedging - 179,769 - 179,769
BN EFECABEAG Total liabilities measured at fair value - 9,351,292 = 9,351,292

RERFIGHEEZERMEERIFLTE
BZERBFREFKE - WESREERK
BERFEAENEZRAETR
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(®)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(%) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

BEEE &

value represent the revaluation gains/losses.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying

F1R F28/ ERE A%
2016512 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AAFEAFEBEHEH A Financial assets at fair value
BRNTREE through profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading
BES Debt securities = 8,871,844 = 8,871,844
? EL/( TEFEEH Designated at fair value through
""""" FTABE profit or loss
1% H5 Debt securities - 21,137 - 21,137
TEEBMTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading 24 831,107 - 831,131
A R{EL S Held for hedging - 346,191 = 346,191
AHHEZSBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
EBES Debt securities - 32,267,946 4,753 32,272,699
EEtEES Equity securities 254,705 136,704 75,053 466,462
BATENECEEAR Total assets measured at fair value 254,729 42,474,929 79,806 42,809,464
AR EFEBEZEEA Financial liabilities at fair value
Tiﬁﬁﬁ’]’iﬁﬁ%% through profit or loss
HEEER Held for trading - 7,748,887 - 7,748,887
fTESMTA Derivative financial instruments
HEBERR Held for trading = 875,997 - 875,997
A R{EEH Held for hedging - 467,421 - 467,421
BATEECBERR Total liabilities measured at fair value - 9,092,305 - 9,092,305
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(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.5 SREENEBZAFEH®@ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(A1) KEERFlEGEC2MTIA (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

TR % AN & B B A RO 3R AR A The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair
AFEIRZ eBEERE G ZREEMN values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented
ANYEE - ERBEMHERE  HEATE in the Group’s statement of financial position at their fair
TR (AniE A ) A% B LA & B 5 5 & 8 value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have been
HERZEMITARKRENHNTHNE SR estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
Mt EFREM S - IS ERK the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
REEBTE for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of

investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BREE DNEE
Carrying value Fair value
2017 2016 2017 2016

TREE
B MAERITRAER

FERIT1E12EA A

b lEER

B ERRBR

BEABEREBRR

—fERAF
—RIBE
—Efh
BEERRER

—BHIER
—RIBER

EEMEE
RITER
BEPER
EEITHERE
®REEH

Financial assets
Cash and balances with banks 17,343,673 15,057,913 17,349,413 15,056,840
Placements with banks

maturing between one

and twelve months 11,856,241 8,430,854 11,873,019 8,439,024
Loans and advances to

customers

Loans and advances to

individuals
— Credit cards 3,846,328 4,613,534 3,846,516 4,613,724
— Mortgages 32,877,065 32,224,005 32,876,990 32,223,970
- Others 12,455,199 11,557,295 12,453,232 11,562,909

Loans and advances to
corporate entities

— Term loans 35,673,226 30,862,318 35,679,923 30,864,563
— Mortgages 15,338,098 16,216,670 15,337,054 16,217,109
— Trade finance 9,242,323 8,020,721 9,242,085 8,020,483
- Others 9,832,429 10,163,322 9,830,132 10,155,470
Trade bills 4,065,401 4,299,974 4,083,687 4,325,745
Held-to-maturity securities 6,233,704 10,223,840 6,220,714 10,233,982

Financial liabilities

Deposits from banks 2,277,391 2,318,203 2,267,672 2,318,874
Deposits from customers 162,726,496 154,123,321 162,854,003 154,213,964
Certificates of deposit issued 7,183,706 6,559,976 7,194,809 6,565,994
Subordinated notes 5,487,366 7,146,163 5,653,318 7,298,495
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the held-to-maturity category. Fair value of
held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

(v)  Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

o To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
to other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based
on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented
by the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is
filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

As Basel Ill has become effective from January 2013 in Hong Kong,
DSB is required to meet three ratios, namely, the Common Equity
Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against
risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum of these
three ratios starting from 1 January 2015 are set at 4.5%, 6.0%
and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In order to
comply with HKMA’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-
5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank is required to set
further buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum
regulatory capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements,
internal assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under
the Pillar Il capital requirement. In addition, the capital conservation
buffer, countercyclical capital buffer and higher loss absorbency
(“HLA”) capital requirements introduced by the Basel Committee
have been implemented since 1 January 2016 in Hong Kong. In line
with the international standards, the HKMA also adopts the phase-in
arrangements for new capital requirements in relation to the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio, capital buffers and HLA
capital requirements as set by the Basel Committee and will achieve
full implementation by 1 January 2019. Likewise, the Leverage
Ratio that forms part of Basel lll implementation becomes a Pillar 1
requirement from 1 January 2018, and relevant information has been
submitted by the Bank for regulatory monitoring.

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s

financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(@ Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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4,

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories as of the
end of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. The Group has concluded that there are no objective
or specific indications that any of its available-for-sale and held-
to-maturity securities is individually impaired as at 31 December
2017.

(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments
would therefore be measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for
compensation to certain customers who had bought structured
investments distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the
Group need to be recorded in accordance with the requirements
of HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the
information relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood
and estimated amount of outflow of resources which may be
incurred to settle the obligation after considering factors such as
recent settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(e) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of
the value in use is based on a discounted cash flow projection
which contains certain assumptions derived from management
and observable market information. This estimate is subject
to application of management judgment and is sensitive to
assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate
disposal.

As at 31 December 2017, management’s estimate of the value in
use is lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ.
As a result, the carrying amount of the Group’s investment in
BOCQ at 31 December 2017 has been written down by HK$815
million (2016: Nil).
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5. FABRITHBURRARRFERE

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

ERITRA AR R R Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12A31H
As at 31 December
2017 2016

BE ASSETS
& RERITH LR Cash and balances with banks 16,029,073 14,396,911
FRIT1IZE12AR Placements with banks maturing

B HRR)F 5K between one and twelve months 11,306,932 7,496,761
FEEERENES Trading securities 8,837,554 8,871,844
EENAFE 2B EEE) Financial assets designated at

IAERNEREE fair value through profit or loss 324,918 =
PTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 897,967 1,192,932
BZEERREMRE Advances and other accounts 106,670,881 101,578,174
A HEES Available-for-sale securities 38,185,718 32,544,420
B2 HES Held-to-maturity securities 1,374,003 5,490,046
NG Investment in an associate 1,213,057 1,213,057
HEESEBIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
MEARIRERER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 3,782,008 3,740,110
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 2,438,529 2,513,139
BEME Investment properties 1,124,194 990,811
BEEEH Total assets 192,204,834 180,048,205
=L LIABILITIES
RITIER Deposits from banks 4,758,708 4,393,221
TESRMTHE Derivative financial instruments 685,109 1,342,970
FHEEEREMERE Trading liabilities 8,668,508 7,748,887
BEFR Deposits from customers 137,421,933 130,875,283
BEEITIERE Certificates of deposit issued 7,483,676 6,559,976
BREER Subordinated notes 5,487,366 7,146,163
HibiRE RFER Other accounts and accruals 5,571,615 2,649,823
BT IE & & Current income tax liabilities 404,681 109,148
REFRIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 81,782 73,953
=L =i Total liabilities 170,563,378 160,899,424
ER EQUITY
%N Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
& Other reserves (including

(BIEREBERF) = (F) retained earnings) Note (a) 14,542,869 12,948,781
BREES Shareholders fund 20,742,869 19,148,781
BEIMERMTER Additional equity instruments 898,587 =
EEast Total equity 21,641,456 19,148,781
EEREEE Total equity and liabilities 192,204,834 180,048,205

ZEEN 20184 3 A 20 B #E/E R IRFERA -

HEH FHSA
EF BFE

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20

March 2018.

Hon-Hing Wong
Director

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director
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5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

s

(%)

it

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Note:
RIBITRAEBESD (a) Reserve movement of the Bank
BB RER
R 2 i REEAF
TEEMfRE REEHRE Reserve for (&)
Premises Investment —REE Share- Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General based Earnings ait
Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
20171 A1H At 1 January 2017 233,100 352,613 693,304 10,257 11,659,507 12,948,781
AN EES 2 N ERE Fair value gains on
RERRATER available-for-sale securities
recognised in equity - 252,079 - - - 252,079
AT ARG E & Fair value gain realised and
EHEERERERENER transferred to income
statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (246,975) - - - (246,975)
BRESHEEZE ZELHE  Deferred income tax on
movements in investment
revaluation reserve - (931) - - - (931)
BREENAETERRE Reserve arising from
EWA 1z reclassification of premises
to investment properties - - - - - -
MAIRIES (S AR A R B Provision for equity-settled
B2 Bt share-based compensation - - - 385 - 385
FIMERMTA L Distribution payment of
T FIE additional equity instruments - - - - (2,651) (2,651)
FEREF Profit for the year - - - - 2,143,981 2,143,981
2016 AR, 2016 final dividend - = = - (390,600) (390,600)
2017 EHREIRE 2017 interim dividend - - - - (161,200) (161,200)
201712831 H At 31 December 2017 233,100 356,786 693,304 10,642 13,249,037 14,542,869
Note:

RIRITANEERBTLAERREBT B HRELRITA
PASNZ SARIRME R R - #ERr ik BB R i (R T RO
P IRTT RAHTIRTT (R E)) I RFTA B BRITEED
RABREEERENZ AHMEERTE - ZEERERR
ARETERRZ FRELSHE  EEREBEIESARETES
EREITHR  WERNEEREBAFRE -

R2017F12 A31 8 - ARITEIEE 1,427,215,0005 7T
(2016 4F : 1,398,250 7T ) 2 S RIERE B R T
HizE —BHE  fEBNLERSRERFFIEE

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,427,215,000 (2016: HK$1,398,280,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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\ IRSERARMTEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA F7Tiz51)7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ZARBITHBMRRRRFEEES @)

it ()
() ARITHEZE (B)

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(@) Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)

DA AT
e () A REAN
TESMhEE RESHEE Reserve for (7F)
Premises Investment —MEE Share- Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General based Earnings A%
Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
20161418 At 1 January 2016 203,173 121,332 693,304 9,356 10,850,498 11,877,663
AREEEF 2 AT ERS Fair value gains on
RERRATER available-for-sale securities
recognised in equity - 324,507 - - - 324,507
AFERRNEEAHHE Fair value gain realised and
EHERERERZEER transferred to income
statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (44,062) - - - (44,062)
BRESHEEZE CELHE  Deferred income tax on
movements in investment
revaluation reserve - (49,164) - - - (49,164)
REENDRTERRE Reserve arising from
EWA 1z reclassification of premises
to investment properties 29,927 - - - - 29,927
MARIES (S AR A R B Provision for equity-settled
B2 Bt share-based compensation - - = 901 = 901
FREN Profit for the year - - - - 1,329,809 1,329,809
2015 FAR RS 2015 final dividend - - - = (378,200) (378,200)
2016 Fr AR5 2016 interim dividend - - - = (142,600) (142,600)
2016 F 12 A31H At 31 December 2016 233,100 352,613 693,304 10,257 11,659,507 12,948,781

RERITER AR 2017FF %




6. EXSHEB|E
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B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, is determined on the basis of personal banking,
commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking business.
Operating performances are analysed by business activities for local
banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking
business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales
and investment services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

o Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under

other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. =EEDERE @)

IRENAREM S - HAUERRARSER D
BZREEP - Em&RBEA - BEZEZHN
ERNE: MAoRZENESERRESERMA
EENBRAMESKAR - B2RMSHNE 2 8B
BREFHIEESTDE - DEEZRZIKIER
FTEZFREF=EXZFZRBHFERE - DA
RZ WA HREARAEE - E THREF
ETIMERT - AR EREE2017 FRRLEED
ARBEMERAEBEEB QR ZENTFRD
BREZNE -

FIETRN B EERXBBEERNABNDED
B MERAXREBPFEX KBRS IEE
BREAZBERRTEEMDEEERA - DEE
MR DA RER ° TR B DR EZDIE -
EmMEAPIZEREDRX - AERERX
2R THEMI BT -

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Certain comparative
amounts have been revised to conform to the changes in the grouping
of intra-group deposits on internal organization responsibility for
operating performance adopted in 2017 by management on the

review of segment performance.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.



B R R ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. EXJERET@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

BZE2017F12H31 ALLEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EART BERT BMRT EER
Personal ~ Commercial BEEE  Overseas At Inter- @it
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHEMA/(2i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,637,358 1,167,235 604,619 544,865 (61,368) - 3892709
FHEMA/ (FiH) Non-interest income/(expenses) 835,271 190,153 (76,222) 137,343 64,243 - 1,150,788
EEIA Total operating income 2,472,629 1,357,388 528,397 682,208 2,875 - 5,043,497
BB Operating expenses (1,441,850) (454,262) (155,733) (482,273) 5,956 - (252,162
NRRE(EE)/ B Operating profit before impairment
LEER (losses)/written back 1,030,779 903,126 372,664 199,935 8,831 - 251533
EE(ER)/ B Loan impairment (losses)/written back (219,092 (54,228) - 2,438 - - (270,882)
MERE(E8)/ERE Operating profit after impairment
L EEET (losses)/written back 811,687 848,898 372,664 202,373 8,831 - 2244453
HERENEREMEREAE Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
BRAATERE 2R (BR)/ & adjustment of investment properties
and other fixed assets (36) (302) - (658) 136,633 - 135,637
HEMHLERS T hE Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - 100,677 33,337 146,298 - 280,312
BENmRE NEER Impairment loss on the investment
in an associate - - - (815,000) - - (815,000)
ElBERA EE Share of results of an associate - - = 628,449 = = 628,449
ElEERIEGEE 5 Share of results of jintly controlled entties - - - - 22,485 - 22,485
ikl Profit before taxation 811,651 848,596 473,341 48,501 314,47 - 2496,33%
REH Taxation expenses (133886) (140,018 (78,101) (20,391) (40,257) - (#1265
RhE R Profit after taxation 677,765 708,578 395,240 28,110 213,990 - 2,083,683
HEN1TE12A31BILEE For the year ended 31 December 2017
NERBEER Depreciation and amortisation 68,946 14,405 6,358 39,470 52,575 = 181,754
R2017E12 4317 At 31 December 2017
PREE Segment assets 47048470 58,264,178 76,464,789 36,485,129 6,091,356  (4,776,204) 219,777,718
PEER Segment liabilities 96,100,034 37,301,046 18335487 28208303  18491,924  (4776,204) 193,660,590
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. BEDEIRE @)

HZE2016F12 A31 HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EDN:iSh TR MR EIEE
Personal  Commercal BIA%HK  Overseas 2 Inter- izt
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHERA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1543802 1287593 427,016 500,803 (71,457) - 3637757
FEHSRA/ (%) Non-interest income/(expenses) 630,589 179217 87,058 116,491 12,451 (100) 1,025,766
BERA/(BB) Total operating income/([oss) 2174391 1,416,870 514,074 617,204 (59,006) (100) 4,663,523
BETH Operating expenses (874217)  (420,031)  (144798)  (462,560) (1,452) 100 (2,402,958)
IREE(BE) /B Operating profit/oss) before
LEERT/(BR) impairment (losses)/written back 800,174 996,839 369,276 154,734 (60,458) - 2,260,565
BHRE(BE)/ & Loan impairment (losses)/written back (260,201)  (351916) - 48,550 - - (563,567)
RRE(ER)/ERE Operating profit/(loss) after
LEERT/(BR) impairment (losses)/written back 539,973 644,923 369,276 203,284 (60,458) - 169,998
HERENFREMETEER Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
ANTEARZF (BR)/ it adjustment of investment properties
and other fixed assets (104) - - (186) 14,349 - 14,059
HEMHLERS 2 FhE Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - 13,219 - 30,843 - 44,062
BENTRELNAER Impairment loss on the investment
in an associate - - - - - - -
EIBENA EE Share of results of an assoclate - - - 602,793 - = 602,793
EhiREEE 28 Share of results of ointly
controlled entities - - - - 18,593 - 18,593
Bt ana Profit before taxation 539,869 644,923 382,495 805,891 3,321 - 2376505
B () /E Taxation (expenses)/credit (89.047) (106412 (63,112) (43,248) 721 - (301,098)
iteval Profit after taxation 450,822 538,511 319,383 762,643 4,048 - 2,075,407
HE2016512 431 HLLER For the year ended 31 December 2016
MEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 64,704 13,148 5,949 35,822 51,965 - 171,588
R2016%E12 4318 At 31 December 2016
HREE Segment assets 46,561,760 54,664,156 69,352,142 35258558 4,538,100 (4,527,935 205,846,790
PRk Segment liabilities 86,449,648 36320735 18848415 26533708 18,867,029 (4,527,935 182,491,600
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B F Rk P ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA FThz51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,
with major products and services including deposit taking, extension
of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered

to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

services to external customers.

B 5 B[
EEREAM Inter-
Hong Kong P segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZE2017512A31 A For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2017
2 A Operating income 4,589,570 453,927 = 5,043,497
RALAD R A Profit before taxation 2,207,127 289,209 - 2,496,336
R2017E12H31H At 31 December 2017
BEAG Total assets 202,180,603 20,890,338 (3,293,223) 219,777,718
BEA Total liabilities 178,792,606 18,161,207 (3,293,223) 193,660,590
BREEREE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 551,275 = 869,942
BEN-EEVES Contingent liabilities and
commitments 82,665,576 2,304,555 (109,242) 84,860,889
& 32,53 T ]
184
BB REA Inter-
Hong Kong oA segment et
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZE2016512 A31H For the year ended
HFE 31 December 2016
2 A Operating income 4,238,219 425,304 = 4,663,523
R A Bl A Profit before taxation 2,156,393 220,112 - 2,376,505
2016412 A31 8 At 31 December 2016
BEAG Total assets 188,564,732 19,602,001 (2,319,943) 205,846,790
aEAs Total liabilities 167,826,139 16,985,404 (2,319,943) 182,491,600
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 551,663 = 870,330
BEN-EEES Contingent liabilities and
commitments 78,461,648 1,684,413 (109,018) 80,037,043
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T ITA57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. FRAEWA 7. NET INTEREST INCOME
2017 2016
FEWA Interest income
& RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 408,383 293,434
BHRE Investments in securities 1,008,713 810,125
ZEERMEMER Advances and other accounts 4,238,589 4,080,521
5,655,685 5,184,080
FE X H Interest expense
RITER BEEXR Deposits from banks/Deposits
from customers 1,378,659 1,232,184
BEITHTRE Certificates of deposit issued 103,666 75,116
BEER Subordinated notes 238,612 226,842
Hh Others 42,039 12,181
1,762,976 1,546,323
MEWABE Included within interest income
RARFEFEHEEHE Interest income on financial
FFABENEREE assets not at fair value
2K BHA through profit or loss 5,612,287 5,165,638
MEXZHEE Included within interest expense
RARFEFEHEEHE Interest expenses on financial
FABSNERIEE liabilities not at fair value
Z B H through profit or loss 1,723,493 1,532,086
REZE2017F %2016 F12 A31 HILFE @ WE For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there was no interest
wmRERMEEEZFEHA o income recognised on impaired assets.

128  KERITARRATE 20174 F5R



8. FRBBERAZWA

B AR ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2017 2016
RIS ERASWA Fee and commission income
RUAAFEFZBEE Fee and commission income
TABENeREERARBZ from financial assets and liabilities
BRi% & RASBA not at fair value through profit or loss
—EEEEZREENES — Credit related fees and commissions 161,151 151,334
—EFHRE — Trade finance 84,787 73,596
—=RFR — Credit card 339,119 295,806
HAb AR & RAEKRA Other fee and commission income
—FHFLLE R — Securities brokerage 125,207 81,749
—{RERSHE R H AL — Insurance distribution and others 231,365 129,210
—TERE RV EEIERE - Retail investment and wealth
management services 251,840 213,759
—RITIRBERFES - Bank services and handling fees 73,474 69,459
— H AR & - Other fees 61,809 49,498
1,328,752 1,064,411
BREERASIH Fee and commission expense
RARFEFEEHE Fee and commission expense from
AABEMeREERAGZ financial assets and liabilities not
AR & MAe S H at fair value through profit or loss
—FEBLES - Handling fees and commission 255,163 208,835
—EBfNEMmiREER — Other fees paid 21,182 19,646
276,345 228,481

AEERE=TTRHEHEE - Xt EXEEEK
BEERY - REUREASORAZEEL T
BEEUEHBEHRRA -

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9. HEEWA 9. NET TRADING INCOME
2017 2016
INEBEEF (F518), et Net (loss)/gain arising from
dealing in foreign currencies (18,816) 79,708
FHIEEBERZNES OF N Net gain on trading securities 8,367 6,153
FEEERENITETRE 25 a Net gain from derivatives
entered into for trading purpose 29,429 34,158
RBAELHRREeR T2 Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
Flas(E518) instruments subject to fair
value hedge 6,453 (1,424)
EENAFENEZBHEB T ABEMN Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
SRIEZFKe(EE) instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss (2,297) 4,630
23,136 123,225
10. HbZEWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2017 2016
A HEFHEE 2 R EMA Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
— FTHRE — Listed investments 12,534 11,696
—JELETRE - Unlisted investments 8,539 8,081
WEYFE 2 A WAL Gross rental income from
investment properties 28,281 23,745
E WA Other rental income 13,474 12,227
Hfth Others 12,417 10,862
75,245 66,611

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k



B RS ER AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

11. EEXH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2017 2016
EE S REN = (MEE12) Employee compensation and
benefit expenses (Note 12) 1,698,022 1,562,325
TEREMEEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
TEENE expenses, excluding depreciation
—1TEMASSE - Rental of premises 184,092 181,348
—HAth — Others 146,980 158,506
e (fsx27) Depreciation (Note 27) 181,366 170,423
BE RIS ESR S Advertising and promotion costs 76,790 85,695
ENfRY ~ SR R B E Printing, stationery and postage 48,076 44,497
EREEEHER (Mist25) Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets (Note 25) 388 1,165
Z SRR EN & Auditors’ remuneration 9,717 7,778
Hity Others 182,731 191,301
2,528,162 2,402,958

12. EEFMEERNXEH

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES

2017 2016
FHREMASER Salaries and other staff costs 1,579,873 1,465,851

PARRAD A EL T SR B B TR 1% Provision for share-based
(PftzE44) compensation charged (Note 44) 21,295 5,083

BRETH Pension costs — defined

— REHREE contribution plans 96,854 91,391
1,698,022 1,562,325
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. EXRRERBRE

13. LOAN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2017 2016
BHEHERKEMR B REREE Net charge/(reversal) of impairment losses
SRR (28 on advances and other accounts
—B5FE — Trade bills 5,328 5,677
—EPFPER - Advances to customers 264,099 567,755
—EETFEREMARE - Accrued interest and other accounts 1,455 (9,865)
270,882 563,567
FHEER R EALR BRERE Net charge of impairment losses on
IR advances and other accounts
— & RIFFE — Individually assessed 91,066 239,346
SR - Collectively assessed 179,816 324,221
270,882 563,567
ERBEE Of which
— ¥IE R EEINERE - new and additional allowances
(BERENEEMEZ25) (including amounts directly
written off in the year) 485,704 706,806
— B % - releases (151,710) (88,644)
e — recoveries (63,112) (54,595)
270,882 563,567

RFEBITARAT) 201 7F F 5k
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B FS Rk P ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA FTh751)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2017 2016
REERIA - Current income tax:
—BBEH - Hong Kong profits tax 374,987 251,516
—BINEIR - Overseas taxation 45,600 40,191
—RBTFETR2EE — Under-provision in prior years 126 1,821
EIERIIE (M 5E35) Deferred income tax (Note 35):
—AREREERENEE KB - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (8,060) 7,273
—F R EE - Utilisation of tax losses = 297
I8 Taxation 412,653 301,098

REERHANGEMN 2 HIRB IR GFE &R RINE
FER R E 2 BREGEAT ¢

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2017 2016

B 51 B g A

TBREEBFSHE16.5%
ATEZFIE
TRIBAZRER
HERZ TR =X

EREB WA

TREFRA S th

IABL IR ETE 2 2 B2 DR
HEEHER X8

ERBEREREANRBER

REEFENR ZEE
IR

Profit before taxation 2,496,336 2,376,505

Tax calculated at Hong Kong

profits tax rate of 16.5% 411,895 392,123
Tax effects of:

Different taxation rates in

other countries 1,064 7,074
Income not subject to taxation (60,525) (16,442)
Expenses not deductible 171,912 19,053

Results of associates and jointly

controlled entities reported net

of tax (107,404) (102,531)
Utilisation of previously

unrecognised tax losses (4,415) -
Under-provision in prior years 126 1,821
Taxation 412,653 301,098
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

15. EEME 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2017 2016
L8 Directors’ fee 1,707 480
e FE - BEYH&S REAZRL Salaries, bonuses, housing, benefits
in kind and other allowances 114,276 106,956
PARRAD A E TR SR BN A 2 Share-based compensation payment 64,923 3,727
RNEFIF B2 B EH% Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,461 2,668
183,367 113,831

REFNINFELER  WERASEEFETE
MERARS - RHRAEH  ERRRITAEF —
FRABITZESHESEEEERBEEXF
7= (2016 4F « %) -

REZE2017F12 A31 BILFE - WERTAESE
MEETEARITREHBAREEEE 2 HMAR
TS SRR E BB (2016 FF « £) ©

ANERN - TESMRIPBEHZ BN G TFES
T 0 4 L EER =R AR AS T 1R B8 = 7 S A Bl S A
fEIRAE (2016 4F : ) o

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank was a party and in which
a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2016: Nil).

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in
respect of directors’ other services in connection with management of
the affairs of the Bank or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and
no consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services during the year (2016: Nil).

16. IRE 16. DIVIDENDS
2017 2016
BEIRFHRE - BREER2.6/87T Interim dividend paid of HK$2.6
(20164 : 2.3/&7T) (2016: HK$2.3) per ordinary share 161,200 142,600
BRERBARE  SREBKR7.08T Proposed final dividend of HK$7.0
(20164 : 6.3/ 87T) (2016: HK$6.3) per ordinary share 434,000 390,600
595,200 533,200
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B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2017 2016

R& MIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 2,046,748 1,912,219
BRI EHER Money at call and short notice 15,296,925 13,145,694
17,343,673 15,057,913

18. FEFEEABRNBHZREEURF
EHIBEHSEHTARENEME

18. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

E OR LOSS
2017 2016
FHIEEERSMFES ¢ Trading securities:
BFES Debt securities:
—&B LM - Listed in Hong Kong 97,672 104,751
—3E L — Unlisted 8,739,882 8,767,093
RBIEEERRNESER Total trading securities 8,837,554 8,871,844
EENATEFZEESE Financial assets designated at
FFABRNEREE ¢ fair value through profit or loss:
BEEES Debt securities:
— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 28,429 21,137
—3EEm - Unlisted 324,918 -
EEN AT EGE AHEEHTA Total financial assets designated
ExlEmEERE at fair value through profit or loss 353,347 21,137
HIEEERRMESFRIETE Total trading securities and
AT EFEBEESHA financial assets designated at
BEmemEEERE fair value through profit or loss 9,190,901 8,892,981
BETEBIESFNE : Included within debt securities are:
—BEEZ®R(ZRELER) — Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 1,122,876 2,148,217
—HipER & - Other treasury bills 7,677,149 6,678,945
—BiES - Government bonds 37,529 44,682
— H b BT A IR B THENS - — Other debt securities issued by:
— b3 - Corporate entities 353,347 21,137
9,190,901 8,892,981

R2017F &2016F12 A31H @ il EEEH
BN ARAFEFEZ EHEFEHRATERERF
BEHEE -

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no certificates of

deposit held included in the above balances of trading or fair value

debt securities.
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(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. fTEE€®MT A 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
R2017F 12 A31 BREBZITET A HEE The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
Re REAFEWT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2017 were as follows:
B4/
EESHE AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE af
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HIEEERGZITETIA 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SNETET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RERBEEY Forward and futures contracts 82,495,665 581,964 (479,218)
AR HINE DR Currency options purchased and written 12,675,402 7,543 (7,536)
Z)FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FEHE Interest rate futures = = =
iy Interest rate swaps 2,385,852 16,002 (9,965)
AR = Interest rate options purchased and written 676,566 479 (2,801)
A) BmtiTETLR c) Equity derivatives
AR H A Equity options purchased and written 176,360 3,495 (3,495)
FEEERBZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (BB A held for trading 98,409,845 609,483 (503,015)
2) BfEHRARZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
F) IEEN L FEH 2 T4 A a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ME Interest rate swaps 26,856,746 288,484 (179,769)
Eitkiaia Currency swaps = = =
FEH AR ZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(8f) A held for hedging 26,856,746 288,484 (179,769)
ERRZITESRTIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(8f) A assets/(liabilities) 125,266,591 897,967 (682,784)
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B RS ER AR M L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

R2016F 12 A31 BRI ZOTET A HNEE The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
Re REAFET : and their fair values as of 31 December 2016 were as follows:
&8/
2 AEE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BE
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HIEEERGZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SNETET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRBEEN Forward and futures contracts 73,340,752 601,383 (621,858)
AR HINE DR Currency options purchased and written 22,298,022 225,081 (224,946)
Z)FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
MEHE Interest rate futures 15,509 24 -
iy Interest rate swaps 3,567,199 3,829 (28,379)
AR = Interest rate options purchased and written = = =
A) B tiTETLR ¢) Equity derivatives
BARE R 1 A Equity options purchased and written 98,752 814 (814)
FEEERBZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (BB A held for trading 99,320,234 831,131 (875,997)
2) BfEHRARZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
F) IEEN L FEH 2 T4 A a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ME Interest rate swaps 27,306,206 346,191 (277,155)
et Currency swaps 1,205,962 - (190,266)
FEH AR ZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BE) A held for hedging 28,512,168 346,191 (467,421)
ERRZITESRTIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(8f) A assets/(liabilities) 127,832,402 1,177,322 (1,343,418)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. FTEERMIAE W

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

EERS HARS -
Trading Hedging Total
ZELE Notional amount 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ERAH Exchange rate contracts
RELHERY Forward and futures contracts 82,495,665 73,340,752 - - 82,495,665 73,340,752
Eisi Currency swaps - - - 1,205,962 - 1205962
HNEHEESH) Foreign exchange option contracts
—BANESE - Currency options purchased 6,314,320 11,144,137 - - 6,314,320 11,144,137
—BiINEE - Currency options written 6,361,082 11,153,885 = - 6,361,082 11,153,885
95,171,067 95,638,774 - 1205962 95171067 96,844,736
FEaH) Interest rate contracts
RERAEAN Forward and futures contracts - 15,509 - = - 15,509
pilpech Interest rate swaps 2,385,852 3,567,199 26,856,746 27,306,206 29,242,598 30,873,405
M= GRS Interest rate option contracts
N il - Options purchased 338,283 - = - 338,283 -
—hIEE - Options written 338,283 - - - 338,283 -
3,062,418 3,582,708 26,856,746 27,306,206 29,919,164 30,888,914
Efnad Other contracts
ERltEEa D Equity option contrats
N il - Options purchased 88,180 49,376 - - 88,180 49,376
—JatHE - Options written 88,180 49,376 - - 88,180 49,376
176,360 98,752 - - 176,360 98,752
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19. FTEERMIAE W

FRRFAREERI L E8FHGEE R 2
B212A31REEAFARINAB MEERBINE
2ER 0 27T

B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures as at 31 December, before taking into account the effect
of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group entered into, are as

follows:

2017 2016

XRG4 Exchange rate contracts
BN EEAR Forward and futures contracts 655,196 572,073
B3 Currency swaps = 2,412
5 A JNE B Currency options purchased 216,154 384,954

FMEEH Interest rate contracts

Fl =37 HA Interest rate swaps 145,926 175,128
F == 2R Interest rate options 2,171 =
EME4 Other contracts 7,862 3,388
1,027,309 1,137,955

BETEZANBREESERBESHRNRS
B I IRKRERBEER -

EERBRINERBELN2EFELEREL Z(R
TEERN)RAIMABEZEE - sFEMABZH
BARTIRXZHF RERESORHFERE -

ARG EIET AN E2.9KE

752 BB A AR R B 20 2 A (B A 2R
BIEEER R EYRIBER 2 FHEE - A
EEBBELFREEITABZHBOHBRETERAR o
i T A 7 Wz A 45,785,000 78 7T (2016 4F IR
% £3384,193,000 4 7T ) ¥R IE B FE (4 3 5 &
¥ 2 /518 4 39,332,00078 7T (2016 F : E 18 A&
385,617,000/ 7)) ° ILFHEE 2R 2
[BAFES BRI A 2 F ke HiE )
pq °

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period, they do
not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities
by fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The gains
on the hedging instruments were HK$45,785,000 (2016: gains of
HK$384,193,000). The losses on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk were HK$39,332,000 (2016: losses of HK$385,617,000).
The net impact is disclosed in “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. BREERKHEMERE

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2017 2016

BEABERRBK
—fEAF
—RIBE R
—Hft

EEERRBR
—BHIER
—RIBER
—HZRE
—Hft

K RER
— (AR
— A THE

BH5EE

B+ R
— AR

H A& E (fzE29)
R REEE

— ERIEFE
— At

BEERFEMRE
B R

— (AR
— A THE

RFEBITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

Loans and advances to individuals

— Credit cards
— Mortgages
— Others

Loans and advances to corporate entities

— Term loans

— Mortgages

— Trade finance
— Others

Gross advances to customers

Less: impairment allowances

— Individually assessed
— Collectively assessed

Trade bills

Less: impairment allowances
— Collectively assessed

Other assets (Note 29)

Less: impairment allowances
— Individually assessed
— Collectively assessed

Advances and other accounts

Impairment allowances
— Individually assessed
— Collectively assessed

3,846,328 4,613,534
32,877,055 32,224,005
12,455,199 11,557,295

35,673,226 30,862,318
15,338,098 16,216,670
9,242,323 8,020,721
9,832,429 10,163,322

119,264,658 113,657,865

(280,641)  (435,210)
(378,405)  (420,545)

118,605,612 112,802,110

4,065,401 4,299,974

(14,229) (14,578)

4,051,172 4,285,396

4,091,617 3,008,607

(10,093) (9,351)
(1,338) (625)

4,080,186 2,998,631

126,736,970 120,086,137

(290,734)  (444,561)
(393,972)  (435,748)

(684,706)  (880,309)




B RS R AR ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. BREERKREMERE @)

() RFERRBFLESEECFHIEE (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
HBER B HWIRX and advances to customers and trade bills

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(2 — (B B FF A

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

REEX Hitr &t
Mortgages Others Total

BAERRBRBEEEZEE Movement in impairment allowances on

loans and advances to individuals

201641 A1 AHksh Balance at 1 January 2016 218 4,560 4,778
WERE (B18) ek Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (459) 1,442 983
ReEBEERMHE Loans written off as uncollectible - (1,789) (1,789)
WEIBAEEMEZER Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 496 1,412 1,908
BE 5, Jo H fth % Exchange and other adjustments - (94) (94)
2016412 A31H At 31 December 2016 255 5,531 5,786
20171 A1 BR &k Balance at 1 January 2017 255 5,531 5,786
EEERE Impairment losses charged 2,728 1,618 4,346
ReLEREFMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible - (1,849) (1,849)
WEIBREFME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 353 1,445 1,798
B 5, e H fth Exchange and other adjustments - 113 113
2017%12H31H At 31 December 2017 3,336 6,858 10,194
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. BREERKREMERE @)

(R ZERFEFRRBFIRESEE 2 HEE (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

142

HBERBE YRR @ and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
REEE - RETE
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
kS REEX Hity &t
Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBHRE Movement in impairment
EHE2EH allowances on loans and
advances to individuals
2016 F1 A1 B Balance at 1 January 2016 27,068 28,502 59,793 115,363
REBBRE(EE) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 58,739 (10,423) 183,726 232,042
ARALIER SRR Loans written off as uncollectible (70,858) - (195,600) (266,458)
WEIE AT FMsE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 14,536 - 21,545 36,081
B 5, e H At A% Exchange and other adjustments - (1,331) (155) (1,486)
201612 A31 H At 31 December 2016 29,485 16,748 69,309 115,542
20171 A1 BE &R Balance at 1 January 2017 29,485 16,748 69,309 115,542
REBBRE/(25) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 41,827 (7,672) 154,899 189,054
ReEBEERMHE Loans written off as uncollectible (63,730) - (186,921) (250,651)
WEIE A EFMEZ ER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 16,628 - 25,389 42,017
B 5, o H fth Exchange and other adjustments - 885 21 906
201712 A31H At 31 December 2017 24,210 9,961 62,697 96,868
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. BREERKREMERE @) 20.
(F) EFERRBIREZEBoHEE (a)

(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

HBERBE YRR @ and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
AEESRE - B RIFHE
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHEX EomE
Term BBER Trade Hith &t
loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERREH Movement in impairment
REEE22E allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
20161 A1 BA& s Balance at 1 January 2016 99,438 306 171,597 51,834 323,175
R EEERR Impairment losses charged 61,368 1 152,823 33,067 247,259
REEEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (37,814) - (87,500) (31,063  (156,377)
WEBEREEMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 4,303 - 5,788 6,514 16,605
B % R E A% Exchange and other adjustments (287) - (951) - (1,238)
201612 A31H At 31 December 2016 127,008 307 241,757 60,352 429,424
201741 A1 BR& R Balance at 1 January 2017 127,008 307 241,757 60,352 429,424
REBERE/(25) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 38,991 16 (4,424) 52,124 86,707
ReEEEF MER Loans written off as uncollectible (106,176) - (82,655) (77,209) (266,040)
WEBEREFHE L ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 2,907 - 8,111 8,203 19,221
B R E A Exchange and other adjustments 773 - 362 - 1,135
2017F12 831 H At 31 December 2017 63,503 328, 163,151 43,470 270,447

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

143



144

B FS Rk P ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. BREERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBIREZEBoFEE (a)

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

BER B HERR @ and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
REERE - RE T
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEX EomE
Term BBEER Trade Hith &t
loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERRBN Movement in impairment allowances
REEE22E on loans and advances to

corporate entities
20161 A1 BR& & Balance at 1 January 2016 87,740 29,968 52,058 81,844 251,610
R EEERE Impairment losses charged 35,844 32,482 12,320 11,164 91,810
RELBEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible = = = (19,449) (19,449)
WEBEREEMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 1 1
BE 5 R B 5% Exchange and other adjustments (2,866) - (680) (845) (4,391)
201612 A31H At 31 December 2016 120,718 62,450 63,698 72,715 319,581
20171 B 1 BM&E SR Balance at 1 January 2017 120,718 62,450 63,698 72,715 319,581
REBE (E&)/RE Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (3,318) (12,591) (644) 6,602 (9,951)
RecEREFTMIHTE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (17,404) (17,404)
WEBREFHE L ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 76 76
B R E 3R Exchange and other adjustments 2,609 - 232 623 3,464
201712831 H At 31 December 2017 120,009 49,859 63,286 62,612 295,766
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20. BREERREMERE @)

(2) BetFEREMIRE 2 BIRERAIRE
HEREX

B FS R P ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
accrued interest and other accounts

EsREREMERR
Accrued interest and
other accounts
WEEE—- BEEE-

AR 18 B 31

Impairment Impairment

allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
assessment assessment

FEE RS R E AR E
REER 28

2016491 A1 BHAE&
BEEEREE(2#)
Ve 5 I E At A=

201612 A31H
201791 A1 BH&E &
VERIEN Spi=bacid

BEE 5 Ko EL At o 2K

2017512831 H

Movement in impairment
allowances on accrued
interest and other accounts

Balance at 1 January 2016 256 19,585
Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 369 (8,896)
Exchange and other adjustments - (1,338)
At 31 December 2016 625 9,351

Balance at 1 January 2017 625 9,351

Impairment losses charged 713 13
Exchange and other adjustments - 729
At 31 December 2017 1,338 10,093
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. BREERREMERE @)

() BEEEFERRBR REHERE
IBRINTE -

EFEFRLBFEREREREMERAARENR
ERMZEBAAMEETEP 2REBIREF
o ANRBABRAREERRFEZE - U@
EREZHEEE -

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

(c) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset
at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

2017 2016
KREEMERE 2 BUER Gross investment in finance
1EEE - lease receivables:
1E AR Not later than 1 year 2,531,333 2,537,523
1FUAEESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 3,457,711 3,400,897
5 Later than 5 years 585,546 952,999
6,574,590 6,891,419
BERE 2 RBEZ Unearned future finance income
BEUA on finance leases (501,982) (580,817)
MEREREFHE Net investment in finance leases 6,072,608 6,310,602
BMEREIREFE L The net investment in finance
DITEAR ¢ leases is analysed as follows:
1FE AR Not later than 1 year 2,317,423 2,322,326
1FAEESF Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 3,241,872 3,167,869
5 Later than 5 years 513,313 820,407

R2017F 12 A31H @ FalMsER SR ELE
WAL EERFIREE (2016 F : ) -

R2017F12 A31H  AEE 2 EZRBEEER
FEAAWE z g E T SRR EBE A
31,923,000 7T (2016 F : 49,665,000 7 7T) °

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

6,072,608 6,310,602

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2017 of the Group
amounted to HK$31,923,000 (2016: HK$49,665,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21, AItHERES

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

2017 2016
BRES Debt securities:
— BB L™ — Listed in Hong Kong 14,538,680 14,390,816
— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 17,654,181 13,928,043
—3EETh — Unlisted 5,894,002 3,953,840
38,086,863 32,272,699
SRS Equity securities:
—&BEm - Listed in Hong Kong 53,387 254,705
—JEm - Unlisted 82,939 211,757
136,326 466,462
A EFAFARE Total available-for-sale securities 38,223,189 32,739,161
BIEEEKESFANE Included within debt securities are:
—FENERE — Certificates of deposit held 1,363,762 =
—BEZR (ZRHALER) — Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 1,999,211 1,899,588
—HMBEEER — Other treasury bills 5,760,110 5,462,256
—BUNES — Government bonds 192,197 238,910
—HEME%ES — Other debt securities 28,771,583 24,671,945
38,086,863 32,272,699
A EEFIRE TS Available-for-sale securities
HRIAMTIT : are analysed by categories
of issuers as follows:
— RIS e R R ERAT — Central governments and
central banks 7,951,518 7,600,754
— RNEIE - Public sector entities 639,637 603,533
—RIT R E M B - Banks and other financial
institutions 7,672,393 3,549,923
— b — Corporate entities 21,957,188 20,982,498
—HAh - Others 2,453 2,453
38,223,189 32,739,161
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(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22. KEIWPRS

22. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

2017 2016
BRES Debt securities:
— BB L™ — Listed in Hong Kong 1,751,107 3,167,081
— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 1,028,787 3,731,661
—3EEm — Unlisted 3,453,810 3,325,098
6,233,704 10,223,840
BREEEBESFNE : Included within debt securities are:
—RBENERE - Certificates of deposit held 746,813 400,000
—BEEE — Treasury bills 2,179,817 2,401,808
—BRES - Government bonds 574,061 523,290
—HMEKES — Other debt securities 2,733,013 6,898,742
6,233,704 10,223,840
R R R B AF IR LT Held-to-maturity securities
HEERI ST : are analysed by categories
of issuers as follows:
— FR R Je R R R AT - Central governments
and central banks 2,753,878 2,925,098
—RTT R E M S s - Banks and other financial
institutions 1,714,336 2,615,100
— b3 — Corporate entities 1,765,490 4,683,642
6,233,704 10,223,840
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23. MENFRE

B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2017 2016

EIEEEFE
mE

kR - BEERE
— {5 FF

Share of net assets
Goodwill

Less: impairment allowances

— Individually assessed

4,605,028 3,908,770
344,623 344,623

4,949,651 4,253,393

(815,000) =

4,134,651 4,253,393

2017 2016

1H1H8
FEIERR IR AR
FEIERRIRIR I B B A R

REE SN
(B R TR

EHER

12 431 H

R2017FE 2016 F12 A31 A& AR ZEE

At 1 January

Share of results, net of tax

Share of investment revaluation
reserve, net of tax

Dividend received

Impairment loss charged

Exchange differences

At 31 December

4,253,393 4,099,217
628,449 602,793

(99,739) (12,623)
(151,271)  (142,741)
(815,000) -
318,819 (293,253)

4,134,651 4,253,393

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

BRI December 2017 and 2016:
FEH R & E it B FEEK bR A DL
28 Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of interest
Name and operation activities in ownership
2017 2016

BEHRT(EERIT]) hEE AR AFE #R1T
Bank of Chonggqing (“BOCQ”) People’s Republic of China Banking 14.66% 14.66%
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(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. BENTFKRE @) 23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
(FF) EERITZREVKER (@) Selected financial information of BOCQ

EERTZEATEET2EHE12A318 - #E
20174 2016412 A 31 B IFFEHR - A&E
REZ 201712 A31 H 201612 A31 H It

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group included
the results of BOCQ on the basis of financial statements made up to

150

12 A 2 BHREREBEERRITZIER °

the 12 months to 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

2017 & 2016 &

12831 H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
EEFRTZREREENARER Selected balance sheet
information of BOCQ

& KA RIBITH AR Cash and balances with central banks 52,412,531 47,605,944
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Due from other banks and

financial institutions 44,349,012 61,942,010
206,356,752 163,220,318
191,094,750 133,780,297

12,518,750 8,319,650

Loans and advances to customers
Other financial assets
Other assets

Total assets 506,731,795 414,868,219

Due to other banks and

financial institutions
Customer deposits
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities

66,848,482 67,106,331
286,115,962 255,294,063
106,350,264 60,709,871

8,510,019 5,280,585

Total liabilities 467,824,727 388,390,850

Total equity 38,907,068 26,477,369
Less: Preferred shares issued (5,884,389) -
Less: Non-controlling interests (1,807,896) -

Total equity attributable to

ordinary shareholders 31,214,783 26,477,369

Reconciliation of BOCQ'’s total shareholders’ equity to the carrying
amount in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements

The Bank’s share of total

shareholders’ equity 4,577,571 3,882,841
Add: Goodwill and fair value

adjustment at acquisition 372,080 370,552
Less: Impairment (815,000) -
Carrying amount 4,134,651 4,253,393
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23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

BIE12A31 BIEEE
For the year ended
31 December

2017 2016

EERTZRBEKSRER Selected income statement
information of BOCQ

R B Net interest income 9,395,380 8,939,604
FRTSE RASUA Net fee and commission income 1,945,112 2,242,665
EREEER Loan impairment charges (3,472,330) (2,807,537)
TEREHER Depreciation and amortisation (213,131) (198,885)
TIAX Tax expense (1,309,385)  (1,346,454)
FE R A Profit for the year 4,358,059 4,077,942
HAth 2 E Other comprehensive income (677,908) (183,636)
EHE =B Total comprehensive income 3,680,151 3,894,306
BREEFRITRE Dividends received from BOCQ 151,271 142,741
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(LAS¥F7TA1%51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. HEQATRE @)

(2) REZBERRRR 2017 FRE 2R
=1

R2017F12 A31 8 ' AEBEEEERITZEE
ZAFEERREEEALNS0EA - Al - A%
EREHEERRITZRE ZREBEETRENR
ARG ATUR Bl £ 58 o RIEF 2016 6 K 2 BI#EST
ZEHE  RESBEWTEASRREE - WE

BEARLH AN EEREEMERE < EERTT
AR EEEMZIRE ZREE - EREEBEIRR
ERELEZEERTRNIMARBEES K&
REBBERRITHHAMRHAZBR R EEFER
LRI FEE  ERAMARERE
BRGE - RARNEREEAECHARTIZE
AR ARTISER ERRITRAKAMEE

ETERABEAEASHZREZATRE £
- AKBZRAEEBRREETSEMLE
ERRAEFRAEEREEZIL2HEE - AED
AEHARMFZ BB ERTT 2 &IER K H TR
EERITAREKABBEZTPHREHATERE -
EHEEBRRTZARRERETTEETIEEE
E2 A -

ANEEF2017F 12 A 31 B 2K ETTRFINRE
AR - RAELHERZERABEREERMAAME
A =G ERR & M E E 2 AT E € FR R AR
M {E © #32815,000,0008 7T 2 M ETIE * £
BEEAEEHE2017412 A31 BIEZ45E 2
BA e Bt AEBESERITZIREN2017
F12 A31 A 2 REEDFEZE 4,135,000,000 7%
T YA EEMN 2017 12 A 31 B Z A& A
W [El S 58 o
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23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2017

At 31 December 2017, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
BOCQ had been below the carrying amount for approximately 50
months. On this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment
test on the carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the
recoverable amount. Based on the assessment conducted in 2016
and before, the recoverable amount was assessed as higher than the
carrying amount, and no impairment needed to be recognised.

The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (‘VIU’) calculation,
with the carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses
discounted cash flow projections based on management’s estimates
of BOCQ’s earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the
estimated probable exit value in future after considering the growth
of BOCQ and its net asset value for the medium and longer term.
The discount rate applied to the VIU calculation was estimated with
reference to BOCQ'’s cost of equity, which is publicly available in the
market.

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.

The latest impairment test performed by the Group for the position
as at 31 December 2017 concluded that the recoverable amount, as
determined by the VIU calculation and after considering all relevant
factors and valuation assumptions, is lower than the carrying amount,
and an impairment charge at HK$815 million has to be recognised,
which has been included in the consolidated results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017. As a result, the carrying amount
of the Group’s investment in BOCQ at 31 December 2017 has been
written down to HK$4,135 million, which is the recoverable amount at
31 December 2017 assessed by the Group.
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24, HEZEHERRKRE 24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
2017 2016
JE LR - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FE(E U BE 1% A 1% Share of post-acquisition reserves 61,157 55,412
81,157 75,412
2017 F %2016 12 A 31 HAY L EZEH| E 4840 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
I 2017 and 2016:
LA ZEDL
& fH it 2 FEERRLE I Percentage of
8 Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
IREFIEIR B R A A BB REER - B
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
IREFEERR AR BB RIED X BH
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
R SRARAT B8 BIERER - BB
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
FESRBEIR AR AR 2 B ARITIHFAE - MR The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
=t AR A A IR S B AR A 7 iR BHER Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
ERAFIZEEMBAR - Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium

Holding Limited.
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25. BENRELEE

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BORR EFBE
& BVEE Bl EE
BYEE Core  Customer
HE Contract deposit  relationship [k &it
Goodwill  intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
KA Cost
2017F1 18R At 1 January 2017 and
2017512A318 31 December 2017 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2iERE/ 4 Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2017F1F1A At 1 January 2017 - 26,499 80,583 70,389 - 177,471
FREH (MEE11) Charge for the year (Note 11) - - - 388 - 388
2017512A318 At 31 December 2017 - 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 177,859
REE Carrying value
20176128 31H At 31 December 2017 811,690 - - - 58,252 869,942
Y EPBE
af B AE B AR
BRAE Core  Customer
mE Contract deposit  relationship i ait
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
KA Cost
2016F1 A18 R At 1 January 2016 and
20165 12A 318 31 December 2016 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2iERE/ 4 Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
20161 51H At 1 January 2016 - 26,499 80,583 69,224 - 176,306
ERE L (1) Charge for the year (Note 11) - - - 1,165 - 1,165
20165124318 At 31 December 2016 - 26,499 80,583 70,389 - 177,471
REE Carrying value
2016512 A31H At 31 December 2016 811,690 - - 388 58,252 870,330

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a
diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of
indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.

20161231 HK 2017412 A 31 H
At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017

BIERIT B ASRIT BIMRIT
Commercial Personal Overseas &5t
Banking Banking Banking Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
JRFT Macau - - 493,023 493,023
196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

HEESFERENR  HHBRBFTE 2ERAE
BEMEEZHCELBEMNADIRSE - ZaTHIE
RemEERABMGES - 5FEFHE 2 FRR
> B RIRAISF SR B AR R F IR E
%ﬁﬂ%siu&ﬁmtoasﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁ
BABERNHEUBHERCEEBN XK RZE
TSR TE RIS AN BB VBN 2 ST b FTAR & - FTAE
FA 2 B3R 2R Th i BN AN 52 [ 2 & AN AR I S
#11.3% (2016 4F : 11.2%) °

PSR EEIT R ERF T ERA2RBREERR
5 2. 3% Tt Al B F#E B 2R 2 LA P HA AT 81 2 78 Rl
A BUABEIEFH R R 2% HEBI 55 F B E K
iR FTERZBNIRE A211.3% (20164 : 11.2%)
TR ERNANEE 2 EARK A IR Fa 2 -

AEEIEAERRHE R ZRERE 2016
FE)-

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital at 11.3% (2016: 11.2%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 11.3%
(2016: 11.2%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2016: Nil).
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26. MiEAT

#2017 12 A31 B - ART2EEHBATMD

I

DEEHE

Name of company

26. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2017:

FTEER

Principal activity

{3t
Place of
incorporation

BRTEBRRE
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital

RHFTERIT (R E) AR AR

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
RPIBERITRHBRAR

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
RETREERFR A

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited
RIEFEARAE

Dah Sing Nominees Limited

Dah Sing Properties Limited
RETEHBRAR
Dah Sing Securities Limited

DSB BCM (1) Limited

DSB BCM (2) Limited
RETEAGAR AR
Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited

DSLI (1) Limited

CWL Prosper Limited
ZEUBARRAA
OK Finance Limited

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited
BRENL (BE)BRAR

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited
HEREBRAR

Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited

Wise Measure Limited

Reliable Associates Limited

Talent Union Holding Limited

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

R17

Banking

R17

Banking

R
Insurance broking
I8 AR
Nominee services
REZR
Investment holding
EHEE
Securities dealing
REZER
Investment holding
REZR
Investment holding
BEX

Inactive

mE¥

Inactive

MERE

Property investment
W&

Money lending
mE¥

Inactive

3

Inactive

MERE

Property investment
MERE

Property investment
MERE

Property investment
MERE

Property investment

i ARANME

People’s Republic of China

i

Macau

BB

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
REBRAES
British Virgin Islands
HBRLES
British Virgin Islands
BB

Hong Kong
REBRAES
British Virgin Islands
BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
REBRAES
British Virgin Islands
HBRLES
British Virgin Islands
REENEHS
British Virgin Islands

RMB1,200,000,000

MOP225,000,000

HK$200,000

HK$100,000

HK$9,998

HK$10,000,000

HK$1

HK$1

HK$20

US$1

US$1

HK$1,000

US$1

HK$450,000,000

HK$20

US$1

US$1

us$2
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BORPIEERITIRGB AR AR (H22% i
fDSB BCM (1) Limited &2DSB BCM (2) Limited
BRI LAERRIEARRITEZEEEHRS ©

BORPIERRITROBR AR - RFTRT (P )
BRAR K £t 5 BHE R & LASNE M A LK) 2 7]
S B ARIEBRBRE °

R ERTT (R E) BRA BN 200847 BEHEA
HEEMAAL - ERBEH EARAMBE 2R M
BIBERAR] (BHEE  HEIRMAZERY
&) -
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(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2)
Limited, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.
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27. TERHMEEEE 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS
FH
RERRE
Furniture,
equipment
{TE  and motor S5t
Premises vehicles Total
HZE2016F12 A31 HILFE Year ended 31 December 2016
FHREFE Opening net book amount 2,475,568 396,019 2,871,587
i Additions 90,496 137,481 227,977
EFD IR EMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 93,920 - 93,920
BN BRTERREME Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (7,176) - (7,176)
& Disposals - (444) (444)
FrEZ W (FEE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (56,309) (114,114) (170,423)
fERER Exchange difference (6,932) (3,402) (10,334)
FARREFAE Closing net book amount 2,589,567 415,540 3,005,107
201612 A31H At 31 December 2016
B Cost 2,918,373 975,367 3,893,740
RIETE Accumulated depreciation (328,806) (559,827) (888,633)
BRTEFE Net book amount 2,589,567 415,540 3,005,107
BZE2017F12H31 ALLEE Year ended 31 December 2017
FHREFAE Opening net book amount 2,589,567 415,540 3,005,107
i Additions - 129,101 129,101
BN BRTERIREME Reclassification from premises to
investment properties (15,793) - (15,793)
& Disposals = (1,128) (1,128)
FESH (KsE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (58,726) (122,640) (181,366)
EHZE=R Exchange difference 8,831 3,500 12,331
FREREFE Closing net book amount 2,523,879 424,373 2,948,252
201712831 H At 31 December 2017
B Cost 2,907,048 1,066,976 3,974,024
2REINE Accumulated depreciation (383,169) (642,603) (1,025,772)
BRENEE Net book amount 2,523,879 424,373 2,948,252
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(LABH T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

TEZEOFERRE : The net book value of premises comprises:
2017 2016
FAfE iy Leaseholds
ERBFA 2P AL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E10E50F 2 M) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,124,643 2,172,821
FEBBAINGE 2+ 8 Held outside Hong Kong on
4 (102505 2 ) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 399,236 416,746

28. BEWYHE

2,523,879 2,589,567

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2017 2016
1HA1H At 1 January 964,449 930,257
#hig Additions - 29,496
U EE— R E A REA Transfer from acquisition of a subsidiary - 48,650
BN RREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises - (93,920)
BN BETERKRENE Reclassification from premises
to investment properties 78,350 35,601
BHAFERE Fair value gains on revaluation 136,643 14,365
12H31H At 31 December 1,179,442 964,449
WEYF 2 REFEDTE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2017 2016
FAfE iy Leaseholds
TEERFA 2 EHEA Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE10 2505 2 fH) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,044,632 916,531
FEBBAINGFE 2 H 8 Held outside Hong Kong on
4 (FE10 =505 2 ) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 134,810 47,918
1,179,442 964,449
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28. REWE @m)
() ;FIEREWEZATE

ANEEMR 2017 F 22016512 A31 H AR EWE
WEE#ETT T S - T HBEBYSEFTAZS
BE— KR AT (hEREEER) BRAR R
URBBRTFBEBEAZZEEMERE—KNFRLE
H CRPY) AR A B AR ZIRE MR EE
LB AR ARBE E(L AL 2E 2 815
W) 2E H A B A AR BRRHETT ©

MG EEAYE ZHERMR - HEFBIMIEHRE
ERFEAZFUARAFEFEF ZATFEEE B K
BEFFARTIS2EENS 2 xaMRENYER

T CREMENEES  HP—EBEXBRES
KEBRE - 2 RENERNEFHR)RE
EMEENHESLER  FIBREZBENTE
F5IR1,983%8 L (2016 F : 1,57978 L) EFF
73R 131,000 7% 7t (2016 £ : 124,100 7T ) ° 4
EEUERN TRSEIUREME 2 A TEFE
BHEEES AR - RZIFA -

REMEDBRAEL/TBUHRELLF 135
(R HERE)F A TFHESERHEIRT

(2) DHESRPEIRBI 2 AFEFEY
AR

2017F1 H1H
AFEK
EHDHTE
WEEE 25

2017F12 431 H
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28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2017 and 2016 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment
properties in Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$1,983 (2016: HK$1,579) to HK$131,000 (2016: HK$124,100) per
square foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”.

(b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

At 1 January 2017 964,449
Fair value gains 136,643
Reclassification from premises 78,350
Transfer to level 2

(1,179,442)

At 31 December 2017 -
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29. OTHER ASSETS

2017 2016
FEU R IE M TR T B Accounts receivable and prepayments 3,012,037 1,955,090
FEEFIRA Accrued income 891,726 810,557
Hb Others 187,854 242,960
4,091,617 3,008,607
30. HEEERAZNEE 30. TRADING LIABILITIES
2017 2016
HMEREEEKBEEES Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 8,668,508 7,748,887
31. EFERK 31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2017 2016
TEHTE R M RTFER Demand deposits and current accounts 38,444,810 35,194,614
HEER Savings deposits 28,961,837 24,423,369
TEH - BA R ETER Time, call and notice deposits 95,319,849 94,505,338
162,726,496 154,123,321

REFOA&SBSWIFEADEREDT TR
AGE 2 B T 2 17 708,491,00078 7T (2016 4F -
42,732,000/ 7T) °

BRES - BAMKRERERIN
BREBER -

A BB PR

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$8,491,000 (2016:

HK$42,732,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.
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32. ERITHERRE

32. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2017 2016

RE A EE T At fair value under fair value hedge
AHESAR (for hedging interest rate risk) 5,903,621 5,052,951
R ERK AR R At amortised cost 1,280,085 1,507,025

2017 4 5 2016 46 79 + A BRI 144 3R
BEE AR TEREANATEF B RS
B3t AR -

NEBMAEMNEEHTFREDPREIEE LES
K< REE A L AT 2 BR {8 = 14,000,000 %8 7T

(2016 4F : 520,000,000 7T ) °

33. REEK

7,183,706 6,559,976

During 2017 and 2016, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through
profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$14 million
higher (2016: HK$20 million higher) than the above carrying amount.

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES

2017 2016

225,000,000 3 7T.74 2020 £F EI| Hf
B SR EER (G ()

200,000,000 E LKA TE B,
&ER/% (F(2))

225,000,000 7 13K 7T 7 2022 5 21| 5
HE BEEER (GE(R))

225,000,000 37T 7A 2024 4F | H#)
ELBEREGE(T))

250,000,000 3 7T.7A 2026 4F ZI| Hi &
ELBERREGE(R))

R A 2 @ B T RS AR

TR AR R

R2017 F R 2016 5F A - AEBEREGRIIATER
KigEEMREEKRSARFEFER L
ARz °
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US$225,000,000 Subordinated

Fixed Rate Notes due 2020 (Note (a)) 1,820,234 1,854,026
US$200,000,000 Perpetual

Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes

(Note (b)) - 429,072
S$$225,000,000 Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes due 2022 (Note (c)) - 1,205,148

US$225,000,000 Subordinated

Fixed Rate Notes due 2024 (Note (d)) 1,752,797 1,749,252
US$250,000,000 Subordinated

Fixed Rate Notes due 2026 (Note (e)) 1,914,335 1,908,665

5,487,366 7,146,163

At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 5,487,366 6,717,091
At amortised cost - 429,072

5,487,366 7,146,163

During 2017 and 2016, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.
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33.

Note:

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 11 February
2010 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange
Trading Limited (“SGX”). The Notes will mature on 11 February 2020.
Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international
bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of the Bank issued on
16 February 2007 (the “Notes”), which were listed on the SGX.

In 2010 and 2009, the Bank repurchased a portion of the Notes with
a total notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000
respectively. The remaining portion had been fully repaid by the Bank on
the optional redemption date of 17 February 2017.

This represents S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 8 February
2012 (the “Notes”), which were listed on the SGX. The Notes had a
maturity date falling on 9 February 2022 and had been fully repaid by the
Bank on the optional redemption date of 9 February 2017.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 29 January 2014 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 29
January 2024 with an optional redemption date falling on 29 January
2019. Interest at 5.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 375 basis points.
The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.
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33. SUBORDINATED NOTES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

(e) This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 30 November 2016 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the
SEHK. The Notes will mature on 30 November 2026 with an optional
redemption date falling on 30 November 2021. Interest at 4.25% p.a. is
payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption
date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be
reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S.
Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving
the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in
part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation reasons
on interest payment date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the
fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on
LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$18 million
lower (2016: HK$85 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

34. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND ACCRUALS

Other accounts and accruals comprise predominantly of interest
payable, trade payables, deferred income and accrual of operating
expenses.

On 19 June 2017, the Bank entered into the Hong Kong Distribution
Agreement with Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”)
after DSLA ceased to be a fellow subsidiary on the same date. On 9
November 2017, BCM entered into the Macau Distribution Agreement
with Macau Life Insurance Company Limited (“MLIC”) after MLIC
ceased to be a fellow subsidiary on the same date.

The upfront payments received and the deferred payments
receivable under the Hong Kong Distribution Agreement and the
Macau Distribution Agreement, totalling HK$2.6 billion for the
exclusivity to be provided by the Bank and BCM in respect of the
distribution of DSLA’s life insurance products in Hong Kong and
MLIC’s life insurance products in Macau respectively, are amortised
and recognised as fee and commission income over the life of the
agreements.

As at 31 December 2017, the unamortised portion of these payments
amounting to HK$2,509,600,000 is included in other accounts and
accruals (2016: Nil).
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(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2017 2016
FEIEFR I & = Deferred income tax assets 81,492 68,286
RIERIAE & Deferred income tax liabilities (86,578) (89,069)

BELXERREERBBRBEREZE 2 HEAER K
BRI BEF B IO ¢

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date

of recovery and settlement are as follows:

2017 2016
FEFFTHEE ¢ Deferred income tax assets:
— A fE 12 & A & Y[l — Deferred income tax assets to
ZIRETITRE B be recovered after more than
12 months 161,448 155,358
FREFETEEE - Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EE12{@A%EERE — Deferred income tax liabilities to
ZIEETIR A E be settled after more than
12 months (166,534) (176,141
(5,086) (20,783)

EERIARR B B EN T -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:
2017 2016
1A1H At 1 January (20,783) 45,930
U B8 — I FT B 2 Al Acquisition of a subsidiary = (4,243)
RURESBR AT ARIE /() (HiFE14) Tax credited/(charged) to the
income statement (Note 14) 8,060 (7,570)
PSRRI R () (HiFE39) Tax credited/(charged) to
equity (Note 39) 1,874 (49,192)
fEHZEZR Exchange difference 5,763 (5,708)
12H31H At 31 December (5,086) (20,783)
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35. EZEBIE (@)

EEHBEERABERAFEZEE  TEER
MRBAEEE T HIEZ GO

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

166

IRIEFRIBEE : Deferred income tax assets:
AR EEX
EHEREE R HAE
Impairment Deferred
allowances BKEE expenses =
and provisions Tax losses and others Total
20161 A1H At 1 January 2016 106,568 297 47,442 154,307
RUERA () /B (Charged)/credit to
the income statement (991) (297) 8,047 6,759
MEH =R Exchange difference (4,050) - (1,658) (5,708)
2016F12 31 H & At 31 December 2016
20171 /818 and 1 January 2017 101,527 - 53,831 155,358
RUERBRA (1) /B 5 (Charged)/credited to
the income statement (970) - 1,297 327
EHER Exchange difference 3,524 - 2,239 5,763
201712831 H At 31 December 2017 104,081 - 57,367 161,448
EEBEBEEE : Deferred income tax liabilities:
MEBRBIE REWEER
Accelerated  Investment BREEM
B tax properties  Investment &t
Provisions  depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
20161 A1H At 1 January 2016 9,736 74,272 - 24,369 108,377
W BE — R B2 R Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 4,243 - 4,243
RUESERASE, /(B H#) Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 293 14,360 (324) - 14,329
RiE=RERAS Charged to equity = - - 49,192 49,192
201612 A31 B K At 31 December 2016
201741 A1 H and 1 January 2017 10,029 88,632 3,919 73,561 176,141
PSSR A (B9 /S (Credited)/charged to
the income statement (10,029) 618 649 1,029 7,733
PARE 2 AR A 13 Credited to equity - - - (1,874) (1,874)
2017512831 H At 31 December 2017 - 89,250 4,568 72,716 166,534

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k
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35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The deferred income tax credited/(charged) to equity during the year
is as follows:

2017 2016
PR E R 2 AT ERE Fair value reserves in
shareholders’ equity:
— A HEES (M:E39) — available-for-sale securities
(Note 39) 1,874 (49,192)

36. EHEBEA T &R

e ETRANERE & ?E SAIER A B R E
BIERARIE —MEERNETRIEE 2
EREFHILNT

36. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies
arising from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:

2017 2016
ZHEERNEMERE Advances and other accounts 554 559
XPEER Deposits from customers 211,703 1,132,208
HBRE MTERR Other accounts and accruals 2,880 686

HRETBERARNIRE BRI RMNB AR 24
BREFHILT ¢

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:

2017 2016
ZEERMEMEE Advances and other accounts 7,154 41,276
BEETFER Deposits from customers 1,433,073 1,737,977
HBE B RIERE Other accounts and accruals 15,817 12,897
BIEER Subordinated notes - 39,654
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37. FREBRAE 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

() BEXEE (@) Capital commitments

R12A31BERE NIDARIRBEE 2 BEER &
BABEEE 2 ERNAELT

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2017 2016

ERERREEREZRAX

Expenditure contracted
but not provided for 55,462 62,717

(Z) EE&RE (b) Credit commitments

AEFBEEABRIMVERETEF ZERMTA
BREEMEEERBRINESENT

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

anes
Contract amount
2017 2016
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 321,146 507,886
X 518 AR B Transaction-related contingencies 525,329 468,367
HiE SRR 2 NI B Trade-related contingencies 627,706 593,956
AR HEUE A ETR L Commitments that are
Nz A unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 71,273,512 66,088,547
H g - HRAERE Other commitments with
an original maturity of:
—DR1F —under 1 year 3,125,645 2,870,509
—1ERNUE -1 year and over 799,392 548,658
EETFR Forward forward deposits placed - 21,029
76,672,730 71,098,952
FERBRMNESE
Credit risk weighted amount
2017 2016
SN B SR Contingent liabilities and
commitments 1,473,077 1,289,997

RFEBITAR DT 201 7F F 55
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s

trading and market-making activities in Excha
follows:

nge Fund debts are as

2017 2016
BERGEEEERNEE Assets pledged with HKMA:
HIEEBERZMES Trading securities 6,064,992 6,036,748
AIEHERES Available-for-sale securities 725,732 1,148,005
6,790,724 7,184,753
HEABE : Associated liabilities:
BIEEEREMNER Trading liabilities 8,668,508 7,748,887

TRTIBREEGRER TR ESREE 2
BUHES M AR & &2 REE

The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with

unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the

associated liabilities are as follows:

2017 2016

Bt N2 EBEE - Assets pledged under repurchase

agreements:
AN EES Available-for-sale securities 462,403 691,634
HEABE : Associated liabilities:

IRITER Deposits from banks 453,740 466,306
HEmeRE AR Other accounts and accruals = 186,987
453,740 653,293

BREZRSFLERBEENATFERBB ZES
MERE(ERE

RERHENAN - AEETEER - HERER
S EE%  HEHEEZESNBETANEEE
B -

The fair value of the transferred securities an

d associated liabilities

approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.

The Group cannot use, sell or pledge the above securities for the

duration of the repurchase agreements and is exposed to the credit

risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.
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37. FARBBEREAE @ 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
(T) REHERIE (d) Operating lease commitments
MAEBEAAEA BT BUBMELEHEM Where the Group is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments
RARRAL 7 HIEHESMRAAZENT ¢ under non-cancellable building operating leases are as follows:
2017 2016
1FENUA Not later than 1 year 183,946 186,892
1FAEES5F Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 461,824 491,600
5 F Later than 5 years 233,800 320,495
879,570 998,987
MAEEABEA BT EEYECEHEM Where the Group is the lessor, the future minimum lease payments
RARRAZ N 2 RIERENRBTENAT under non-cancellable building operating leases are as follows:
2017 2016
1F A Not later than 1 year 30,174 34,100
1FAEESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 5,997 33,930
36,171 68,030
38. WA 38. SHARE CAPITAL
2017 2016
RE [N e AR
ZER Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
ERTRHBZERA issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1H1BK&12H31H At 1 January and 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 62,000,000 6,200,000
2017 F 12 A31 HEZIT L ERBRDEBE G55 The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2017
62,000,000 fi% (2016 4 : 62,000,000f%) > FT & is 62 million shares (2016: 62 million shares). All issued shares are fully
BEITZROEZEEIT - paid.
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39. f#&fE 39. RESERVES
NRRAEE  RERA
TEEMRE REEMHRE 2 e (&)
GaffE  Premises Investment  EXf%  -MHE Resevefor  Refained
Consolidation  Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General Share-based Earnings &t
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
M17E1 A1 At 1 January 2017 8,827 233,100 432,312 (288,492) 700,254 11,187 16,058,002 17,155,190
BRER  ATRNE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
FENTEYR securities recognised in equity - - 164,350 - - - - 164,350
ATERERTERNE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
BARERREBENER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (280,312) - - - - (280,312)
REB[RHEE Deferred income tax on movements in
LBIEFR (M 35) investment revaluation reserve (Note 35 - - 1,874 - - - - 1,874
BIMERRTEZREE Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (2,651) (2,651)
BEHMERIBRR Exchange differences arising on translation of
MELZE the financial statements of foreign entities - - - 385,150 - - - 385,150
WEZENAE Reclassification of properties - - - - = - 62,556 62,556
WA AR (E AR Provision for equity-settled
ESl WA share-based compensation - - - - - 501 - 501
EaM Profit for the year - - - - - - 2083683 2,083,683
16ERERE 2016 final dividend - - - - - - (90600  (390,600)
7ERERE 2017 interim dividend - - - - - - (1612000 (161,200
0178127318 At 31 December 2017 8,827 233,100 318,224 96,658 700,254 11,688 17,649,790 19,018,541
BZ12A31 HLEEFE
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
BRERNMREB AR Proposed final dividend/final dividend
ZHURAREARE S, BIR AR E (HiFE16) paid included in retained earnings
(Note 16) 434,000 390,600
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39. @
it

RRITANEE R AERR BB BRELR AT
SN SRR E B - MR RZ BB R (AT OB
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RAREZERENZRMEERTE - REERERR
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®2017%12 831 8 » AB1TEHEE 1,427,215,000 75
7L (2016 4F : 1,398,280,000/87T) 2 & BIEREE A
EHHEELRE —REE  RERRESRSREETFE

39. RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,427,215,000 (2016: HK$1,398,280,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against

E ° the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
WRhAEE  REEF
EEfRE RESHER B2 G (i)
FaGk  Premises Investment  EXEE  —MEE Resevefor  Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange  General Share-based  Earnings aif
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
2016F1A1H At1 January 2016 8,827 203,172 207,757 73,405 700,254 10,086 14,503,395 15,706,896
BN AL ERS Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale
ARG securities recognised in equity - - 317,809 - - - - 317,809
AFERENIETREEE  Fair value gain realised and transferred o
KERRER ZhEER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (44,062) - - - - (44,062)
RASHRERE Deferred income tax on movements in
JEITHE (M3t a5) investment revaluation reserve (Note 35) - = (49,192) = = - = (49,192)
REENDRIEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
EPAA] premises to investment properties - 29,928 - - - - - 29928
e R Exchange differences arising on
BROELZE translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - (361,897) - - - (361,897)
DA AR fE AR Provision for equity-settled
Bz Bl share-based compensation - - - = - 1,101 = 1,101
EREH Profit for the year - - - - - - 2075407 2,075,407
15FRHRE 2015 final dividend - - - - - - (378,200) (378,200)
016 R ERE 2016 interim dividend - - - - - - (142,600) (142,600)
2016512431 At 31 December 2016 8,827 233,100 432,312 (288,492) 700,254 11,187 16,058,002 17,155,190

172 AFRITHER AT 20175 55
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(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

On 8 December 2017, the Bank issued Basel lll-compliant undated
non-cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the
“AT1 Capital Securities”) with a notional principal of US$115,000,000.
They were fully subscribed by DSFH.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to the
amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that in
the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that a write-
off is necessary, without which the Bank would become non-viable.

Distribution at 4.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2022.
Thereafter, if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed, the
distribution rate will be reset every 5 years and it will bear distribution
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 248.5 basis
points. The Bank has the right to cancel distribution payment, subject
to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the
AT1 Capital Securities, and the distribution cancelled shall not be
cumulative.

The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at par
either on the optional redemption date or any distribution payment
date thereafter.
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41. HmERERELFERKT 41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

() e TREREEEEZWERE (@)
BAIcEERFRAKETHRERA

Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net

174

REEHARR cash from operating activities
2017 2016
HEE TR E REE B E 2 W Kk EHEA] Operating profit before gains and
2B losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 2,244,453 1,696,998
A B UA Net interest income (3,892,709) (3,637,757)
& Sz Dividend income (21,073) (19,777)
EFUREEE Loan impairment losses 270,882 563,567
e Depreciation 181,366 170,423
B A E 2 B Amortisation expenses of
intangible assets 388 1,165
R Bl UE 2 B SR 8 58 Advances written off net of recoveries (472,832) (389,478)
VAR HE 2 1 ARG AD VE B E T SR BN 2 1 8 Provision for equity-settled
share-based compensation 501 1,101
B FE Interest received 5,611,122 5,152,521
ERFE Interest paid (1,363,944) (1,105,937)
BUAEE Dividend received 37,813 34,077
EEBERBEZER 2 EE R Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,595,967 2,466,903
EBEERBEZEY Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— R RIEBITOEHR KR BB HBER — cash and balances with banks and
318 A 2 %0 & 52 BT 5k money at call and short notice
with an original maturity
beyond three months (1,129,701) 884,914
—REEARBBE3EA 2 ERITHER — placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three
months (3,731,332)  (718,339)
—HEEERENE S — trading securities (991,051) 1,620,270
—TESHmITAE — derivative financial instruments (381,279) (213,008)
—EENATEE BEHESH I AERN — financial assets designated at
EMmEE fair value through profit or loss (332,210) (4,639)
—EHRIE - trade bills 234,573 2,169,925
—BFER - advances to customers (5,606,793) (4,025,219)
—HAMBR B — other accounts (1,001,841) 113,864
— A & B 5 — available-for-sale securities (5,120,316)  (6,321,296)
—EEH B A — held-to-maturity securities 4,092,237 149,992
—RITIER — deposits from banks (40,812) 767,292
—RFEEERENEE — trading liabilities 919,621 1,478,258
—BPER - deposits from customers 8,603,175 3,030,931
— BT RE — certificates of deposit issued 613,285 1,949,048
—HMRB RIER — other accounts and accruals 3,263,297  (1,268,304)
PE 5, 5 Exchange adjustments (251,682) 62,609
HREEEHRANR S Cash generated from operating
activities 1,735,138 2,143,201
SIRHBBEITHEREZFE Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (85,254) (64,022)
BEHEEBTEN Hong Kong profits tax paid (99,756) (311,250)
BHEBINER Overseas tax paid (27,000) (26,081)
LEEBRAR S F5E Net cash from operating activities 1,523,128 1,741,848

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k
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B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) During 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in and
obtained full control of a subsidiary, Talent Union Holding
Limited from Dah Sing Banking Group Limited. The fair values
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows.

2016
Be RIRTTRE R Cash and balances with banks 2,962
"EYE Investment properties 48,650
HAb AR A & TaR Other accounts and accruals (17,825)
R e Stz WiEEeE Total purchase price paid in cash 33,787
W BRI e RAEIRITHI AR Less: cash and balances with banks acquired (2,962)
PR & ARSI (BHRES 2R E) Cash paid to obtain control, net of cash acquired 30,825

(R) ERERELHERA RERERRLE
EEERBERMESEARUTHHZT
Pty REBEESCESARBATHE
RERERERSHEZLETR

(c) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following balances with maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition, deposits
that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2017 2016
B e MERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 1,656,146 1,552,639
JREIHA B 72 3 & A 5k LA T 2 3 A0} 58 BATF 5K Money at call and short notice
with an original maturity within
three months 12,745,001 11,692,449
JREIHA B 72 3 & A kLA N 2 FEIRITAI 73X Placements with banks with an
original maturity within three months 2,022,374 2,328,319
PRRFEEERENEF 2 BERR Treasury bills included in trading
securities 1,122,876 2,148,217
BRERIEEEES CEERR Treasury bills included in
available-for-sale securities 1,999,211 1,899,588
19,545,608 19,621,212

12 B ESRAF FA R R 8R 1T BY 45 #4 390,602,000 75
J0(2016 4 + 359,580,000 ) B[ IR & R ER
ReIBE | RETIIRERBEE [HE RERITH
R BRIET ©

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$390,602,000 (2016:
HK$359,580,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. ZEBHERERE

(T) REMEERD 2B EZHRR

TRFLANEBREREED 28 E
cJREBMEEHZBE B
EAEEZEES
MEAERADEAREZDRERZBE -

ReRIFRe 2
HBESREIRFBA S REE

R @

HE) - B

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

FEREEE
A=Ytk
Total
liabilities
BEE® EAFE from
Subordinated Interest financing
notes payable activities
R2017%1B81H As at 1 January 2017 7,146,163 124,005 7,270,168
MERER L) Changes from financing cash flows:
BRRERR Repayment of subordinated notes (1,660,074) - (1,660,074)
IHBETRERR Interest paid on subordinated notes
REBESRZFIB and debt securities issued - (332,236) (332,236)
MERERZBEEE Total changes from financing
cash flows (1,660,074) (332,236)  (1,992,310)
Hofth & Other changes:
BETRERLREBES ML Interest accrued on subordinated
notes and debt securities issued - 299,647 299,647
EHER Exchange difference 6,020 = 6,020
NEEES Fair value change (4,743) - (4,743)
Hith# a5 Total other changes 1,277 299,647 300,924
M2017%12831H As at 31 December 2017 5,487,366 91,416 5,578,782

BFEREIHIIH L BETF
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Comparative figures
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are not required as this is the first year of
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B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES
CONNECTED WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 are shown as below.

2017 2016
W12 A31 Bz B GAREEESE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding
at 31 December
—BERRER - Loans and advances 24,357 25,241
—BEHER - Guarantees issued 1,305 905
FABMR G 2 &mBER Maximum aggregate amount of
relevant transactions during the year
—ERRER - Loans and advances 25,917 51,162
— B H R — Guarantees issued 1,305 905

R2017F K 2016 F Lill 2 FTE AR 5 M AR

Al
17%835] °

43. BBEALZXRE

ARIRTT 2 EEER D AAHRITRE M HRIER
AAARFEMA/ESTEEMNEELTAR -

2017 F 22016 F + ANIRITIZ — AR ZE &K -
B AR R EME XM B AR R E S BRHE R
B 5  BERITRAETRRBH - HERD H
ASE—BRBRER - REEMBITRE -

BESh - AEBITIARARBA A RERARKBA
AR EMRTRRY  AERASENETAR
B AR -

The above relevant transactions in 2017 and 2016 were all transacted
by the Bank.

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company DSBG and the ultimate
holding company is DSFH. Both holding companies are incorporated
and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2017 and 2016, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other fellow
subsidiaries on normal commercial terms. These transactions include
interbank placements and deposit taking, marketing and distribution
of life and general insurance products and the provision of other
banking services.

In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative

services to its ultimate holding company and its fellow subsidiaries,
leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAS¥F7TA151)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. FBEATZRS & 43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
HEEBATZEARZNAT : Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:
(R) HERARAREAMBARNNRE R (@) Transactions and balances with holding companies and
F35 fellow subsidiaries
(i) WAKRTH ()  Income and expenses
HERBARERAT
Immediate and ultimate EEX: NG
holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
2017 2016 2017 2016
EHLE Interest paid (8,000) (3,636) (8,478) (10,556)
EHFILE Interest received - - 73 139
BlEE Commission received - - 75,893 131,977
B RS E, e Service fee received/recovery
Hih & ES H of other operating expenses 6,611 6,588 33,936 61,444
B S kAEKNE Rental and related building
ERE management fee received - - 12,171 18,492
B EMEESH Other operating expenses paid - = (12,557) (16,391)
NS Rental paid - - (8,495) (9,639)
() EEEEAE (b) Key management personnel
() HBHEZERFEEBASZEARGLK ()  Material transactions and balances with directors and key
AEER management personnel
FAN - RNRITRBWEER - 5 EH During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with
RREERBTEEEERAES - HAHR the key management personnel, their close family members
Ho R E B miEsl b - ILRBRIE and the entities controlled by them including deposit taking,
BEEBIETIRMARER M E TIEFAER o loans, credit card facilities and investment services. These

transactions were provided in the ordinary course of business
and at the same terms with other employees.

FEERABZRGFMEEZIRARE T Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
WARERKX  MERRIFRZERAT management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:

2017 2016

BRI Loans and advances 24,035 24,879
T Deposits 1,126,702 415,959
REVA 2 Efofh Undrawn commitments 3,438 3,747
IR Guarantee 1,305 1,095
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43. BEREALZRE @)
(Z) EEEEAE @)
(i) FEEBEAEHz

ABPTETREBABRATES - HWmM
ERREREIRHIES -

() EREQLARAFAEHIERZIRER
533

FR ARTEIHEEQAEERIT
151,271,000 77T (2016 4F : 142,741,00087T) B
BUA o FA -+ ZAERITEUS — £ [F 2 ] E 58 SR
EREARARZFH - MEMR2017F12 431 H
TF kA58 /55,461,000 7T (2016 £F ¢ 7,830,000%
TT) °

44. BARAD 7 E T R 8

RPITZERERAR (KHBITERE) RRKE
BRAR (RFER) 56 HERRETS - BBER
BB RFIRTT SR R B A B ([ RFTERITRE
FHE ) RARF & B R B R AR &) ([ A3 & Bhat
2 BERARZEEGARTHEET - 8%
AEERABITNES - ABRERBEEER -

REEF @A IRTT R B 8 R A & Biat Bl
AR RERO B T ARE 2 EERSRTT
BAR °

B H5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABH T 7TA7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel (Continued)
(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors
and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

(c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate,
dividend income of HK$151,271,000 (2016: HK$142,741,000).
During the year, the Bank received deposits from Bank Consortium
Trust Company Limited, a jointly controlled entity and the balance
of deposit as at 31 December 2017 was HK$5,461,000 (2016:
HK$7,830,000).

44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Each of the Bank’s immediate holding company (Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”)) and ultimate holding company (Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)) has its own share option
schemes. The Board of Directors of DSBG and DSFH can grant to any
employees, including directors of the Bank and of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares of DSBG or DSFH under the DSBG Share
Option Schemes (the “DSBG Schemes”) and the DSFH Share Option
Schemes (the “DSFH Schemes”) approved by shareholders.

Share-based compensation through the DSBG Schemes and the

DSFH Schemes is available to directors and senior executives of the
Group.
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(LAS¥F7TAL51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. BARAD RER R B 20
() RFFRITEEE

AFRITEBRRMN 2014F5 A 27 BHERITHRF
IR1T 5 B IR R IE F K @B & RN TR ARE ST
I (TRFIRITEBIETE D) - W R IER
FTIRTTEERR 2004 F 6 A 12 B 4N 2 R 2]
(TRFRITEBERTE]) - KFRITEEESE
#RIE1E - DEERILEEIE — PR B E AR
MERFTIRIT R B ERT 82 GO A AR AT
MRAERAKIERTE R B ERKRIERDRITE 2 226
REEmS - DEB+RBIRIER -

BRAFBITEEET S - RFBTEEE T EN
BARETESERIEERRE - EFBARLTA
MRITEE TR EERRETER - BESAR
EzANEBENReZM  BRANESHESR
BHRMD - RRITEEITEEALBESINE
PR 2012 F LART AT T O SR AR#E © 2012 6 K
H@FR T 2RRiE - RFRITEBITERTH
B&AD AT ST EL A

o

ZERBRE TR AFIRITEBEFBIAZ R K
BT T - BHORRIEZTEEBIIBIRE &E
MEEEREZAFBRITEEESSUIEERR
EBR S EARAE17.03Q KB E TR @ &1
ERAT2IER 2 e EEEE  ()AHRITEE
BROERTFERBERSMEEZWTE  K(i)
AMRITEERODEEER THASEZEAR
BEARGMEE 2 FHWHE - R201453 A3
BRG] (622 F ) £ MATR T 2 RIE - B
BHRBEZITEERDEBATRITEBBRAE
RERRMAABTZEE - ZRAREZITERTD
RERTHERFE1 256 EKRA -

RFEBEITAR AT 2017F F 55

44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
(@) DSBG Schemes

The shareholders of DSBG approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) and, at the same time, the
termination of the Share Option Scheme adopted by DSBG on 12
June 2004 (the “Old DSBG Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
of DSBG held on 27 May 2014. No further options can be offered
under the Old DSBG Scheme after its termination but the provisions
of the Old DSBG Scheme remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to allow grantees to exercise share options
granted prior to the termination of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet
exercised at the time of termination.

Under the Old DSBG Scheme, DSBG issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSBG the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSBG
has the intention to adopt cash settlement practice in respect of the
share options granted prior to year 2012. For share option issued in
2012 and afterwards, DSBG has the intention to settle its obligations
by issuing new shares.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. For options granted before
the commencement of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3
March 2014, the nominal value of DSBG’s shares of HK$1 each in
the capital of DSBG had been taken into account in determining the
exercise price per option share. The exercise period is between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.
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(2) R EmetE

AFT & RN 2005F 4 A28 HIRHN 2 RIS 2
(TR¥FremETE])ER20159F4 A28 HEm °
201545 A27 B + K¥< g% 5@ B L& FR AR
TRBAET B (AT RHIAED - KSR eE
FTEIRIEE - TEBIFIEE —SREERRR
RS RESTE 2 BB T ABRAITE
A B4R IE AT B B B R IR AR TT 2 2 2 3B
RS - DEE TR RER -

BAHMRETS  KFEeRETEMNBARS
TEFREBREE - EFIERKAFFAT A
EEREERBETER RESRREZANEEBE
RBEXN  BRAZEEHEREREHNRND - K
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ZERRRE TR A< B EFTBIA 2 R R AGHE
T o B RREZITEERIER RFME
EEREAFERESTSUNBERNESRS
FT ET#RAIZE17.03(Q) BIRE T + B TERAT
2P ZHESEFERE () KTERBRHERT
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NEZEETHRSEEEBREERIMER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA T Th51)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
(b) DSFH Schemes

The share option scheme of DSFH adopted on 28 April 2005 (the “Old
DSFH Scheme”) had expired on 28 April 2015. On 27 May 2015, the
shareholders of DSFH approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New DSFH Scheme”). No further share options can
be offered under the Old DSFH Scheme after its expiration but the
provisions of the Old DSFH Scheme remain in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to allow grantees to exercise share
options granted prior to the expiration of the Old DSFH Scheme but
not yet exercised at the time of expiration.

Under the Old DSFH Scheme, DSFH issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSFH the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSFH
has adopted the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this
practice in respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSFH Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSFH on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. For options granted
before the commencement of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
on 3 March 2014, the nominal value of DSFH shares of HK$2 each in
the capital of DSFH had been taken into account in determining the
exercise price per option share. The exercise period is between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.
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44. BARAD R E R B (0
BAHMBITEEETER T 2RRE

44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Share options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme:

BROTEEGER)

B®¥AH Rl BT EH Cigcd: Exercise price

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
2011512 A12H DRETH 2011FE12A12B% 2012F12 A12BZ
201612 A 12 H 2017512 8128

12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 8.91
2012412 A 218 AR5 1+ 20124612 A218% 2013512 A218%
2017512 A 21 8 201812 A 21 H

21/12/2012 Equity-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 7.96
20145326 H AR S 1+ 20146326 % 20156326 HE
201943 26 202043 A 26 H

26/03/2014 Equity-settled 26/03/2014-26/03/2019 26/03/2015-26/03/2020 11.68

AFRITEEFTE BRMBEE2017F12 A
318 - WEEARBEREARIRITSRE S

No share options had been granted under the New DSBG Scheme

since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2017.

B o
RAHERMETER T 2ARE : Share options granted under the Old DSFH Scheme:
BRTEE(ER)

£¥H 5l BT EH T8 Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
201112 A12RH DREX N 2011E12A128% 201212 A1208%

201612 A12H 2017% 12 A12H
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 38.35
2012F 12 A21H MR & 2012F 12821 BE 2013F 12 A21 HE

2017612 421 H 2018 12 421 H
21/12/2012 Cash-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 31.88

Rt B XMBELZE2017F12 831 H
b WETARRERBEATERTERL -

182 AFRITHER AT 20175 55

No share options had been granted under the New DSFH Scheme
since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2017.
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44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as

N follows:

2017 2016
VARSCHE 2 5+ 2 R IR e Equity-settled options 501 1,101
AR & S 1+ 2 3R A% e Cash-settled options 20,794 3,982
CEl Total 21,295 5,083
UBEFZ(T 28 RE Cash-settled options
g KFIRITEEEF 2 RAF SR EST2IAT With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the Old

%%%thiiégzﬁmwﬂﬂéé AR AR S T
RIREERBAANETE  AEEREZBHE
W2 ERREZ A TFERRAEBE AT (20164 :
43,341,000 7T) ° ZBENEIE Nl (iv) A%
SRS INTEER ST A FETIA=ZIER H
EEEENIZ TRl EERRHE -

DSBG Scheme and Old DSFH Scheme described above, the Group
has recorded zero liabilities due to cash-settled options exercised
during the period (2016: HK$43,341,000) in respect of the fair value
of the share options at the reporting date. These do not include cost
separately borne by DSFH as stated under note (iv) below. The fair
value is determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model, and
based on the major assumptions set out in the following tables.

AFERMEEETE

Old DSFH Scheme
2017 2016
20125 20124
12821 R 12A21H
(5 (iv)) (FE(iv)
21 December 21 December
2012 2012
B¥H Grant date (Note (iv) (Note (iv))

AFepEEN12A31H Share price of DSFH

pd; LG ) as at 31 December (HK$) 50.05 52.45
111518 (Bm) Exercise price (HK$) 31.88 31.88
BRI E (FE () Expected volatility (Note (i) 22.81% 35.36%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <1 <2
R (7 (i) Risk free rate (Note (i) 1.06% 1.07%
TaET % B2 (G (i) Expected dividend rate (Note (ii)) 2.66% 2.96%
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44. DR AEREBRMEE @)

UB 251237 (&)

i

(i) FERERERBRERTER ZATBE—F R
Ruan el E AR IE MArE - WRER BT AT/
fRE kR - B ERANRBIRE FER 2 B
i - WESEAMER -

(ii) ERRANESEBATFHCABINEES TR I

(i)  TEFTAREXRTVIZBEREME] ©

(iv) ZERBREZZEBERARKNTERAE-

ANHT & BB 5% RARERERR 569,000 % 7T (2016
17,092,000 7T) BERNBEFERRS L
3,599,000 7t (2016 4 : 3,757,000/ 7T) °

RIRERNR T EEEEEEENR S WE - &
NIEBEEFER 2017 F 12 A 31 H 4 569,000 75
7T (2016 4F : 49,590,000 7T ) °

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

44.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Cash-settled options (Continued)

Note:

(U]

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the share price of DSFH, as applicable, during the one year period
immediately preceding the measurement date and is based on the
assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical
volatility of the share prices of DSFH as set out above.

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity.

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

The cost of these options is borne by the holding company, DSFH.
DSFH has recorded liabilities of HK$569,000 (2016: HK$7,092,000) and
a charge to income statement of HK$3,599,000 (2016: HK$3,757,000) for
these options.

The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’

right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2017 is
HK$569,000 (2016: HK$49,590,000).



44. BARAD R E R B (0
RS ZBKE

B B AFIRITRBER SR T 2 ABRES N
B - R T A2 AP ETIA=IR B
EEEAGE -

AFRITEEF TS BRABEE20175F12 5
318 - WEERARES N 2 RBREREAH IR

B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
Equity-settled options

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the Old
DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using
the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
granted.

No equity-settled options had been granted under the New DSBG
Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2017.

TTEREFE 8 -

BT 2 RIRHIKE R TIOTEE 2 2B

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

¢ weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
RERTREE:TH Rife R 8
Old DSBG Scheme 0ld DSFH Scheme
2017 2016 2017 2016
RYARE RTEE RTIRE RFHEE

KiFBEE T AREG5E g3 KiTER il 3371 Nk Mg
AR 8 Al fife B i A fife
RH#E (#7) kiR (#7) Bh#E () oL (%7)
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
DSBG shares average  DSBG shares average  DSFH shares average  DSFH shares average
in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS) granted (HKS)
—-A-A At 1 January 10,385,452 8.77 11,880,959 8.69 417,201 35.92 47221 3592
&F Granted - - - - - - - -
[RheL Expired - - - - - - - -
BT Exercised (373,876) 858 (1,495,507 8.12 - = = =
BEUH/ B Cancelled/forfeited (8,100,655) 8.91 - - (385,935) 36.25 - -
12R31A At 31 December 1,910,921 8.20 10,385,452 8.77 31,292 31.88 47221 35.92
12331 BAfIE Exercisable at 31 December 1,786,296 7.96 9,429,992 8.78 31,292 31.88 385,935 36.25

AFRITEEN 2017 F12 A 31 BRITE 2 RBEAEZTT
FEENT7.96 L= 11.68787C (2016 F : N T-7.96 78
TTE11.68%8 ) « REMETFHFRE LDTEEAR1.05
F(20165F : 1.25F) - R AEEEERSRITHAE
AR Z KRS B RRE - 7R 2017 F12 A 31 BARTE
2R BRARME 21787 31.88 77T (2016 F -
T-31.88 /5 C£38.35/87T) + REMEFHFHRE LT
{#H40.97 4 (2016 4F : 1.334F)

DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2017 have
exercise prices in the range of HK$7.96 to HK$11.68 (2016: HK$7.96
to HK$11.68), and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 1.05 years (2016: 1.2 years). In respect of directors and senior
executives of the Group, their applicable DSFH’s share options
outstanding as of 31 December 2017 have exercise price of HK$31.88
(2016: in the range of HK$31.88 to HK$38.35), and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.97 years (2016: 1.33 years).
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45. TRAEEREBENHE

BB AR ERBIERITOEN AT M HERMEE
REAEZEERSHE ARG ENFHEEERE
‘REIFRBEREENBEAE  ATHEHE
ERBRBEHE -

() FHAEHSIEELC EMBERR
RAHHCEMEERAE

AEBBEAETETREEAERAR ([FETR
BEARZEPAEPETREEERS -

AEER2 R NENBEPREE 2 SREE
EHEEEEETREE 2 B IRAREREN K
THAEFE - 102017512 A 31 H 22016 6 12 A 31
B FRAREFIEREERME29H 2 [fE
WHERBNER ] REA - HEZSBHNT
3o

45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(@) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the gross
amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016, the net amount was a receivable and was
included in “Accounts receivable and prepayments” in Note 29. The
amounts offset are shown below.

2017 2016

JERE B REE 2 FOEERE Gross amount of accounts
receivable from HKSCC 104,709 41,492

JERT BB REE 2 FORBRE Gross amount of accounts
payable to HKSCC (181) (829)
FEUE B RAEH F 5 Net amount due from HKSCC 104,528 41,163

(2) RRFRERFERBEMBERR X
NHHECEMEERAE

BEFEEELH

AEESRARERSHFIILARFEAELR
B WREEERR - FEEEBHERE - —8B
HBRENEN  MBESRXGHTFZIRTKK S
BaRIt MAERBRRFERHARFEEE
WIFBEROEN  MERETF IR QUNERE
BER—RISEURBRRRPEHEEENE

& o

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets
and liabilities in the statement of financial position.



45. TRIEEHEESBMNEHE @

(2) SEEEAERFEEBREEMBRRER
NEEzEMEEREE @
AR HEE AT E T ()

TRIREZHE  RERBIZERFREEL
PR ERBHEAORNEBMTAFE ©

B H5 Rk M et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements.

UEEHERRZNSE 2 BLE
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

REBRRRR  REBRRER TIRAME

HiEveR pvk $HIE BHuT ¥

tHARER EEFE (REFRCEAR) HEVE Ph

BRZEM Grossamountsof  Netamounts of Financial Amounts

BEAE recognised financial  financial assets instruments not subject

Gross amounts  liabilities set off  presented in the (including ERBEER to enforceable
of recognised  in the statement of statement of non-cash  Cash collateral it netting &it
0175128318 At 31 December 2017 financial assets ~ financial position financial position collateral) received Net amount agreements Total

SHAE Financial assets
fESMTA Derivative financial instruments 724,332 - 724,332 (293,648) (401,317) 29,367 173,635 897,967
R REFTNES  Cash and balances with bank 410,188 - 410,188 (410,188) - - 16,933,485 17,343,673
BERAERRRAGE 2 AELE

Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

REBRRRR  REBRRER FHRARE
HiEeR fmzeR $HIR BHATZER
tHEEAR BEFE (REFREEAR) HEVE Ph
BEZEE Grossamountsof  Netamounts of Financial Amounts
BEBE recognised financial  financial liabilties instuments ~ BERRLHA not subject
Gross amounts assetssetoff  presented in the (including Cash to enforceable
of recognised in the statement of statement of non-cash collateral B netting ait
175128318 At31 December 2017 financial liabilities ~ financial position financial position collateral) placed out Net amount agreements Total
SBAG Financialliablties
/TR Deposits from banks 453,740 - 453,740 (453,740) - - 1,823,651 2217391
fTESmIA Derivative financial
instruments 433,624 - 433,624 (293,648) (154,323) (14,347) 249,160 662,784
RIEEEREHEE  Trading liabilties 8,668,508 - 8,668,508 (6,790,724) - 1,877,784 - 8,668,508
EfbiRE RER Other accounts and accruals - - - - - - 6,096,111 6,096,111
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45. TRIEEHEESBMNEHE @ 45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES (Continued)

(2) RERFERFERBEMBRR X (b)
REHEzEHEEREE @

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

188

AR FRAE () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
GERHHIRA ARG HEER
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
RIBIRRER  REBRRER TP RAfEE
H#/ERR vk SHIA BT R
SRAGAE EERE (REHRSEAR) REY vk
BEER  Grossamountsof  Netamounts of Financial Amounts
BEAE recognised financial  financial assets nstuments  EAEEHER not subject
Gross amounts  liabilities set off  presented in the (including Cash to enforceable
of recognised  in the statement of statement of non-cash collateral 8 netting At
2016%12A31H At 31 December 2016 financial assets ~ financial position ~ financial position collateral) received Net amount agreements Total
AR Financial assets
frEemTA Derivative financial
instruments 816,23 - 816,23 (579,441) (27149) 209,641 361,099 1,177,322
BEREFAMESR  Cash and balances with bank - - - - - - - -
TRASBRRRNA S AEEE
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
REBHARR  REBRRER SR
b AR vk SRTA BT R
SHAEAE AfFE (RRHReEAR) REN vk
BR7£%  Grossamountsof  Netamounts of Financial Amounts
B{E2E recognised financial  financial liabilties nstuments ~ EEFRLHER not subject
Gross amounts assetssetoff  presented in the (including Cash to enforceable
of recognised  in the statement of statement of non-cash collateral 7 netting it
21661274318 At31 December 2016 financial liabilities ~ financial position ~ financial position collateral) placed out Net amount agreements Total
£HAR Financial liabifies
RTER Deposits from banks 466,306 - 466,306 (466,306) - - 1,851,897 2,318,203
fiEemIA Derivative financial
instruments 1,142,821 - 1,142,821 (579,441) 98,173) 465,207 200,597 1,343,418
RIEEEREHER  Trading liabilties 7,748,887 - 7,748,887 (7,184,753 - 564,134 - 7,748,887
EfbiRE RBR Other accounts and accruals 186,987 - 186,987 (186,987) - - 2,816,411 3,003,398

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

TIREBAREE 2 ERHE R B IREK 2 B0 M
MER - BWIEEAP B RERZ —FF0

1. BAXZREHER

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2017 & 2016 F
12A31H 12 A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016

BT L Capital adequacy ratio
—EEARE A — Common Equity Tier 1 13.4% 12.7%
——#& — Tier 1 14.0% 12.7%
— R - Total 18.7% 18.3%

2017412 A31 B X% 20164F 12 A31 HZEAXTE
R LR TIARRITHEGZE MR (B IFRFIEERIT
RARFRIT(FHE)) 2 ECRITE(EAR) FHADEY
EEBRBE I EETETHE - ZEAFT R LR
HEZRE|misRARARERR

RIRTTRBEBEMRITARBEBRITESRS
BTEATREERHFEENR - RPIHERITAE
SARPIRITEEENRE RAHIRIT (PE)
BESTABTERITEEENRE

REFECRITE (KR RRD) - FEAEEEER
RN E A AR R ER 2 SRINE B E TS AN RITR A
http://www.dahsing.com - 17 A] &L LA T E#2EAS
http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/

regulatory_disclosures.html# A °

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering
BCM and DSB China) computed on Basel Ill basis in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into
account market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject
to the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking
regulations and DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at
www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:

http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.
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2. BEEX

2. CAPITAL BUFFERS

2017 & 2016 %

12A31H 12A31H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

[ fEr & ANt 3 Capital conservation buffer ratio 1.250% 0.625%
B B AR A AN R Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.925% 0.462%
2.175% 1.087%

H2016F1 18 FillEHEASEERER
RARFTIRTT - PAPEFEALRIREAT R
K27 BRGREERTE -

REAGRITE(RE) KA  FRAEEEEE
RN E A AR R 5 < FEINE R B TSN AR T B
http://www.dahsing.com » W AIAZLA N B4 -
http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/

regulatory_disclosures.html # A °

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

With effect from 1 January 2016, the above capital buffers are
phased-in and applicable to DSB. The countercyclical capital buffer
ratio is computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital

adequacy ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s countercyclical capital
buffer ratio is published in the Bank’s website at www.dahsing.com
and is accessible at the following direct link:
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.
html.
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(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. LEVERAGE RATIO

2017 & 2016 4F

12A31H 124311

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

LR e Leverage ratio 8.9% 8.2%

CRI75 (BZR) RAIDE 24A(6) 557 E HER L =
ZHRE o LM TIARRIT 2R AMR Z LR RIZE
ARFE R R 2 BRI E ERETE

REACRTERE)RA) EEAEEE
1R R 2 BINE R B FIE A AN IR1T 4 B http://
www.dahsing.com * 7 A] £ A | H £ & 4
http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.html # A °

4. FRBEEHFHEE

The disclosure on leverage ratio is required under section 24A(6)
of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The above ratios represent the
consolidated position of the Bank and are computed on the same
consolidated basis as the capital adequacy ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules, additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio
is published in the Bank’s website at www.dahsing.com and is
accessible at the following direct link:
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.
html.

4. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO

2017 2016

MENEEMR X

MEBEERTLERTIART (BERPIERRT
RAR#RT (R E)) R RFESEE AT
RARDEERFLENEEFIH - RBEE
MR R TIRIBCRITR ORBIE) RADETE -

AT RBAEMRTERBEERRITREGNE
TREBESHRREER - BRPIFRRITAET
BRRFIRITEEEMRE LR RT (FE) A
BT HEBTBRITREENMRE

Liquidity maintenance ratio 44.0% 41.9%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average consolidated liquidity maintenance ratio of the Bank
(covering BCM and DSB China) for the financial year. The LMR is
computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to
the liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is
subject to China banking regulations.
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5. SMNER

T AR2017F12 A31 HZzExMAMER S
w2 SNEFRE (B R 2 SNE F R AT A SNEF
XE10%) @ REEEZ L& -

R2017412 A31 B R 201612 A31 8 » &"&
B I A AT M NS 5 82588 - B R E R
RIEFTBINEREA X 2 SRIB NiEF s AER

5o

5. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2017 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as
at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The net position is calculated in the
basis of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency option
contracts.

Hp s SR

P Other Total

ETT Macau foreign foreign

2017%12H831H At 31 December 2017 US dollars Pataca currencies currencies
HERBERT Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 69,163 9,139 18,957 97,259

REAE Spot liabilities (32,744) (10,817) (22,919) (66,480)

RAIBA Forward purchases 26,575 - 18,272 44,847

REAE N Forward sales (62,053) - (14,330) (76,383)

R Net options position 1 - 1) -

&/ () 8% Net long/(short) position 942 (1,678) (21) (757)

Efwong  SMEAF

il Other Total

£ NG Macau foreign foreign

201612 A31H At 31 December 2016 US dollars Renminbi Pataca  currencies  currencies
BERE BB Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 64,651 13,702 9,347 4,923 92,623

HEBE Spot liabilities (33,722) (13,522) (10,993) (8,437) (66,674)

RHIEA Forward purchases 25,926 12,881 = 5,379 44,186

EHEL Forward sales (55,094) (13,047) - (1,865) (70,006)

HARE AR Net options position - - - 6) 6)

&/ (8) B8 Net long/(short) position 1,761 14 (1,646) 6) 123
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(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES
() RIT¥ESBE2EFERLE(UEXKA (@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZROoBERUSEHARERENE S LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) by percentage covered by collateral
20175128 31H 201612 A31 H
At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2016
EXHEE Exes
SHEARRE SHARRE
ZE ZAD
% of gross % of gross
REBEH advances REEEH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
EBRERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEeR Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER - Property development 3,927,651 87.5 2,317,648 82.0
—MEEE - Property investment 14,933,223 96.3 15,095,225 99.3
—-ERtE - Financial concerns 3,814,050 7.9 4,259,982 26.6
-RELL - Stockbrokers 2,141,027 54.2 1,804,854 44.9
—JEETEZ - Wholesale and retail trade 7,202,373 85.9 4,543,621 88.5
—BlE% - Manufacturing 1,900,894 80.0 2,435,207 94.0
—BHREHHRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,932,189 76.6 3,508,563 78.8
— [R5 - Recreational activities 96,881 100.0 78,395 97.4
— BB - Information technology 68,986 90.7 74,186 87.7
—HAfl - Others 4,114,396 72.0 5,180,298 82.2
42,131,670 786 39,207,979 82.2
fEA Individuals
-BE [REAHEE ] - Loans for the purchase of
[TLAZ2RERE] Kk flats in Home Ownership
[HEEAENE] BFER Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 687,074 100.0 756,457 100.0
-BEHEMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 22,988,102 99.9 22,230,051 99.9
—ERRER - Credit card advances 3,613,411 - 4,377,622 -
—Hft - Others 12,308,030 34.4 11,092,297 43.9
39,596,617 704 38,456,427 72.4
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 81,728,287 74.7 77,754,406 774
BE5mE GE(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,766,204 62.6 7,723,386 66.2
TEEBIMEBMER (F Q) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2) 28,770,167 68.1 28,180,073 740
119,264,658 722 113,657,865 75.8
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6. ERERBRIEZEMIDH @

() RITE S ECEFERAE(LLERA
EPERUSZERARRENE D LESD
) ()

(1) LRIRZEZMERZEEELERBLZM
BiEsImMoEREEED HOMEOMNRE
NEEREIRMESZERK -

TEREBZ B SHMEBRR (BIENRITZIEIME
TMBARE T 2ESmME) 418 476,119,000 75
Jt(2016412 A 31 H : 297,335,000/87T) DR
[EBRBIMERMER] BT -

@ HEBFEMMERANERBERTEERPEES
BIMER 2B

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

(a)

Note:

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines
issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade finance
extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank) totalling
HK$476,119,000 (31 December 2016: HK$297,335,000) are classified
under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
constituting 10% or more of the total balance of advances to
customers, the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans,
and individually and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances
are as follows:

BX4AE
BEAEE
BB3EA {8 RIS GETME
Gross HEEE REEE
advances Individually Collectively
KEBLEH REER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
201712831 H At 31 December 2017 balance loans months allowances allowances
EBRBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEeH Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERA - Property investment 14,933,223 78,968 59,897 6,925 47,835
(EDN Individuals
~BEEMEENEER - Loans for the purchase
of other residential
properties 22,988,102 6,305 9,337 - 4,107
ERBAIMEBRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 28,770,167 187,828 258,196 100,236 106,550
B
BHEARER
B3 ME A {E Bl R
Gross BEER HEER
advances Individually Collectively
REBEH HEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
201612 A31H At 31 December 2016 balance loans months allowances allowances
EEBRANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEsHE Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERE - Property investment 15,095,225 92,594 89,700 10,276 51,607
BA Individuals
—REHMEENEER - Loans for the purchase
of other residential
properties 22,230,051 10,670 24,893 - 4,552
EBEBAIMERHER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 28,180,073 364,972 380,615 189,010 145,416
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6. ERERBRIEZEMIDH @

() RITE S ECEFERAE(LLERA
EPERUSZERARRENE D LESD
) ()
TREZEFRNERSRIRE 2 SR EFFRER
AR Z i EE SR o

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the
amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year
were disclosed in the tables below.

BEBREE
MsE 2 B
REEEEBER  Recoveries
5%  of advances
¥ EH Loans written  written off in
New off as previous
2017 F 2017 allowances uncollectible years
EBBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITrE<m Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEKRE - Property investment = = =
EA Individuals
—BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties - - 353
TERBAIME AR E R Loans for use outside Hong Kong 91,835 222,397 13,902
WEIBREE
sE 2 B3R
RELEEE  Recoveries
#3558 of advances
¥ Loans written  written off in
New off as previous
20164 2016 allowances uncollectible years
ERAFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IrE<R Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment = - -
fEA Individuals
—BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties - - 364
TEBBAIMEBHER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 149,372 115,111 6,137
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6. ERERGREZBEIIDH @

(2) H B KX AEREE

REFBSER(RITE(KRE) R - LT HP
BAEEBNBRBEZ AT H2REBSERYF
BIKPE TSR MAR P FAF 2 FRRITERZH TR
PIREEERBEEANUDE - EPREEAR
TREAMRITHE R RR T 2 FBAEEBH

(LAY T 7A7%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which
includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by the Bank and

#RER

its Mainland subsidiary bank only.

BEARRA HEREGRH

HEREE HERER
On-balance  Off-balance Here
sheet sheet Total
2017 2017 exposure exposure  exposures
1. PRET - R RET 1. Central government, central
BEERRBERENBAR government-owned entities and their
MeLRA([aEAR]) subsidiaries and joint ventures (“JV”s) 7,145,507 70,194 7,215,701
2. AT - #ERAT 2. Local governments, local
Tﬁﬁ RS e HLFT government-owned entities
AEIFEE AT and their subsidiaries and JVs 896,387 78,815 975,202
3. BEEHEAMZ BRI E 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland
H B8 (A 1 S A EL A China or other entities incorporated
REMBARMEE AR in Mainland China and their
subsidiaries and JVs 13,523,930 1,113,634 14,637,564
4. REELRE-—BER2 4. Other entities of central government
R IR E o it not reported in item 1 above 1,635,173 15,391 1,650,564
5. REELME-HER 2 5. Other entities of local governments
BT E E s not reported in item 2 above 835,183 - 835,183
6. BEEREAMAINZ 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
Bl R sk fE B A A China or entities incorporated outside
INCIL EVHERS - TS e Mainland China where the credits are
SRR B A e A granted for use in Mainland China 8,511,455 206,141 8,717,596
7. EtR ZHF - HarE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures
AR VEE R B KRESE are considered to be non-bank
RITHER PR Mainland China exposures 1,113,077 48,625 1,161,702
33,660,712 1,532,800 35,193,512
ARERIT R E AMIRTTIE Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland

DRl MR RREZEEAR

BEERBRANGE
HEEAF AN

it LRERSBEeEEFERE

Bz&® -

BMEEMEEP

subsidiary bank after provision 201,200,282

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 16.73%

B

other balances of claims on the customers.
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6. EERSBE BTN &

(Z) $ B KRR I HIBRER ()

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)

BEREBERA EEREXR)

iofXE RIEAEE
On-balance  Off-balance fBERER
sheet sheet Total
2016 2016 exposure exposure exposures
1. RRET - RREUT 1. Central government, central
HERNKERE government-owned entities and their
fEARMEE AR subsidiaries and JVs 6,982,813 335,952 7,318,765
2. W R BT - 75 BT 2. Local governments, local
Tﬁﬁﬁ’]%%&ﬁﬁﬁ% government-owned entities and
DRIMEE AT their subsidiaries and JVs 2,067,380 639,122 2,707,002
3. EEEREAM 2 BRK 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland
2 B A 3 7 RO EL A China or other entities incorporated
REWBRRIMEE AR in Mainland China and their
subsidiaries and JVs 8,442,337 1,717,472 10,159,809
4 ABELRE-—THER 2 4. Other entities of central government
FH R T A Lt not reported in item 1 above 1,579,550 153,473 1,733,023
5. RBELMEZHERZ 5. Other entities of local governments
75 BT B A not reported in item 2 above 569,977 11,774 581,751
6. BEERBE AU AN 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
B RSk AR B A it DA S/ China or entities incorporated outside
X7 R HERE - 5 R Y Mainland China where the credits are
SRR A B A3 R granted for use in Mainland China 8,070,905 542,543 8,613,448
7. Bt R 5T - B 7. Other counterparties where the exposures
AR (T R B A RE are considered to be non-bank
FERITER PRI Mainland China exposures 579,554 - 579,554
28,293,016 3,400,336 31,693,352
ARERIT R E AMIRTTIE Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
RAlZHREEE CBEERS subsidiary bank after provision 189,622,746
BEARKRAKERE On-balance sheet exposures as
MEEGTADLL percentage of total assets 14.92%
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6. ERERGREZBEIIDH @

(A RESSH2EFERAERARE

=)
£

BFERZBHH N HREEEEARBB %Y
RPUFHEMDE - —MTE - % EREOER
FRARRSHF A2 EEE - B RS EE

% o

TRATFPERERE - ERRETFER - Af
EFEREERMEAF G REERRRED
#r o

(LAY T 7TA7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that
of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
customers and individually and collectively assessed impairment
allowances by geographical area.

1B B3R & 185U 34 AR

BEFEXR BEFEX BHEF B BB
#%  Individually B  Individually  Collectively
Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto advancesto advances to impairment impairment

2017512831 H At 31 December 2017 customers customers customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 95,759,022 702,373 662,535 246,470 282,407
H China 8,229,210 26,578 66,982 20,955 51,365
SRFT Macau 13,203,133 26,302 60,870 13,205 38,645
Hity Others 2,073,293 11 10,392 11 5,988
119,264,658 755,264 800,779 280,641 378,405

BB E EREHE AT

EFER BEFER BERP BEEE RELERE

4% Individually &3 Individually  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto  advancesto  advances to impairment impairment

201612 A31H At 31 December 2016 customers customers customers allowances allowances
BB Hong Kong 90,514,829 1,044,157 892,925 391,466 294,687
F China 7,573,907 72,815 127,256 30,499 67,881
| Macau 12,796,849 55,200 60,641 12,552 48,779
Hth Others 2,772,280 2,037 6,315 693 9,198
113,657,865 1,174,209 1,087,137 435,210 420,545
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6. ERERBRIEZEMIDH @

(T) EIRRfERE

BREREHREZEBRRNERK  RERXS
351 3 9 P AE b T B2 B8 ST SN 22 5 1 F A X T 4 £
B - —RME EXHHETFHEEEHETR
BERONZ—HHER  KETEERS —RRITNE
SN AT - MERATEENTRMER - 1 SHER
FEfem—BRERE S —BIR o Kt MMEMRR
ZEBREBE - R ABKBEIFREEAEE10% A
EZRETTEHEKE

6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
FRITIMARE
Non-bank private sector
Fom
FaR1T FhAKE
SRHE Non-

BRH#E Non-bank financial ERAE
2017%12H31H At 31 December 2017 #17 Official financial private Total
BEAL In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector claims
BEAL Offshore centres 6,903 17,445 7,429 114,262 146,039

—Hi: BB - of which: Hong Kong 5,781 15,164 7,133 98,814 126,892
FRAGAR Developing Asia and Pacific 32,271 2,083 1,058 12,780 48,192
—H - of which: Mainland China 26,357 2,005 694 11,135 40,191
FRITUAKE
Non-bank private sector

Fem

R FLAKE

SRR Non-

EAkE Non-bank financial EEAE
2016612 4311 At 31 December 2016 Eiihl Official financial private Total
BEBT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector claims
BRI Offshore centres 1,867 17,682 6,684 113,351 139,584

—Hh  FE - of which: Hong Kong 1,430 15,171 6,684 97,608 120,893
ERATAR Developing Asia and Pacific 24,301 1,730 1,149 10,070 37,250
—HEf:d - of which: Mainland China 20,282 1,730 1,133 8,561 31,706
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6. ERERBEZEIID @ 6. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(R) EERAERIAREEZEARREN (e) Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed
ERaliaakiin by percentage covered by collateral
2017 2016
FEFRRE SR R IRRE

BHREE WEDL
Contract % covered
amount by collateral

AT AR
Contract % covered
amount by collateral

M EREEMEERRE 2 Financial guarantees and

HABE other credit related
contingent liabilities 1,474,181 23.7
BEEREMEERRBZ Loan commitments and
HHE other credit related

commitments 75,198,549 3.0

76,672,730 3.4

1,570,209 29.3
69,528,743 3.6

71,098,952 4.2

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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7. EHE-TERBERABZEXRER

BIERBIER 2 EAREREEANT -

() FERBZERER

7. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND

OPERATIONAL RISKS

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

2017 2016
F R R R Sovereign exposures 226 208
N BT [ B A Public Sector Entity exposures 23,689 24,711
SRITR R AR Bank exposures 1,128,718 883,987
5 2 7 [ e A Securities firm exposures 82,221 26,854
V5 B [ g Corporate exposures 5,575,122 5,368,416
REeIEHE Cash items 36,752 22,349
BB T E R RIE Regulatory retail exposures 964,883 1,022,063
FEZRBER Residential mortgage loans 1,207,314 1,207,197
H At AR 480 B R B o o2 Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 1,134,966 1,135,741
760 HA R g 7 & Past due exposures 46,590 65,192
&R B I Securitization exposures 28,417 21,136
AEAGBRARRAE 2 EARNERERE Total capital charge for on-balance
sheet exposures 10,228,898 9,777,854
HEEEERER Direct credit substitutes 10,203 11,289
B 518/ 2 S ARIEE Transactions-related contingencies 17,688 15,662
B S/ 2 ATEE Trade-related contingencies 9,116 8,400
RATFR Forward forward deposits placed - 336
H A Other commitments 80,840 67,512
EEE4 Exchange rate contracts 29,836 76,755
FEEL Interest rate contracts 1,559 14,002
AL Equity contracts 560 271
XERE R FREEE BB OTC derivatives contracts subject
BN GHITETEEHR to valid bilateral netting agreement 18,295 -
AEAGBRINARAE 2 EARNERERE Total capital charge for off-balance
sheet exposures 168,097 194,227
FRZGEHFZEREL Capital charge for central
counterparties 344 298
ERMERABRCERER Capital charge for credit
valuation adjustment 49,125 59,654
FEERRZ EARERBERE Total capital charge for credit risk 10,446,464 10,032,033

BT ASBRA B E AR N Z B it
RN MEE - WHAEE 2 ER[EEE

Ao institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.

This disclosure is made by multiplying the risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the
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(i) THEABRZEFRER
ARITRABEF Bt E T B AR

(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
OPERATIONAL RISKS (continued)

(i) Market risk capital charge

The Bank uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market risk.

2017 2016
B gL BXAER  ERIEHE BARER
Risk weighted Capital  Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
TR BB Interest rate exposures

(BEHE) (including options) 293,538 23,483 369,287 29,543

HNE BB A Foreign exchange exposures
(BREES ) (including gold and options) 1,714,025 137,122 1,658,738 132,699
2,007,563 160,605 2,028,025 162,242

2\ e AN BURR B AR R P R R AR 1T RFTER 1T (7
B) Z8RT 2 T A HVBREE o

(i) BERRZIERER
AERITIRAEAIIEH EE EIRERR o

The risk-weighted amount included those amounts arising from
derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB China.

(iii) Operational risk capital charge

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating
operational risk.

2017 2016

RIERR 2 EARRHK

8. ©XER

TCEBRESAANEGE  LHIBEZSHEH#
FRAINHENET METEERIENAE
BIFREMR

—

X

() aRES

AEFRE2ETHERZERMBEHEERER
FtA [ AR A B r bR E RIS | T
FIHEZK

Capital charge for operational risk 731,900 680,864

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is concerned with how companies are
managed and controlled, and in particular the role and operation of
the Board of Directors in sustaining sound business integrity and
practices, and effective accountability.

(@) Statement of Compliance

The Group has fully complied with the requirements set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorized Institutions” issued by the HKMA.
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8. TEETBAmW
(z) BExg

R2017F 128318 EFTEEF/ETHERE -
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Z - WRREREANEAREE RFEBNES
FRMG o

HITEFHRHESEREEERITEEEL L
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SNRERE -
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() FEZES

MAFRITEBEARINEREZEZE
g FERNEREMNEEESEGHEN
MW E RERE - WA RSB B
BRIE AMEERS  BRREEZNOR
ELEREESEH REBeYHESEE
BREBINEFEMER  UHEESRED
BERMERE REEREHER

B3 B IFNITEE AR EBEX
ZEEBFEAKENSRERE WX
BZAEE RONEEAD - BITRDIKX
TR -ZBEEXIFE-B HH-UEAE
BB RBELERNE L IFRITESE
o

SENNERLBIEFTEUEBEREZE
SIEHIIRE LROMESR - MIMNER AN AT &
ERZBSME  ROENEARERRE
MBREER
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8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
(b) The Board

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised a Chairman, seven
executive directors including the Group Chief Executive, and five
non-executive directors. The Board meets at least quarterly. Its
principal roles include the formulation and approval of corporate and
business strategies, review of operations and financial performance,
approval of key policies and annual business plans, and ensuring the
maintenance of sound risk management and regulatory compliance.

Executive directors are appointed to the Board based on their
experience, specialist skill and knowledge of different businesses
of the Group. Non-executive directors bring to the Board their
knowledge and experience of other markets and industries,
guide executive management’s strategy development and policy
implementation, and provide valuable external perspectives in the
Board’s deliberations.

(c) Board and Specialised Committees
(i) Audit Committee

The Group Audit Committee, established by the Board of
DSBG, has the authority to review all matters related to
financial statements and disclosure, audit work performed by
internal and external auditors, internal control systems, risk
management system and compliance for the whole Group. The
Committee reports to the Board its observations and comments
on any issue that needs to be brought to the attention of the
Board, and makes recommendations to the Board regarding
financial statements and results announcements.

Three independent non-executive directors comprise the Group
Audit Committee, which meets at least three times a year with
the Group’s senior management, the head of internal audit and
the external auditors. The Chairman of the Committee is an
independent non-executive director with a high level of financial
and audit experience.

The head of internal audit of the Group reports functionally
to the Group Audit Committee. External auditors have direct
access to the Committee for expressing their views and
comments on any matter or concern relating to the Group.
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(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(i) Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The RMCC of the Bank is a Board-level committee with the
responsibility to provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s
risk management strategy and development, review risk
management issues and the resolution thereof, review risk
management policies and major risk limits prior to the approval
by the Board, and review major regulatory compliance issues
and development, and exercise oversight on the compliance
function and activities of the Bank. It has the authority to
conduct any enquiry and review on matters related to risk
management and compliance with risk policy and regulatory
requirements. The RMCC holds four meetings a year.

The RMCC comprises two independent non-executive directors
of the Bank and the Chief Executive of DSBG.

(i) Executive Committee

The EC comprises the Chairman, Group Chief Executive and
executive directors of the Bank. It is responsible for developing
and setting the strategy and objectives of the Group. It
provides direction and guidance to business divisions, reviews
business performance, ensures effective internal control
systems, allocates resources, prioritises business initiatives and
investment, and is delegated with the authority of the Board
to exercise the authority and power of the Board on matters
relating to the normal course of business of the Group.

The EC can call upon such members of senior management

for advice or participation in its discussions as it deems
appropriate.
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(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(iv)  Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Group ALCO is accountable to the EC of the Group and
of the Bank, and oversees the overall management of the
statement of financial position, liquidity, funding, interest
rate risk and market risk of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating business plans affecting lending business, loan mix,
treasury investments, deposit taking and capital management.
It also plays a key role in the overall risk governance and
management of the Group.

ALCO meets every week and its regular tasks include the
review of key business emphasis and development, loan and
deposit changes, funding requirement, liquidity, surplus funds
investments, capital market dealing, and review of market
changes and competition. ALCO also conducts a regular
monthly review of overall statement of financial position and
business performance, including trend analysis and actual
positions against limits and targets.

ALCO is chaired by the Group Chief Executive. Members of
the Committee include executive directors of the Group and
its banking subsidiaries, heads of most business divisions, risk

management and financial control.

(v)  Credit and Risk Management Committees

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee are the
functional committees responsible for credit policy formulation
and portfolio monitoring of the loan and treasury business
respectively. These committees are all chaired by the Chief
Executive of DSBG with certain executive directors and
senior business and credit officers as members. Credit
risk measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring
requirements are detailed in credit policies.
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8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
(c) Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(vi)  Compliance Committee

The Group Compliance Committee is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Committee serves to uphold a high level of
awareness and accountability of compliance requirements.
The Group has adopted an ongoing compliance control and
monitoring process within business and support functions to
enhance compliance control.

Members of the Compliance Committee include the Chief
Executive, the Head of GRD, the Head of Group Compliance
Division (“GCD”), a number of executive directors and senior
operation and risk control executives of the Group. Minutes of
the Committee meetings and regular report are submitted to the
Group Audit Committee.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase
financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly from the Treasury Division and is associated
principally with the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions in the
trading book and its investment securities.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition
resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from

inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market

share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, and inappropriate
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to the
market changes.

The other risk management aspects are disclosed below.

(@) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in
relation to risk control are:

° the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both the
transaction and portfolio levels;

. the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics
and policy compliance; and

° the review of financial performance by analysis against
approved budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial
measures.

The RMCC have been delegated the authority to oversee and guide
the management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by GRD and different functional committees.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring that
policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole. GRD
monitors and reports the Group’s risk positions to the Board via the
RMCC, sets standards for the management of financial risks and data
integrity and ensures that the financial risks are fully considered in the
product planning and pricing process. GRD reviews and manages all
credit and risk exposure policies for the Group including the approval
of exposures to new markets, economic sectors, organisations,
credit products and financial instruments which expose the Group to
different types of risks. In determining risk policies, GRD takes into
account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business direction,
and risk adjusted performance of each business.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the
Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter
into credit exposures with the confidence that it understands the
associated risks and rewards.

The Group continues to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of GRD, with increasing focus of its risk
strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital. The Group uses
a range of risk measurement and analytical tools in its management
of various risks which it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these
are continually being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-
changing business needs and the requirements of the regulators.

(c) Credit committees

The Group has a GCC for approving major credit limits. The CMC and
the TIRC are the functional committees responsible for approving and
recommending policies, limits and mandates for risk control in loans
and treasury business respectively. The credit risk function, while set
up to support the business areas, reports solely to the GRD.

(d) Credit risk
(i) Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the external credit
assessment institutions (“ECAIls”) that the Group uses
for the assessment of its credit risk exposures to
banks, sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective
investment schemes as well as securitisation exposures
and exposures to rated corporates. The Group also has
an internal grading methodology for assessing credit
exposures to unrated corporates.
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9. B EE @) 9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) EERR @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1GEEEAEE) (i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)
REEBERECRITE(ER)RADE4BHR The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
EZER BEHETEREAZ AR ATEES booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in
PR ST M 384T AEEAR o Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
SATER
ERDE
fEIEAH
REZER
g
Total
FanEERERS exposure
ZBREE RATERR covered by
Evposures after BRNENE fRE 2R recognised
recognised redt Risk-weighted REAE quaraniees
fisk miigaton amounts BRNER Totel o
R #E R #E g exposlre recognised
BRARLE (32) (&3] (2) (&3] Totel sk covered by credit
Ak 2017 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BREH Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
B OREEEER A Oneanceshest
1 TEkE 1. Sovereign 18,104,343 13,874,500 - 288 - 288 - -
). DEEN 2. Public Sector Enty 967,943 1,730,019 - 296,109 - 296,109 - -
3 BEEEET 3 Mufiatel
Development
Bank 308,369 308,369 - - - - - -
4§ 4. Bank 40,207,153 40,633,668 - 14108976 - 14108976 - -
b #E 5, Securts firn 2056517 39 203,128 1% 1,027,565 1,027,759 - -
6. 8 6. Corporate 82,392,790 2,339,161 56,564,231 13475,222 56,213,800 69,689,022 4673498 32991
7. BEER 7. Cash ftems 738,306 - 389,590 - 459,404 459,404 - -
8 EESE 8. Regulatory retail 16,418,664 - 16,061,877 - 12,061,038 12,061,038 301,626 35,861
0. [EEE 9. Residential
mortgage loans 3,12675 - 34,950,599 - 15,091,422 15,091,422 - 162,076
10, Zb5ed 10, Other exposures
Bl which ae not past
dlue exposures 12,448.415 305,055 11,526,069 172901 14,014,168 14,187,075 564,673 49
i1, BEERAE 11, Pastdueexposures 571,801 - 571,801 - 562374 562974 307,683 60,196
L BEEEE) B Offbalancesheet
1. BN 1. Offbalance sheet
TAR53 exposures ofher
[ than OTC
TERH Gervative
LERRER fransactons or
IR creditdervtive
contracts 1,734,178 - 1,734,178 - 1413011 1413011 54,576 -
2 BFEIE 2 OTC dervaive
1% transactions 1,600,243 1,216,208 324,035 364,049 204087 626,136 586,753 -
R, ##%54%  C. Cenbal Counterparies 214783 - 214783 - 4.9 4.9 - -

T. EF126008% D, Exposuresthatare
ENI risk-Welghted
at1.250% 847
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9. [ B B B () 9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) FERRE @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1GEEEAEE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
RAER
SR
fETEAH
[REZAR
g
Total
ElAEERaRE eAposure
bl et covered by
Evposures fter BlrinEaE RELER recogrised
recognised credlt Risk-eighted e Quarantees
fisk mitigation amourts BikinEs Totdl o
T AT iR AEIR £z eXpOSUIe recogrised
BlAESR (#2) (&3) (i#2) (3 Tote risk covered by cred
016% 216 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated Welghted recognised derivative
ERER Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2 (Note 3 (Note 2) (Note ) amounts collateral contracts
TOEERERMN A Onbalanceshest
1. TiEgE 1, Soveregn 12,9083 12,997,956 - 2505 - 2505 - -
2. DEEf 2. Public Sector Enty 957,583 1,795,966 - 306,885 - 308,885 - -
8 ZRERAT 8 Mullateral Development Bank 138,01 138,901 - - - - - -
4 B 4. Bank 31,118,925 32,276,869 419759 10,844,834 20499 11,049833 - -
5 #5E 5, Securtes firn 671,339 39 671,000 110 335,500 335,670 - -
6. @ 6. Corporate 19314254 23,167,083 52,424,933 14847787 52,267 418 67,105,200 3,969,853 621,812
7. BEEA 1. Cashitems 189,937 - 3,071,298 - 219,363 219,363 - -
8 EETE 8. Regulatory retail 17,390,244 - 17,034,386 - 12,775,790 12,775,790 210,604 85,295
0. fFERE 9. Residential mortgage loans 337,181 - 520187 - 15,089,965 15,089,965 - 836,994
10, EfRBSE 10, Otherexpostres which arenot
BlaAE past due exposures 12,985,021 1,926,728 10,578,862 1,175,844 1302091 14,196,759 489,007 57
1, BHERAE 11 Pastdueexposures 817,721 - 817,721 - 814,804 814,804 531,775 10348
L. BEBER) B Offodenceshest
1. BEOMTE 1 Offbalance sheet
I8R5 euposures ofher
fREfE then OTC dervetive
TEAH transactions or
LEEEE creditdervtive
FoVER contracts 1,730,320 - 1,730,320 - 1289997 1,289,997 87,356 -
2. BIMTETE 2. OTC dervative ransactons 2,361,536 1,885,628 475,908 747,066 390,769 1,187,855 129,351 -
5
R, BREBHE . Centl Counterpartes 186,407 - 186,407 - 3% 378 - -
T, EF1250%E0 D, Exposures thatarerisk-veigted
BBl at1,250% 21,136
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Note:

(1) principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2) including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which
do not have an issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are
determined under the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer
rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI issue
rating of any other exposures of the obligor).

(3) exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and
outstanding amounts on net open positions arising from OTC
derivative transactions, repo-style transactions and credit
derivative contracts booked in its banking book or trading
book. The credit risk exposures associated with these contracts
are predominantly their fair values (i.e. the positive marked-
to-market values favourable to the Group). These credit risk
exposures together with potential exposures from market
movements are managed as part of the overall lending limits
allowed to counterparties. Collateral or other security is
generally not obtained for such credit risk exposures except
cash margin transfer to cover credit risk exposure arising from
OTC derivative transactions under credit support arrangement
with counterparties.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash
or a delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation
of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To
mitigate settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established
for individual counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements
on a day. The Group will also enter into netting arrangements
and make settlement on the basis of delivery against payment
as appropriate.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

Under the terms of the current collateral obligations of
the Group with respect to derivative contracts, collateral
movements are not linked with the credit ratings of the Group
(2016: Nil).

The Group has in place the policies and procedures to control
and monitor wrong-way risk, including requiring prior approval

before entering into prescribed wrong-way risk deals.

The following table summarises the Group’s main credit
exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions.

2017 &£ 2016
12831 H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTER S OTC derivative transactions 2017 2016
NFEEIFEEEEE Gross total positive fair value 950,963 1,247,508
MBRERFREEENERRR Default risk exposures net
of bilateral netting 1,609,411 2,366,553
RAEAMEE - 1=E5 Value of recognised collateral by type
—TFR - Deposits 586,753 129,351
HMBREER 2 ERMmAEERR Default risk exposures net
of recognised collateral 1,022,659 2,366,553
[R\ B N SRR Risk weighted amounts 628,319 1,137,955
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9. B EE @) 9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) K BHFsERRFRIEE) (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
TRELCEESESENEERR FHENL An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit
[B\ Bz INFE SN RR 2 AT o exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as
follows.
2017 F 2016 4F
12HA31H 12A431H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTER S OTC derivative transactions 2017 2016
HEEE Notional amounts:
—R1T - Banks 97,738,587 80,746,539
— =8 - Corporates 10,158,403 15,226,960
—HAh - Others 8,549,664 6,512,189

116,446,654 102,485,688

SESEHES Credit equivalent amounts/net
EERBFE credit exposures:
—iR7T — Banks 1,223,837 1,813,911
— = — Corporates 264,430 441,229
—Hfb — Others 121,144 111,413
1,609,411 2,366,553
[R\ B ANRESLAR - Risk-weighted amounts:
—iR7T — Banks 361,802 711,207
— = — Corporates 234,284 404,875
—Hh - Others 32,233 21,873
628,319 1,137,955
7K201712 31 H % 2016F12H31H - There were no credit exposures arising from repo-style
TERFEEOBEARINEENTERSSE transactions and credit derivative contracts at 31 December
B2 EERR - 2017 and 31 December 2016.
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9. FEMREIEm
(T) EERK @
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(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk mitigation

The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and
public light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to
customers, the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued
by governments, public sector entities and corporates with
acceptable credit rating.

Real estate properties taken as collateral are evaluated before
the loan can be drawn. For property collateral supporting
problem accounts, their open market values are appraised at
least every three months. For property collateral that has been
repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for realisation as
soon as practicable.

(e) Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the
risk management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note
3.3 to the financial statements.

() Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to
calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures on Basel lll basis.
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAIs that the Group has
used in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation exposures
below.

The asset securitisation exposures of the Group represented
investment in structured investment vehicles managed by third
party portfolio managers and in which the Group is an investor. The
investment is classified as a financial asset designated at fair value
through profit or loss in the Group’s banking book and has been
assessed as impaired since 2007. It is carried at a residual value of
36.38% (2016: 27.26%) of the par value as at 31 December 2017
based on price quote obtained from the investment manager.
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9. FEMREIEm 9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(B) BEEZESHtum () Asset securitisation (Continued)

oyt
g8

BF1,250%
BAREE BBAEEE

AMEE  Risk-weighted Exposures deducted from

23] amount - BxHE EERE-REX —REX
#EH Securitisation Outstanding at1,250% Capital Common Equity Tier 2
BRI exposures amounts risk weight  requirements  Tier 1 Capital Capital
20175 2017
HHRAK Synthetic securitisations
—HEMRETA - Structured investment
vehicles 28,417 355,213 28,417 - -
20165 2016
HHRAK Synthetic securitisations
—HEMRETA - Structured investment
vehicles 21,136 264,201 21,136 - -
(BF) $R{TEE 2 IR FER b (99 Equity exposures in banking book
NEFE R IEE AR R D RIS B A ESRRRE The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for
S EEAREER M - RASFIEENIEER strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes
M RSN EBREE IR ENTT R BKERE at inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital
i mBnEE - HE ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ]ﬁ}@ appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment
B ERE 2 NEiga| - &H{’@Tﬂﬁ?‘ %H%WE analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,
{0 FTiSERIN IS B [BEEGE - marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger,
and various other control guidelines. Listed equity holdings are valued
on the basis of market bid prices.
2017 2016
REHE B8 2 BRIk Realised gains from sales/liquidations 218,689 30,843
KRB 2 B (B18) s Unrealised revaluation (loss)/gain
— BB EEHEEERRIN IR - Amount included in reserves but not
2 through income statement (35,071) 95,964
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(LAY T 7A7%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book

%
Currency
BT ESH ARH Hit B3
2017 % 2017 HK$ USs$ CNY Others Total
MEEREE Interest rate risk shock
FFt200%F +200 basis points
— &7,/ CAD) - Increase/(decline) in earnings 282,000 (288,000) (10,000) (58,000) (74,000)
Currency
BT e AR ity A&t
20165 2016 HK$ Us$ CNY Others Total
HEEREE Interest rate risk shock
FF200%F +200 basis points
—&HEm/CAd) - Increase/(decline) in earnings 201,000 (176,000) 1,000 (49,000) (23,000)

(E) BERR

AEESE —(AEERBERRERR 855
REBAR  —BURREERNE  RREZE
BRI ZIRIERBRAS - WEB—FRINE
TERBEBUR - BT EA - R ER R SR HR R
wRERS RARFEEENTIERRESETA
EBIE - RERRRAMEZER B S (MHRIERR K&
NMELXZBEEERYL NERAKE 2
ERREERARNEREE ERRY AR
WEEE R - BRIERR TR FE 0 R - 7
filr ~ BEEERORUE o RREME B AN EBHnE
EIRERRIEE - BAMIERRIZ TR 2T

RREFGRBAXMHAREXBZEE K
SECRERBSH - RIEETBENGE - X
BATA X EXB R SIRAMPTETAR -

5B R PO DS R D I R P BB B2 R G B T
B SR ERREE - ARE2AREER
ARZREREERRFEREEZRRRAM
o

(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management, an
independent risk management team and operational risk officers
from each business and support function, and operating through a
set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk incident
reporting and tracking system, and control self-assessment and
key risk indicator tools. The Operational Risk and Internal Control
Committee (“ORICC”) has been set up to oversee the operational risk
management and internal control matters of the Group. Together with
a well-established internal control system, operational risk can be
adequately identified, assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow
the operational risk framework to be clearly communicated to all levels
within the Group, awareness and training programs are conducted

from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operation recovery
policies and plans have been established and tested for all critical
business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
The Group’s RMCC have an overall oversight of the performance and
effectiveness of operational risk management.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
() Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; anti-money
laundering and counter terrorist financing; proper staff training and
supervision; staff awareness of compliance issues; proper handling
of customer complaints or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound
business practices. Standards are set and policies and procedures
are established by the Group in all areas, which operate to reduce
vulnerability to reputation risk.

(k) Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group in line with the
Group’s corporate mission, ensure business strategies are developed
to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic development and
implementation to secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic
goals, ensure proper change management is in place, review business
performance and address issues arising from anticipated operational
or market changes, deploy proper resources to achieve the Group’s
objectives, and authorise management to take appropriate actions to
mitigate risks.

() Compliance with the Basel lll Capital Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il
has become effectiv e from January 2007, the Bank has adopted
the standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and the
basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the default
approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly,
the Bank has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the
standards required for these approaches.

To implement the new international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel IlI” rules, the HKMA had published the
Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules between 2012 and 2017, and
revised SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process” in 2012
and 2016. The revised capital standards and related regulatory
requirements have come into force for all locally incorporated
authorised institutions in Hong Kong starting from 1 January 2013.
The Bank has enhanced its capital management and reporting
framework as well as disclosures for meeting the new requirements.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital Standards
(Continued)

In addition to the implementation of the Banking (Capital) Rules under
the Basel Il framework in Hong Kong, two new capital buffers, namely
the Capital Conservation Buffer and Countercyclical Capital Buffer,
designed to ensure that banks build up sufficient capital to withstand
periods of stress and system-wide risk associated with periods of
excessive aggregate credit growth, have commenced to phase in
since 1 January 2016. To align with the regulatory requirements,
the Bank’s capital management framework has been enhanced to
incorporate the two capital buffers as elements in the setting of
internal capital targets for capital adequacy monitoring and capital
planning.

To address the negative externalities posed by systemically
important institutions, the Basel Committee established a framework
in November 2011 (subsequently updated in July 2013) for the
identification of global systemically important banks (“G-SIBs”) and
the determination of their corresponding HLA capital requirements.
Subsequently, a principles-based framework for dealing with
domestic systemically important banks (“D-SIBs”) was issued by the
Basel Committee in October 2012. Based on the latest list of G-SIBs
and D-SIBs issued by the Financial Stability Board (“FSB”) and the
HKMA respectively, the Bank is neither designated as a G-SIB nor
D-SIB and is therefore not subject to further capital surcharge.

(m) Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the New
Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy
which requires the relevant business and supporting units, including
GRD, to review the critical requirements, risk assessment and
resources plan before the launch. New products or services which
could have a significant impact on the Group’s risk profile should be
brought to the attention of the Board or its designated committee(s)
before the launch. The Group’s Internal Audit function performs
regular independent review and testing to ensure compliance by the
relevant units in the new product approval process.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(n) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit which is designed to focus on
enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and
operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the
Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal
control activities such as compliance audits and operations and
systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness
of the systems of control of the Group.

10. REMUNERATION SYSTEM
(@) Remuneration Principles

The Group adopts the following remuneration principles:

° Pay for performance is the guiding principle to reward individual
performance and contribution, which are measured through the
performance management process.

° The remuneration structure is based on various factors such as
business needs, culture, strategy, objectives, risk appetite and
control environment, market situations and the principles set
out in relevant legal and regulatory requirements applicable to
employees’ remuneration.

o The Group Remuneration Policy (“GRP”) is to align with the
Group’s risk management framework, and to support the
achievement of long-term financial soundness of the Group,
including its key subsidiary banks.

° Variable remuneration is designed to align employees’ incentive
awards with their performance and contributions in the long
term, and the time horizons of risk.

° Generally, the proportion of variable remuneration to
total remuneration increases in line with the seniority and
responsibilities of an employee.
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(a)

(LABH T 7TA1%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Remuneration Principles (Continued)

The appropriate proportion of variable remuneration to be
deferred depends on a number of factors, including an
employee’s seniority, roles, responsibilities and activities
within the Group, the time horizons of the risks incurred by
the employee’s activities and the overall level of their variable
remuneration both in absolute terms and as a proportion of his/
her fixed pay.

Decision of individual remuneration package will depend on
market pay levels, individual performance and contribution,
principles set out in the GRP, and performance and affordability
of the Group, and consideration of regulatory guidelines.

The Group’s remuneration strategy is to position itself at market

median to upper quartile level, and offers to its employees

remuneration packages, which normally consist of guaranteed

cash and variable remuneration largely in the form of discretionary

performance incentive bonus, that as a whole will properly reward

individual performance and are competitive relative to market pay

levels.

(b)

Governance of the Remuneration System

()  Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Group’s Board of Directors approves the GRP and assumes
the ultimate responsibility for overseeing the formulation,
implementation and update of the GRP. The Board of the
Bank’s parent company, DSBG, has in place the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”), which is a committee
of the Board of DSBG having oversight responsibilities and
authority on remuneration system and practices over DSBG and
its subsidiaries, including the Bank. Members of the DSBG NRC
are appointed by the DSBG Board. The majority of the members
of NRC are independent non-executive directors of DSBG
and of the Bank. The committee is responsible, among other
things, for the review and endorsement of the nomination of
directors, approval of the remuneration of directors and senior
management. The Board delegates the following responsibilities
and authorities to the NRC:

° Assists the Board in discharging its responsibility for

the design and operation of the Group’s and the Bank’s
remuneration system;
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REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)

(i) Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (Continued)

° Reviews, and makes recommendations to the Board in
respect of the Group’s and the Bank’s remuneration policy
and practices and ensures that these are determined
based on appropriate factors such as the Group’s
culture, strategy, objectives, risk appetite and control
environment, and also the principles set out in relevant
legal and regulatory requirements;

° Determines the specific remuneration packages of
members of senior management of the Group;

o Evaluates any practices or recommendation by which
remuneration is paid for potential future revenues or
benefits whose timing and likelihood remain uncertain; and

. Ensures that regular review of the Group’s remuneration
system and its operation is sustained.

The DSBG NRC held three meetings in 2017 and 2016
respectively. No director’s fee was payable to the Bank’s
Independent Non-Executive Directors in their role as members
of DSBG NRC, as they were remunerated by the Bank’s holding
company, DSBG or ultimate holding company, DSFH.

In December 2017, the Board of the Bank has set up the DSB
NRC with responsibilities and authorities similar to that of the
DSBG NRC. Members of the DSB NRC are appointed by the
DSB Board and the majority are independent non-executive
directors of the Bank.

(i)  Review of the Remuneration System

Internal Audit Division (“IAD”) of the Group is responsible to
conduct internal monitoring of the remuneration system and its
operation to ensure compliance with the GRP. As required by the
Group’s remuneration framework, a review, at least on an annual
basis, of the Group’s remuneration system and its operation, which
includes an assessment of consistency with the “Guideline on a
Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA, is conducted
independently of the management and the result is submitted to
the NRC and to the HKMA if required. The independent review
can be conducted by an external party, or by the Group’s internal
audit, compliance or human resources functions, or a combination
of these parties as directed by the NRC. The NRC will report any
material issues in relation to the Group’s remuneration system or
practices to the Board of the Group and the Bank.
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REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(i)  Review of the Remuneration System (Continued)

IAD conducted the review in the second quarter of 2017 jointly
with Human Resources Division (“HRD”) and noted that the
Group’s remuneration system was in compliance with the GRP
and consistent with the HKMA’s guideline in this connection.

(iii)  Roles of the Risk Control Functions

Risk control functions, including GRD, GCD and FCD, are
involved in the process of design and implementation of
the GRP. They will play a continuing role in the operation of
the remuneration system in relation to matters such as risks
measures and risk judgements. They will also be consulted
by the NRC, where appropriate and independent of business
divisions, on their view and advice as to how compensation
relates to risk at various levels within the Group or specific
business division, including the proper alignment of risk
and reward, and the time horizon on risk and performance
measurement, changes in the risk profile of the Bank in general,
or of a particular business division or major business strategy,
and the considerations as regards remuneration to properly
align with risks taken, with the need to balance the time horizon
for longer term business performance and risk realisation.

FCD together with HRD and GRD are responsible for the proper
disclosure of the Group’s remuneration system and practices,
and specific features relating to actual remuneration to comply
with the HKMA remuneration guideline. Most of the heads of
risk control functions have a functional reporting line to relevant
board-level committees chaired by independent non-executive
directors. All risk control functions specified above have direct
and independent access to the NRC on matters relating to the
Group’s remuneration system and practices. In addition, both
GRD and GCD have direct access to the Bank’s board-level
RMCC.
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10.

(b)

(c)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(iii)  Roles of the Risk Control Functions (Continued)

The Group’s banking and financial services business model
is a risk underwriting and risk management business. With
risk management as a key function and control process of
the Group, a key purpose of GRD is to assist the Group to
maximise the probability of achieving the Group’s long-term
objectives while ensuring that the Group, its business and
risk control units, in pursuing various business strategies and
managing risk taking activities, will have proper regard to short-
term constraints, limits and regulatory guidelines, and with the
general sense and appropriate process on striking a proper
balance of risk and reward for the long-term success and
soundness of the Group.

(iv)  Roles of the Human Resources Division

One of the key roles of HRD is to support the Group to attract
quality candidates and retain and motivate existing employees.
To achieve these objectives, HRD regularly reviews the Group’s
human resources policies and employees’ compensation
and benefits with reference to market practices to ensure
competitiveness. HRD also provides support to the design and
implementation of remuneration policy and measures to meet
regulatory requirements and align with market practices.

Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group

The GRP is established to provide the key remuneration principles

and practices covering all employees of the Group, and the key risk

management requirements relating to remuneration, performance and

risk control. Specific regards are on the remuneration and the roles of

the following personnel:

1)

Senior Management are senior executives with accountability
to the Board, and are responsible for executing the firm-
wide strategies, guiding the development of the Group, and
overseeing business activities, risk management and internal
control of the Group. These mainly include the Chairman, Vice
Chairman and Chief Executive of DSBG, and the Chief Executive
and Executive Directors of the Bank. The total number of
individuals classified under this category is 9 (2016: 9).
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REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group (Continued)

“Key Personnel”, i.e. individual employees whose duties
or activities in the course of their employment involve the
assumption of material risk or the taking on of material
exposures on behalf of the Group. During 2017 and 2016, the
Group did not have any employees classified as Key Personnel
under its existing remuneration system.

Groups of employees whose activities in the aggregate may
expose the Group to material amounts of risk, and who
are subject to the same or similar incentive arrangements
(including employees who are incentivised to meet certain
quotas or targets by payment of meaningful amount of variable
remuneration). During 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have
any employees classified in this category under its existing
remuneration system.

Employees within risk control functions (including group risk
management, compliance, internal audit, and financial control).

Remuneration of all employees in risk control functions is independent

of the performance of the business units which they exercise control

or oversight. Generally, the remuneration of these employees is

determined by their respective Divisions, and Top Management will

be involved in the determination of remuneration of the respective

senior personnel. Management of business units are not allowed to

determine the remuneration of employees in the risk control functions.

Subsidiaries in overseas locations broadly follow the principles

and guidelines set out in the GRP, and may customise the relevant

parts where appropriate to address their local legal/regulatory

requirements, market situations and business needs.
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The structure of remuneration is generally composed of the
following components:

° Fixed remuneration including basic salary, allowances,

retirement benefits, and share options; and

° Variable incentives-based remuneration including
discretionary performance incentive bonus, and for some
front-line sales and services staff, incentive payment
based on business and sales performance.

In determining an appropriate balance between fixed and
variable remuneration, the Group takes into consideration the
seniority, roles, responsibilities and activities of its employees,
the need to promote appropriate behaviour amongst employees
that supports the Group’s risk management framework and
long-term financial soundness, as well as market pay practices.
The proportion of variable remuneration to total remuneration
generally increases in line with the seniority and responsibilities
of an employee.

For Senior Management, a fair to substantial proportion of
the remuneration is paid in the form of variable remuneration,
which is mainly granted in the form of performance incentive
bonus. Starting from 2010 performance year, a portion of the
bonus is deferred in the form of deferred bonus and subject to
vesting over a period of at least three years. This practice is to
achieve an effective alignment of incentive awards with the time

horizons of risks.

DSBG, the Bank’s holding company, and DSFH, the Group’s
ultimate holding company, have established executive share
option schemes under which, and subject to proper approval
process and vesting conditions, share options can be granted
to senior executives and other employees of the Bank to reward
their performance and contribution, and as a means to retain
relevant senior executives or employees. The cost of the share
options granted is borne by the Bank
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(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk
Adjustment

The Group’s performance is evaluated based on the
achievement against a set of pre-determined business or
financial targets that are of broader and higher level nature,
such as profitability target, and supervisory rating assigned by
the HKMA, which were set at the beginning of the performance
year. The performance of a division in a year is determined
by the Chief Executive based on the actual performance and
achievement against a set of pre-determined objectives or
targets of the division for the year set at the beginning of the
year, contributions to the Group and other factors considered
relevant for assessing performance. For business divisions, the
pre-determined targets normally include return on allocated
capital and business growth targets. Individual employees’
performance measures include assessable financial (e.g.
revenue, profits, costs, customer base, etc.) and non-financial
factors (e.g. competence, adherence to the Group’s guiding
principles and values, behavioural and ethical standards,
internal control, security control and risk management policies,
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, results of
internal audit reviews, customer satisfactions, etc.).

Within the risk-based remuneration framework operated by the
Group, GRD performs assessment of the Group’s risk profile
which takes into account major risks such as credit risk, market
and interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. In
aligning the remuneration of employees with the performance
of the business units or support functions to which they belong
and the risks taken on by the Group, both quantitative and
qualitative risk-adjusted measures are adopted by the Group.
Examples of the quantitative risk-adjusted measures applied
include risk-adjusted return on capital and liquidity costs.

GRD has the responsibilities of managing different types of risk
and maintaining a sound risk management system to enable
the Group to achieve its objectives, which include achieving
proper risk and return balance for the Group and its major lines
of business. The Head of GRD reports to the Chief Executive of
the Bank, has access to the Executive Committee and reports
functionally to the board-level RMCC chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Director.
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(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk

Adjustment (Continued)

Based on the Group’s performance against the pre-determined
targets set at the beginning of the year, long-term performance
and affordability of the Group as well as other relevant internal
and external factors, the Chief Executive proposes a preliminary
amount of total performance bonus for the year and allocation

considerations.

GRD provides an annual report to the NRC, or on a more
frequent basis as appropriate, on the risk management
performance of the Group and for the purpose of remuneration
review. The GRD report will normally include but is not limited to
the following:

° any significant changes in the risk profile of the Group
during the year;

o any significant improvement or deterioration in the system

of internal controls;

° any significant deterioration or concerns about the
external economic environment that could have potential
adverse impact to the Bank’s businesses and financial
performance;

° any significant risk concerns raised by regulatory
authorities;

o any events that caused significant damage to the
reputation of the Group; and

o specific business or risk actions taken to help mitigate risk
or improve revenue (risk adjusted or justified), or actions
which are considered to have contributed to the long-term
success or values of the Group.

On the basis of its review, the Head of GRD can provide
comment or recommendation to NRC if any specific factor
or adjustment needs to be considered in determining the
performance bonus pool for the year based on the qualitative
measures as listed above. The Chairman of the Group, in
consultation with the NRC if necessary, has the discretion and
flexibility to withhold all or part of the provisionally accrued
bonus amount when circumstances warrant.
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(d)

(LAS®EF AL/~ ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk

Adjustment (Continued)

The approved performance bonus pool for the performance
year is allocated to divisions based on the relative contribution
of different divisions, their staff profile as well as consideration
of applicable factors, including any input from the risk control
functions, and assessment of risk and return of the key
businesses. Once the respective performance bonus pool of
a division has been determined, the division head will decide
the bonus payments for individual employees taking into
consideration their individual performance and contribution,
internal relativity, the prevailing bonus distribution guideline and
available budget.

(iii)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria

The proportion of variable remuneration to be deferred varies
from one employee to another and depends on a series of
factors including the employee’s seniority, his or her roles,
responsibilities and activities within the Group, the time horizons
of the risks incurred by such activities and the overall level of the
employee’s variable remuneration both in absolute terms and as
a proportion of his or her fixed pay.

Starting the 2010 performance year, a minimum vesting period
for any deferred variable remuneration for the Bank’s Senior
Management is adopted so that the deferred remuneration
will only be vested and released to the awardees with due
consideration of fulfilling vesting conditions. These pre-defined
vesting conditions, depending on the level of the seniority of the
Senior Management and key roles assumed by each, normally
include factors such as the nature of the business outcomes
and risk arising from the activities undertaken by relevant
Senior Management in the past, the timeframe during which
the risks from these activities are likely to be realised, and the
assessment from risk control functions on the Bank’s internal
control, risk management and compliance performance. The
vesting of the deferred bonus over a period of years is gradual
and no faster than on a pro-rata basis, subject to fulfiiment and
validation of the pre-defined performance conditions. For the
deferred cash bonus under the 2017 performance incentive
bonus to be awarded to Senior Management in March 2018,
the maximum deferment period is no less than three years from
March 2018.
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REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)
(i)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria (Continued)

A “claw-back” mechanism is applied in respect of any unvested
deferred variable remuneration if (i) the vesting conditions
are not fulfilled; (i) performance measurement was based on
data which is later proven to have been manifestly misstated;
(iii) fraud or other malfeasance on the part of the individual
employee; or (iv) major violations by the employee of internal
control policies.

Departure of employees will not trigger early payout of deferred
remuneration that is still within the deferment period other than

in exceptional cases, such as on compassionate grounds.

Remuneration for the Senior Management

The tables below summarise the aggregate quantitative information
on the remuneration for the Bank’s Senior Management as defined in

accordance with the SPM CG-5 “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System” issued by the HKMA.

(1)  Remuneration Structure

2017 2016
ZHRAHBE X ABH
BEZ12A31H For the year ended %] Number of k-] Number of
LEE 31 December Amount Beneficiaries Amount  Beneficiaries
[E] 7 % M Fixed remuneration
—BEfkENZEE ~ Cash paid and payable 46,886 9 45,945 9
— DARRHE 2 15 2 R AR A - Equity-settled share
GEXPI) options (Notes 1 and 2) 1,013 3 3,953 5
— R EX N2 RRE - Cash-settled share
(Fft 53 K 4) options (Notes 3 and 4) 64,135 3 - -
FENEB (BT ) Variable remuneration
TR 2 TS B (including deferred
remuneration as shown
in (2) below)
—BENfkENZEE - Cash paid and payable 79,535 9 72,764 9

RFEBITAR DT 201 7F F 55
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Note:

(LAB® T 757K (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Remuneration for the Senior Management (Continued)

(1)  Remuneration Structure (Continued)

This reflects the cost of equity-settled share options borne by the Bank
recognised on the exercise of share options by relevant members of
Senior Management, with DSBG shares issued to them in the year under
the DSBG executive share option scheme.

The cost of equity-settled share options on the vesting of the share
options held by relevant members of Senior Management in the year and
borne by the Bank under the DSBG executive share option scheme is
HK$2,120,000 (2016: HK$2,172,000). Total cost of outstanding vested
options (not yet exercised) as at 31 December 2017 is HK$4,513,000
(2016: HK$3,406,000).

This reflects the cost of cash-settled share options borne by the Bank
recognised on the exercise of share options by relevant members
of Senior Management, with cash paid to the members, being the
difference between the exercise price and the average closing market
price (for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date when
the members exercised the options granted). The amount included
HK$20,794,000 price adjustments with reference to the changes in the
values of the vested cash-settled share options arising from changes in
the fair value of the share options and share price of DSBG in the year,
and the adjustments to such share option costs borne by the Bank.

The cost of cash-settled share options borne by the Bank on the vesting
of the share options held by relevant members of Senior Management
in the year under the DSBG executive share option scheme is nil (2016:
HK$8,668,000). Total cost of outstanding vested cash-settled share
options as at 31 December 2017 is nil (2016: HK$43,341,000).

(2) Deferred Remuneration

Starting 2010, a portion of the cash variable remuneration,
being the performance incentive bonus awarded to members of
Senior Management for their performance in each year, is paid
or payable in the form of deferred cash bonus. The payment
of deferred bonus is subject to vesting and performance
review in the 3 years immediately following the year when the
deferred bonus is awarded. Vesting factors and terms are pre-
determined, and are subject to the review and approval of the
Group’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee. If vested,
the deferred bonus will be paid by 3 equal annual installments
over the 3-year period.
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(LAB® T 7TAI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. EFHM&IE @)
(R) EBEEBAEZFHM @

2) B (&)

10.
(e)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Remuneration for the Senior Management (Continued)
(2) Deferred Remuneration (Continued)

I 7 57 B
Deferred
Remuneration

2017 2016

ENREMZES Cash paid and payable
REFE12A31B R Balance at 31 December of the

B1 A1 B 2484% preceding year and at 1 January 55,507 50,549
HE12 A1 BLLEE : For the year ended 31 December:

BTz a8 Awarded 21,401 19,648

B 5B R Vested and paid (17,225) (14,690)
M®12 A31 Bz &&% Balance at 31 December 59,683 55,507

720184 3 A B HE RN 2 iBEEEAL (%
RRBEREEZRTKBELREZET
&) - H4A%8518,709,5108 L E B 1E
£ EFIR2017912 A31 B 2 &% A » &
4 HA FE B8 517,225,050 8 ST B B FE
EFAIR2016F 12 A 31 HZ &8N o

The total value of the deferred cash bonus to be vested and
payable in March 2018, subject to satisfying performance
review and fulfilment of pre-determined vesting conditions,
amounts to HK$18,709,510, which is included in the above
balance as at 31 December 2017. The corresponding amount
for last year included in the above balance as at 31 December
2016 was HK$17,225,050.

BN
Not yet vested
2017 2016

R Share options
REFE12A31H K Balance at 31 December of the

W1 A 182 preceding year and at 1 January 2,557 14,568
HE12A31HIEFE : For the year ended 31 December:

B & (RItAZANER) Vested (and excluded from this pool) (2,120) (10,840)

ERAE(GE1) Price adjustments (Note 1) - (1,171)
12 A 31 BHE&& Balance at 31 December 437 2,557

1. ERARBDABBZUREXN 2REERF
AARFRITEBR N R FHEEBTSIBZEEE
B - UL RBRIERC A 2 I B R ANIRTTAGE ©

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k

Note:

Price adjustments refer to the changes in the values of the not-yet-
vested cash-settled share options arising from fluctuations in the fair
value of shares of DSBG in the year, and the adjustments to such share
option costs borne by the Bank.
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VR 2GR
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 22 to
188, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment of loans and advances to customers

° Impairment of the investment in an associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”)

o Disclosure in relation to the upcoming new accounting

standard, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 (“HKFRS
9”) — Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to note 4.1(a) and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded loan impairment allowance of
HK$659,046 thousand against the total
loan portfolio of HK$119,264,658 thousand,
with HK$280,641 thousand as individual
impairment allowances and HK$378,405
thousand as collective impairment
allowances.

Management assessed the impairment of
loans by considering the following:

o The identification of impairment
events, which differs based upon the
type of lending product and location.
Judgement is required to determine
whether a loss has been incurred.

o The measurement of impairment,
including the assessment of whether
historical experience is appropriate
when assessing the probability of
default in the portfolio.

* The parameters and assumptions
used to calculate impairment including
the valuation of collateral for secured
lending and the impact of economic
factors to the credit quality of the loan
portfolio.

Loan impairment allowances is an audit
focus due to the materiality of the balances
and the underlying calculations are subject
to significant judgement of management.

We understood and tested key controls in relation
to:

o the accuracy and completeness of the
transfer of loan data, including outstanding
loan balances and loan loss data, between
underlying source systems and the
impairment models that the Group used;

o the post-lending ongoing monitoring controls
in place to detect the occurrence of the
impairment events; and

o the management’s impairment assessment
and estimation processes, including the
assessment of the impairment models and
calculation of impairment allowances based
on the loan data and impairment events
identified in a way which is appropriate for
addressing the credit risk of the Group’s loan
portfolio.

In addition to testing the key controls, we have
also performed the following procedures:

o We assessed the criteria for determining
whether an impairment event had occurred
and the relevant impact on the estimated
impairment allowances.

o To corroborate with the management’s
identification of the impairment events,
we selected samples of performing loans
with characteristics indicating higher
risk of impairment event occurrence as
well as non-performing loans. To identify
such characteristics, we performed,
included but not limited to, analysis on
non-performing loans; business risks on
industries; and geographical locations of
borrowers, in particular, Mainland China
corporate exposures. On those samples,
we independently assessed whether
impairment events had occurred and tested
the appropriateness and adequacy of
impairment allowances.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Impairment of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

o For a sample of individually impaired loans
we understood the latest developments at
the borrowers and the basis of measuring
the impairment allowance and considered
whether key management judgments
were appropriate given the borrowers’
circumstances. We also re-performed
management’s impairment calculation
and tested key inputs to the impairment
calculation including valuation of collateral
held and estimated future cash flow from
borrowers.

o For the collective impairment allowances,
which reflects and addresses losses
incurred but not yet identified, we sample
tested the accuracy and completeness of
the underlying loan information used in
the impairment models by agreeing data
to the Group’s loan systems as well as re-
performing the calculation of the impairment
allowances. For the key assumptions applied
in the models, we challenged management
regarding the appropriateness by applying
our industry knowledge and benchmarking
with peer banks historical data.

For individual impairment allowances, we found no
material exceptions from our testing. For collective
impairment allowances, we found the key
assumptions and inputs used in the impairment
models were reasonable and in line with our
industry knowledge and market information.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of the investment in an associate, Bank of Chongqing (“B0CQ”)

Refer to note 4.2(e) and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group’s investment in BOCQ is
accounted for as an associate, using the
equity method. The Group carried the
investment in BOCQ of HK$4,134,651
thousand as at 31 December 2017 after
making a provision for impairment for the
investment of HK$815,000 thousand for the
year then ended.

Management identified the carrying value
of the investment is higher than the market
value of BOCQ which is considered
an indicator of potential impairment.
Management performed an impairment
assessment and has assessed that the
recoverable amount of the investment in
BOCQ was lower than its carrying value.
The recoverable amount was measured as
value-in-use (“VIU") estimate calculated by
discounted cash flow model (“DCF”).

We focused on this area due to the
materiality of the balance, the significance
of impairment charge and the highly
subjective management judgements and
assumptions involved in assessing the
impairment.

We have performed the following procedures in
relation to the assessment of impairment of the
investment in BOCQ:

o We obtained an understanding of the
impairment assessment and the processes
applied by management with respect to the
determination of the VIU of the investment in
BOCQ

o We evaluated the appropriateness of the
valuation model used by the management;

o We assessed the reasonableness of key
assumptions and inputs used by the
management, including the discount rate,
profit growth rate and exit value, based on
relevant supporting evidence (with reference
to external market information, third party
sources, including analyst reports, and
publicly available BOCQ information) and our
knowledge of the business and industry;

o We performed sensitivity analysis on the
VIU estimates to evaluate how sensitive
management’s assessment is to the change
of different inputs of key assumptions
individually and collectively in different
scenarios.

Based on the procedures we performed, we found
that management’s judgement used to perform
impairment assessment of the investment in
BOCQ was supported by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Disclosure in relation to the upcoming new accounting standard, Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9 (“HKFRS 9”) - Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”)

Refer to note 2.1(b)(1) to the consolidated
financial statements

For the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group is required
under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 8,
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors (“HKAS 8”) to provide
disclosures regarding the possible impact
of the new standards issued but not yet
effective.

HKFRS 9 is a new and complex accounting
standard, which became effective on 1
January 2018. The Group is required to
determine its impairment of certain financial
assets to take into account ECL.

HKFRS 9 has required considerable
judgements and interpretations in its
implementation. These judgements are
key in the development of new models to
measure the ECL on the loans and advances
measured at amortised cost. For example,
determination of significant increase in
credit risk is one of these judgments.

There is also a large increase in the data
inputs required by the new models. This
increases the risk of completeness and
accuracy of the data used to develop
assumptions and operate the models.
In some cases, data is unavailable and
judgements are required in seeking
reasonable alternatives to allow calculations
to be performed.

Our audit procedures in relation to the narratives
and the estimated amount with respect to ECL
included in the disclosures of the initial application
of HKFRS 9 included the followings:

o We independently assessed the technical
papers relating to the implementation
of HKFRS 9 requirements prepared by
management.

o With the assistance of our modelling
specialists, we challenged management
in respect of the methodologies and
assumptions used in the ECL models.

o We tested on a sample basis the Group’s
reconciliation between ECL models’ data
inputs and accounting records to ensure the
accuracy and completeness of the data used
in the ECL models.

o We tested on a sample basis the key
reconciliations of system interfaces to assess
the accuracy and completeness of data
transfer.

Based on the procedures we performed, we
considered the disclosure and the assessed
impact is supported by the available information
as provided by the management.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in Corporate Information, Directors’ and
Senior Management’s Profile, Report of the Directors, Directors
of Subsidiaries and Lists of Branches (but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon),
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and
Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information, which is expected to
be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information, if
we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Sin Bun, Benson.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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RIBITERAA

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

ERBEDT

Hong Kong Island Branches

BEEFDT BAFROEISE =S RiE

Aberdeen Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3, 2554 5463 2554 0843
Aberdeen Centre

SEBEPOLDIT BREBE18FEETOES 1 105k

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 2529 1338 3110 2818
No. 18 Harcourt Road

SRR 51T i # S ET B 58 482 5%

Causeway Bay 482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay 2891 2201 2591 6037

PEZ 1T EEE R 199 IRIRREH T A SR E

Central Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 2521 8134 2526 9427

BELDT 238 293-299 5= AE M T 15-22 5% & K i

Fortress Hill Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments, 2922 3389 2887 7604
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

HTITEDT ELHTIE 108 SR AL T B SR AR

Gloucester Road Shop B, G/F, Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road 2507 8866 2507 8654

BEDT WEH RS EF 13 HEMAEH T AR

Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street, 2572 0708 2572 0718
Happy Valley

BIREWD1T SEVE R SR 100 SR A TEEBBIEFTIME T G59 557

Heng Fa Chuen Unit G59, G/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 100 Shing 2558 7485 2889 2520
Tai Road, Chaiwan

HEBEST B R HE 164 57

Johnston Road 164, Johnston Road, Wanchai 2572 8849 2891 3743

BB DT TEFERR A2 T A2 SRR 1 IBAE

Kennedy Town Shop A2, G/F, & Unit A, 1/F, Man Kwong Court, 12 Smithfield Road 2849 2280 2960 0790

EtADT 238 433-437 IR AE

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 2811 4474

BEEDT LHEB57-87 A LB T G8 5 Al

Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

AEEDT S5 KRBT 443-453 55t T~ 15-16 5748

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539

ERH1T FIRTEEHE 288 5k S E AR T B2 S —EBE

Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 2851 6281 2581 2216

AEED 1T REWABEE 1 SRZR S T 501 5K

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing 2884 4802 2884 3151
Road & No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

417 Branch

ik Address

E5F Tel

fHE Fax

REFBVITHERAF
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEESTT

Kowloon Branches

BEHDIT
Shing Yip Street

AW 1T
Hunghom

EBD1T

Jordan

BEIT

Kwun Tong

BEDT
Lok Fu
EZHWAIT

Mei Foo Sun
Chuen

HEADT
Mongkok
K 4T
Shamshuipo
ERIEEST
Telford Gardens
TIES 1T
Tokwawan
HERD T
Tseung Kwan O
TS ER
FEBF O DT
Tseung Kwan O
Metro City Plaza

KRABER1T
Tsimshatsui

BUEREF105 T AR
Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong

AL BN 28 5 SRR T 3 R4 KM 1B 2 SR A R 212 3574
Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop
No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

R E 335 5%

335 Nathan Road, Jordan

BUEREEAFELTR O T 7-9 558

Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road,
Kwun Tong

ML E ES —1E 1101 2110255

Shop Nos. 1101 and 1102, 1/F, Lok Fu Plaza, Wang Tau Hom
FEF AL FE 10A T~ N26E & F 5= 47

Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

HE A 0B 697 5%
697 Nathan Road, Mongkok

IRIKITARERET 124 5730 T
G/F, 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo

B ERES — B =2 F5A-F6A 5
Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay

+ TE58 245B [ 247 S E S E 2 Bty
G/F, Mei King Mansion, Phase Il, No. 245B and 247 Tokwawan Road

15 58 B £ 17 9 3% PopCorn i35 1 TN /B G58 SR p5 4
Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, 9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O

# =8 MCP Discovery —1& 127 5= 4

Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O

KL IHRZE 66-70 5 2 EAE
Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui

2191 8103

2365 8110

2385 0161

2389 3911

2337 6300

2370 2660

2394 4261

2361 0951

2927 4130

2365 9035

2752 1223

2927 2101

2366 9121

2191 8723

2363 5917

2782 0993

2389 8239

2337 6922

2370 2006

2391 9104

2958 0985

2755 4967

2363 5696

2752 1098

2702 2305

2311 1491
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417 Branch ik Address £ Tel BE Fax

RERITHRA A

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEEDTT

Kowloon Branches

BERLDTT =ANIEEE 103 5= AU O~ G3C Sk iR

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Wong Tai Sin Plaza, Wong Tai Sin 2326 5165 2350 0894

JH i 3t 2 4T e i 10 58 22 561 5%

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 2385 9285

HREDT

New Territories Branches

BEDT FORELS IRAT7T SRR R ES 112116 5%

Kwai Fong Shop No. 116, First Floor, Kwai Fong Plaza, Kwai Fong Estate, 2487 8033 2489 1253
177 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung

BRLESDT TS8R ILIPR D 5K 608 5% 55 #2111 &35 =1 335 55t

Ma On Shan Plaza Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road, 2929 4137 2633 3432
Ma On Shan

BEXRE DT FIXEHREE 33 5% 5 X4k 108 D-E &

Maritime Square Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 24351368 2435 1582

BB DT P9 22 B% 168-236 55 11 & 93-95 57 &

Ocean Walk Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130

PDHEAT YO AFIE AR O T 9 S

Shatin Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 2601 2413

WRES AT S/ YDIH 3 286-288 St T

Sha Tsui Road G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 2615 1510 2615 1099

Exp4T _OKET &K 55-59 SEIKRIIEM T B SR

Sheung Shui Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui 26715030 2672 1533

REHAT AL R 1 SRAHESH T 53 5% K& 54 55 4

Tai Po Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637

RES1T YD H K B 55-56 SETEIE T 14-18 SRS EEM T~ 1 R 25548

Tai Wai Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden, 2691 1272 2606 1531
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017 245



r
=)

-

246

DITMER

LISTS OF BRANCHES

417 Branch

ik Address

E5F Tel

fHE Fax

REFBVITHERAF
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

HREDIT

New Territories Branches

RKERT
Tin Shui Wai

E8H1T

Tsuen Wan

BT

Tuen Mun

RBAT
Tung Chung

BEDT

Fanling

THREWLEDT

Yuen Long Castle

Peak Road

TLRARKEI R EHT 3 SR R AL S0 R AR P45 1428 L120 SEéfH
Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre,
Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai, Yuen Long

HERME14-16 7B HKNE

Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan
TP = i 52-62 SR S E M T 458 R 5574

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,

52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

R L) 5ROR B SR A7 1 SR SRR VBB b T~ 23 SR 4

Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

1358 B AL 88 SRIEEDE S N A11-A14 ]2 110-112 SE48
Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza,
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

TLEAE LA RS TCRAER 162-168 SREk A2 T C 5748
Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long

2448 9008

2492 8102

2441 6218

2109 3484

2677 8830

2479 4555

2448 9112

2415 0984

2441 6613

2109 4353

2669 9950

2479 4522

RFEBEITAR AT 2017F F 5



DITP MR (HEET)
LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

41T Branch

ik Address

E5F Tel

RAEXRRTROBRAA

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

B2 1T

Macau Branches

REBHRIT

Main Branch

REDT

Almirante Lacerda

WEDT

lao Hon

BEST
Kin Wa

i 51T
Mercadores

EHAT
Nape

HHit 51T
Palha

AT OH1T
Ponte e Horta

DREDIT
Ribeira do Patane

Ao T
Toi San

St SHD 1T
Pedro Coutinho

FE ARSI 572 5%
Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572

FLERRE ARG 4355 B
Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43B

ORI E 45 AR TEAE (5—H1) 8 N AC B

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase I) R/C AC (853) 2837 8262

BIRGEDIEENIE 13 A TAH
Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, S/N,
Edf. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja A

B KA 40-42 57 AT
Rua dos Mercadores, Nos. 40-42, R/C A

R 4 B35 815-363 5 & % il L T O
Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpgéo, Nos. 315-363,
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

== bt

=B A 4-6 5%
Rua da Palha, Nos. 4-6

AIFTH 29 5%
Praca Ponte e Horta, No. 29

EEITR 40258

Rua do Visconde Paco d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C
BB E - miEEE 18 &£ “CC &
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,
Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”

SHSH 255D S SR T B

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, Loja B, R/C

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2837 8704

(853) 2895 2942

(853) 2823 8483

(853) 2821 6523

BT

Taipa Branches

RFERDIT

Prince Flower City

BEIT
Tak Fok

FRBAEAFEN — BB T I8

Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

B BERABEERSRIEEFH

Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden,

R/C, Loja F, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

(853) 2882 1308

BRIRDIT

Coloane Branch

BEBRA1T
Coloane

BRIRE S A1 9 5% D
Largo do Matadouro, No. 9-D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374
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DITH MR HBRT)
LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

41T Branch 3t Address T Tel

KRBT (PE) BRAF

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

w17 AT RE R B 5016 55 R EE 100 KE AR 1518

Head Office 15/F, Tower A, Kingkey 100 Building, 5016 Shennan (86-755) 2519 9033

EINAEEZIT
Shenzhen Qianhai
Sub-Branch

BEM 5217

Guangzhou

EBH1T
Shanghai
MEa1T
Nanchang
IS4
Zhenjiang
HiL %47

Foshan Sub-Branch

Road East, Shenzhen

RYIT R IR e A TR S BB 220 (JLE) 4-7 BREHE 123
Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North), Industrial
Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

BERE EMNT AR AR 604-2 5 KFTIRITAE 1 M
2[Z01 &L

Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604-2,

North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
EETREREZRILIZ865%1/EBE

Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Xu Hui District, Shanghai

IEEEmEAES L1365 1-2E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi

TLARA $EL T R O [ AR RS 59 5%
59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu

FEER & 8 L T R R A I 8 [ B 8 SR B B SR S B S
1EE111 88 - 12048

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,
Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2238 5500

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 2411 3388

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555

RFEBEITARAT) 201 7F F 5k
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Paper from responsible sources

R B R RN RAKER R
FSC™ C006398

Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#R{THRAF)
36/F, Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
BAETITE—T/URARPL=TE

Telephone E & - (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile {5& : (852) 2598 5052

Website  #81E : www.dahsing.com
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